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Our management plans to monitor expenses and raise additional capital through a combination of public and private equity, debt
financings, strategie-allianees;-and-lieensing-arrangements-collaborations or a combination of these approaches . Our ability to access
capital when needed is not assured and, if capital is not available to us when, and in the amounts, needed, we may be required to
significantly curtail, delay or discontinue one or more of our research or development programs or the commercialization of any product
candidate, or be unable to expand our operations or otherwise capitalize on our business opportunities, as desired, which could materially
harm our business, financial condition and results of operations. We expect our expenses will increase substantially in connection with our
ongoing and planned activities, as we: ® advance product candidates through preclinical studies and clinical trials; ® procure the
manufacture of supplies for our preclinical studies and clinical trials; ® acquire, discover, validate, and develop additional product
candidates; e attract, hire and retain additional personnel; ® operate as a public company; ® implement operational, financial and
management systems; ® pursue regulatory approval for any product eandidates— candidate that successfully eemplete-completes clinical
trials; ® establish a sales, marketing, and distribution infrastructure to commercialize any product candidate for which we may obtain
marketing approval and related commercial manufacturing build- out; and e obtain, maintain, expand, and protect our portfolio of
intellectual property rights. We do not currently own or operate any manufacturing facility. We rely on contract manufacturing
organizations (“ CMOs ) to produce our drug candidates in accordance with the FDA’ s current good manufacturing practices (“ cGMP )
regulations for use in our clinical studies. The manufacture of pharmaceuticals is subject to extensive cGMP regulations, which impose
various procedural and documentation requirements and govern all areas of record keeping, production processes and controls, personnel
and quality control. Under our license agreement with Amgen, we have received a substantial amount of drug product to support initiation
of our planned clinical trials of briquilimab. In November 2019, we entered into development and manufacturing agreements with Lonza
Sales AG (*“ Lonza ”) relating to the manufacturing of briquilimab and product quality testing. The facility of Lonza in Slough, United
Kingdom is responsible for production and testing of drug substance. The facility of Lonza in Stein, Switzerland is responsible for
production and testing of drug product. Labelling, packaging and storage of finished drug product is provided by PCI Pharma Services, in
San Diego, California. Our agreement with Lonza includes certain limitations on our ability to enter into supply arrangements with any
other supplier without Lonza’ s consent. In addition, Lonza has the right to increase the prices it charges us for certain supplies depending
on a number of factors, some of which are outside of our control. We do not currently have sales and marketing infrastructure to support
commercial launch of our product candidates, if approved. We may build such capabilities in North America prior to potential launch of
briquilimab. Outside of North America, we may rely on licensing, co- sale and co- promotion agreements with strategic partners for the
commercialization of our product candidates. If we build a commercial infrastructure to support marketing in North America, such
commercial infrastructure could be expected to include a targeted sales force supported by sales management, internal sales support, an
internal marketing group and distribution support. To develop the appropriate commercial infrastructure internally, we would have to invest
financial and management resources, some of which would have to be deployed prior to any confirmation that briquilimab will be
approved. Because of the numerous risks and uncertainties associated with product development, we are unable to predict the timing or
amount of increased expenses or when or if we will be able to achieve or maintain profitability. Even if we are able to generate revenue
from the sale of our product candidates, we may not become profitable. If we fail to become profitable or are unable to sustain profitability
on a continuing basis, then we may be unable to continue our operations at planned levels and may be forced to reduce our operations.
Business Impact of the Geopolitical and Macroeconomic Factors We are unable to predict the effect that geopolitical and macroeconomic
factors, including inflation, supply chain issues, rising interest rates, future bank failures, increased geopolitical tensions between the U. S.
and China and the impact of the Russia- Ukraine conflict and the Israel- Hamas war, may have on our operations. To the extent that
geopolitical and macroeconomic factors adversely affect our business prospects, financial condition, and results of operations, they may
also have the effect of exacerbating many of the other risks described or referenced in the section titled “ Risk Factors ” in this Annual
Report on Form 10- K such as those relating to the supply of materials for our product candidates, and the timing and possible disruptions
of our ongoing and future preclinical studies and clinical trials, and our access to the financial markets. Amgen License Agreement In
November 2019, we entered into a worldwide exclusive license agreement with Amgen for briquilimab (formerly AMG- 191 and JSP191)
that also includes translational science and materials from Stanford University. We were assigned and accepted Amgen’ s rights and
obligations, effective November 21, 2019, for the Investigator Sponsored Research Agreement (“ ISRA ), entered into in June 2013,
between Amgen and The Board of Trustees of the Leland Stanford Junior University (“ Stanford ) and Quality Agreement between Amgen
and Stanford, effective as of October 7, 2015. Under the ISRA, we received an option to negotiate a definitive license with Stanford for
rights to certain Stanford intellectual property related to the study of briquilimab in exchange for an option exercise fee of $ 1. 0 million,
payable over a two- year period (the “ Option ”’). We exercised the Option to Stanford docket S06- 265 “ Antibody- based clearance of
endogenous stem cell niches prior to transplantation of bone marrow or hematopoietic stem cells (c- kit) ”” granted by Stanford under the
ISRA on June 2, 2020. As a result, we have worldwide exclusive rights to develop and commercialize briquilimab. The issued U. S. patents
would be expected to expire in 2027, absent any applicable patent term extensions. Stanford License Agreement-Agreements In March
2021, we entered into an exclusive license agreement with respect to the use of briquilimab from the Stanford Office of Technology
Licensing to license U. S. Patent Application Serial Number 60 / 856, 435, filed November Nev--3, 2006, and U. S. Patent Application
Serial Number 12 /447, 634 (publication number US 2010 /0226927 Al) and know- how for the purpose of depleting endogenous blood
stem cells in patients for whom hematopoietic cell transplantation is indicated (the *“ 2021 Stanford License Agreement ”) . In July 2023,
we entered into an amendment to this exclusive license agreement to modify certain milestones set forth thereunder . In December 2024,
we entered into a co- exclusive license agreement to license U. S. Patent Application Serial Number 11, 642, 379, issued September
5, 2023 for the use in the field of the treatment and prevention of human diseases, including the use of anti- CD117 antibodies (other
than briquilimab) for the purpose of depleting endogenous blood stem cells in patients for whom hematopoietic cell transplantation
is indicated (the “ 2024 Stanford License Agreement ) . Collaboration and Clinical Trial Agreements Collaboration with Stanford
University Effective September 2020, we entered into a sponsored research agreement with Stanford, pursuant to which Stanford will
execute a Phase 1 /2 clinical trial utilizing briquilimab to treat Fanconi Anemia patients in Bone Marrow Failure requiring allogeneic
transplant with non- sibling donors at Stanford Lucile Packard Children’ s Hospital. As consideration for the services performed by



Stanford under this agreement, we agreed to pay Stanford a total of $ 0. 9 million over approximately three years upon the achievement of
the first development and clinical milestone, including FDA filings and patient enrollment. The first $ 0. 3 million milestone was achieved
in 2020 and paid by us in February 2021. The second $ 0. 3 million milestone was achieved in February 2022 and paid by us in March
2022 The thlrd and final mllestone in the amount of$ 0.3 mllllon was achleved in July 2023 —Qt-hefeel-labeﬂmoﬂ—aﬂd-el-m-tea-l—"l:ﬂa-}

pafty—rﬂetﬁs—rts—own—eosts—m&deﬁ-hese—agfeemeﬂts— Components of Results of Operatlons Operatmg Expenses Research and Development

The largest component of our total operating expenses since our inception has been research and development activities, including the
preclinical and clinical development of our product candidates. Research and development expenses consist primarily of compensation and
benefits for research and development employees, including stock- based compensation; expenses incurred under agreements with CROs
and investigative sites that conduct preclinical and clinical studies; the costs of acquiring and manufacturing clinical study materials and
other supplies; payments under licensing and research and development agreements; other outside services and consulting costs; and
facilities, information technology and overhead expenses. Research and development costs are expensed as incurred. External research and
development costs include: ® costs incurred under agreements with third- party CROs, CMOs and other third parties that conduct
preclinical and clinical activities on our behalf and manufacture our product candidates; ® costs associated with acquiring technology and
intellectual property licenses that have no alternative future uses; ® consulting fees associated with our research and development activities;
and e other costs associated with our research and development programs, including laboratory materials and supplies. Internal research
and development costs include: ® employee- related costs, including salaries, benefits and stock- based compensation expense for our
research and development personnel; and e other expenses and allocated overheads incurred in connection with our research and
development programs. We expect our research and development expenses to increase substantially for the foreseeable future as we
advance our product candidates into and through preclinical studies and clinical trials, pursue regulatory approval of our product candidates
and expand our pipeline of product candidates. The process of conducting the necessary preclinical and clinical research to obtain
regulatory approval is costly and time- consuming. The actual probability of success for our product candidates may be affected by a
variety of factors, including the safety and efficacy of our product candidates, early clinical data, investment in our clinical programs,
competition, manufacturing capability and commercial viability. We may never succeed in achieving regulatory approval for any of our
product candidates. As a result of the uncertainties discussed above, we are unable to determine the duration and completion costs of our
research and development projects or if, when and to what extent we will generate revenue from the commercialization and sale of our
product candidates, if approved. Our future research and development costs may vary significantly based on factors, such as: e the scope,
rate of progress, expense and results of our discovery and preclinical development activities; ® the costs and timing of our chemistry,
manufacturing and controls activities, including fulfilling cGMP- related standards and compliance, and identifying and qualifying
suppliers; ® per patient clinical trial costs; ® the number of trials required for approval; @ the number of sites included in our clinical trials;
e the countries in which the trials are conducted; @ delays in adding a sufficient number of trial sites and recruiting suitable patients to
participate in our clinical trials; ® the number of patients that participate in the trials; ® the number of doses that patients receive; ® patient
drop- out or discontinuation rates; ® potential additional safety monitoring requested by regulatory agencies; ® the duration of patient
participation in the trials and follow up; e the cost and timing of manufacturing our product candidates; ® the phase of development of our
product candidates; ® the efficacy and safety profile of our product candidates; @ the timing, receipt, and terms of any approvals from
applicable regulatory authorities, including the FDA and non- U. S. regulators; ® maintaining a continued acceptable safety profile of our
product candidates following approval, if any, of our product candidates; @ significant and changing government regulation and regulatory
guidance; e changes in the standard of care on which a clinical development plan was based, which may require new or additional trials; @
the extent to which we establish additional strategic collaborations or other arrangements; and @ the impact of any business interruptions to
our operations or to those of the third parties with whom we work, particularly in light of geopolitical and macroeconomic trends. General
and Administrative General and administrative expenses consist primarily of personnel costs and expenses, including salaries, employee
benefits, stock- based compensation for our executive and other administrative personnel; legal services, including relating to intellectual
property and corporate matters; accounting, auditing, consulting and tax services; insurance; and facility and other allocated costs not
otherwise included in research and development expenses. We expect our general and administrative expenses to increase substantially for
the foreseeable future as we anticipate an increase in our personnel headcount to support expansion of research and development activities,
as well as to support our operations generally. We also expect to continue to incur significant expenses associated with being a public
company, including costs related to accounting, audit, legal, regulatory, and tax- related services associated with maintaining compliance
with applicable Nasdaq and SEC requirements; additional director and officer insurance costs; and investor and public relations costs.
Other Income {Expense}, Net Other income {expense)-, net includes foreign currency transactions gains and losses, interest income,
changes in the fair value of common stock warrant liability and earnout liability. These financial instruments were classified as liabilities in
our consolidated balaneesheets-financial statements and re- measured at each reporting period end until they are exercised, settled or have
expired. In January 2023, all outstanding common stock warrants met equity classification and are no longer remeasured. The estimated
As-ofDeeember3+-2023;the-fair value of the earnout eutliability was minimal as of December 31, 2023, due to the price of our common
stock relative to the price that would trigger a release of the earnout shares. Results-The earnout liability expired in September 2024 as
the common stock price targets were not achieved prior to the expiration of Operations-the earnout period. Comparison of the Years
Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2622-The following table summarizes our results of operations for the years ended December 31,
2024 and 2023 and2022-(in thousands): Year Ended December 31, Change Change 2024 2023 2622-% % Operating expenses Research
and development $ 55, 821 § 51, 785 $ 34-4 , 627-$-036 8 General and administrative 20, 418 17,

076 +6;-569-5073 , 342 20 Total operating expenses 76, 239 68, 861 5+7 , 378 11 1961766535 oss from operations ( 76, 239) (68,
861) (547 . 496378 ) 11 GF-665)35-Interest income 5, 058 5, 199 704-4-498-642-(141) (3) Change in fair value of earnout liability - 18
5725+ 18 5;-70F) (100) Change in fair value of common stock warrant liability - (575) 575 4266+ 100 %7#5)168-) Other ineome
expense ¥, net ( 88) (246) 158 (H5-64 ) 43H+H4-Total other income, net 4, 970 4, 396 574 13 FS5HAOHS)6D-Net loss and
comprehensive loss $ (71,269) $ (64, 465) $ (376 , 685-804 ) 11 $+26;780)FRescarch and Development Expenses The following



table summarizes our research and development expenses for the periods indicated (in thousands): Year Ended December 31, Change
arnal aocto. RO ANMO-a+n athe i ey A olininol o 1o and-elinies 1aled 6-9

%%Mﬁ%%%@%éé%ﬁn&eﬁs—hmmmd 1c|alcd costs 9—$ 14, 866—8—941 $ 10 3%6—1-
022 $ 4 , 546148919 49 Facilities and overhead costs 6, 612 4, 986 564-4;-523-41-1 Fotatinternal, 626 33 Program costs +4-34 | 43012
268 36 . 8491777 (2 , 58+142-509) (7) Total research and development expense-expenses +$ 55, 821 S 51, 785 $ 34-4 . 036 8 627517
+58-56-Research and development expenses increased by $ 474 . 2-0 million, from S 34—51 6—8 mllllon for the yedl cnded December 31,
2022-2023 to 55-1—55 8 mllhon I01 1hc yL,aI cndcd December 31, 2023-2024 . mat ou g icat-tri odue
e S A Personnel —Bﬁerna-l—@RO—GM@-&nd—e&ter—t—h—rfd—
related costs, mcludmg employee payroll and related elintealtrialscxpenses increased by $ 46-4 . 3-9 million, from $ 43-10 . -0 million
for the year ended December 31, 2622-2023 to $ 36-14 . +9 million for the year ended December 31, 2623-2024 , as —The-inereaseis
primarity-dae-te-a result of hiring additional employees $+4—0-mitlion-inerease-in maﬂﬁf&et&rmg—our research and development
organlzatlon Stock— based compensatlon expenses a-nd—a—$—2—6—nnH-ren—merease—m—GR9—e*peﬂses- lncluded p&rﬁa-l-l-y—e-ffset—by—a%—é)%

and-developme lncreased by $0.4+4 mllll()n 1‘10111 $41.6
mllllon for thc year mdcd l)cccmbu 31, %92—2—2023 to S 4—2 5—0 mllllon fOI thc year ended December 31, 2023-2024 . Otherexternal
Facilities and overhead costs include common facilities, human resources and information technology related expenses allocated to
research and development and increased primarily due to and expansion of leased facilities in 2024. Program costs decreased by $ 6-2
. 6-5 million , from $ 3-36 . 3-8 million for the year ended December 31, 2622-2023 to $ 2-34 . 73 million for the year ended December 31,
2024. The decrease is primarily due to a decrease in CMO expenses of $ 12. 2 million from $ 21. 7 million for the year ended
December 31, 2023 to $ 9. 5 million for the year ended December 31, 2024 due to deereases-manufacturing and validation work
performed in purekases-2023 to supply the expansion of laberatery-matertals;-supplies-clinical programs. Clinical program expenses
increased primarily due to and- an increase in serviees-and-other-miseeHaneeus—costs for the CSU program from $ 3. 4 million for the
year ended December 31, 2023 to $ 10. 7 million for the year ended December 31, 2024 and the initiation of the Asthma program in
the year ended December 31, 2024 . Our external-program costs by-pregram-for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2022
were as follows (in thousands): Year Ended December 31, 2024 2023 2022-Briquilimab platform $ 25-5 , 698-637 $ H-4 , 358639 CMO
9,500 21, 709 CSU 10, 689 3, 368 CIndU 2, 234 189 Asthma 1, 975- MDS / AML elinteattrial-1, 824 3, 955 4;725-SCID elintealtrial-2,
409 2, 917 25-566-Chrenie Urtiearias3;-557—Other15-228-3;1429-Total external-program costs $ 37-34 , 355-268 $ 2+-36 , 778
Personnel-—related-eosts-777 General and Administrative Expenses General and administrative expenses increased by $ 3. 3 million ,
inetading-from $ 17. 1 million for the year ended December 31, 2023 to $ 20. 4 million for the year ended December 31, 2024.
employee-Employee payroll and related expenses increased by $ 43 . 59 million, from $ 87 . 3-5 million for the year ended December 31,
2022-2023 to $ 9-11 . 9-4 million for the year ended December 31, 2623-2024 , as a result of continued hiring additienal-of executives and
administrative employees in-eurreseareh-and-developmenterganization. Stock- based compensation expenses, included in employee
payroll and related expenses, were $ 4. 6 million and $ 3. 6 million for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively.
Expenses related to professional consulting services increased by $ 0. 4 million, from $ 6. 8 million for the year ended December 31,
2023 to $ 7. 2 million for the year ended December 31, 2024. Rent cxpenses increased by $ 0. 3 2-mitien;frem-$+—4-million for the
year ended Dcccmbu %l 292—2—2024 as compared to $—l—6—m—1-l-l-teﬁ—feﬁhc year ended December 31, 2023. Other Faeilities-and-ovetheads
o m 3 ssht 5 : ated-cxpenses decreased by $ 1. 3 million for aleeated-te
nd-development-and-were-stea ing-the year ended Dcccmbcl 31,2623-2024 as compared to the year ended December 31,
2—92%—2023 prlmarlly related to a decrease in allocation of overhead costs of $ 1. 6 million and a decrease in insurance costs of $ 0

S million, partlally offset by an increase in other Geﬂefa-l—general and-Administrative-Expenses-General-and-administrative expenses of
$ 0. 8 million. Total Other Income, Net Total other mcome, net incr edsed bv $0. §—nﬁ-l-heﬂ—freﬂa4$—l-6—6 mllllon fér—t-he—yea%eﬂded

%ﬁ% 4.4 mllllon net income for the year ende( Decembel 31, 2()23 to $ 5
. Iaterest-0 million net income inereased-by-$4—-5-mithonfrom$0—Fmithon-for the year ended December 31, 2622-2024 to-. Interest

income decreased by $ 0. 1 million, from $ 5. 2 million for the year ended December 31, 2023 to $ 5. 1 million for the year ended
December 31, 2024 , primarily due to higher-lower cash balances invested in money market funds and-higherinterestrates- We
recognized $ 0. 6 million of other expense and-$F—2-mition-ofotherineome-rclated to the change in the fair value of the common stock
warrants for the years— year ended December 31, 2023 and-2022;respeetively-. These warrants are publicly traded, were classified as
liabilities and were remeasured at fair value, which was the closing market price of a warrant, at the end of each reporting period until
January 2023. In January 2023, a holder converted all its outstanding shares of non- voting common stock into shares of voting common
stock, and we no longer have any outstanding shares of non- voting common stock. As such, the outstanding warrants met equity
classification criteria, were reclassified to equity and are no longer remeasured at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Our earnout
liability relates-related to the Spc)ﬁse%eut—earnout -S-hafes—shares pldced in escrow upon the closing of the Business Combination in
September 2021. Fhese—- The b /A 6 e e per-common stock price targets swithir-were

not achleved and the earnout shares were forfelted and cancelled and the earnoutspeei-ﬁed—peﬁod—l%efeﬁo—Neteq—ﬁre\ﬁeensehdated
ta Hs—This l11b1111v explred-ts—reeofded

s%gni—ﬁe&nt—lﬂputs—used—m September 2024 he-Me ; eted HH
term-whenrshares-will-be-refeased-. We recognized less—t-ha-n—a galn ofzero and $ () 1 ml]lmn a-nd—$é—7—mﬂ+terre-tlet-heﬁﬁweme—related-te



fhe—deefease—m—ﬂae—faﬂal-ueeﬁh&e&metﬁ—h&bthty—for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2622-, respectively smainty-due
: : Re perieds-. Other expense, net is comprised of foreign currency transactions

gams and losses and was $ 0 21 m11110n and $ 0 +2 mllhon for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2622- respectively.

L1quld1ty and Capltal Resources As of Decembel 31, %92—3—2024 we had $ -86—71 9—6 mllllon of cash and cash equlvalents —OnFebraary

In order to assist in tundlng our future operatlons 1nclud1ng our planned clinical trials, on April 28, 2023 we ﬁled a unlversal shelf
registration statement on Form S- 3 with the SEC, which was declared effective on May 5, 2023 and will expire on May 5, 2026 (the “ S- 3
), which allows us to, from time to time, offer up to $ 250. 0 million of securities, including any combination of common stock, preferred
stock, debt securities, warrants, rights, units and depositary shares. We believe that the S- 3 will provide us with the flexibility to raise
additional capital to finance our operations as needed. From time to time, we may offer securities under the S- 3 in response to market
conditions or other circumstances if we believe such a plan of financing is in the best interests of our stockholders. The terms of any
offering under the S- 3 will be established at the time of such offering and will be described in a prospectus supplement to the S- 3 filed
with the SEC prior to the completion of any such offering. On November 10, 2022, we entered into a Controlled Equity OfferingSM Sales
Agreement (the ““ Sales Agreement ) with Cantor Fitzgerald & Co. (the “ Agent ), pursuant to which we may offer and sell through or to
the Agent, as sales agent or principal, shares of our voting common stock from time to time (the “ ATM Offering ). The Agent will use
commercially reasonable efforts consistent with its normal sales and trading practices to sell shares from time to time, based upon our
instructions (including any price or size limits or other customary parameters or conditions we may impose). We will pay a commission
equal to 3. 0 % of the aggregate gross proceeds of any shares sold through the Agent pursuant to the Sales Agreement. We are not
obligated to sell any shares under the Sales Agreement. The Sales Agreement will continue until all shares available under the Sales
Agreement have been sold unless it is terminated earlier. On May 5, 2023, we filed with the SEC a prospectus under the S- 3 in connection
with the ATM Offering (the “ ATM Prospectus ™), pursuant to which we may offer and sell shares of common stock having an aggregate
offering price of up to $ 75. 0 million. As of December 31, 2023-2024 , there have been no sales pursuant to the ATM Prospectus. In
February 2024, we closed an underwritten offering that was conducted off the S- 3 and issued 3, 900, 000 shares of common stock for
estimated-net proceeds of $ 47. 2 million. As of Febraary26-December 31 , 20623-2024 , $ 75. 0 million remains allocated and available
under the ATM Prospectus and appreximately-S 124. 5 million remains available and unallocated under the S- 3. Future Funding
Requirements Our primary uses of cash are to fund our operations, which consist primarily of research and development expenditures
related to our programs and, to a lesser extent, general and administrative expenditures. We anticipate that we will continue to incur
significant expenses for the foreseeable future as we continue to advance our product candidates, expand our corporate infrastructure,
operate as a public company, further our research and development initiatives for our product candidates, scale our laboratory and
manufacturing operations, and incur marketing costs associated with potential commercialization. We are subject to all the risks typically
related to the development of new drug candidates, and we may encounter unforeseen expenses, difficulties, complications, delays and
other unknown factors that may adversely affect our business. We anticipate that we will need substantial additional funding in connection
with our continuing operations. We have incurred significant losses and negative cash flows from operations since our inception. As of
December 31, 2023-2024 , we had an accumulated deficit of $ +69-240 . 6-9 million. Given our recurring losses from operations and
negative cash flows, and Based-based on our current operating plan, we have concluded that there is substantial doubt about our ability
existing-eash-and-eashequivalents-will be-suffieient-to continue as a going concern within one year fund-eureurrentoperatingplanforat
least-the-twelve-menths-from the date of filing of this Annual Report on Form 10- K. We have-based-expect to finance our future cash
needs through equity or debt financings, collaborations or a combination of these estimates-approaches. The sale of equity or
convertible debt securities may result in dilution to our stockholders, and, in the case of preferred equity securities or convertible
debt, those securities could provide for rights, preferences or privileges senior to those of our common stock. Debt financings may
subject us to covenant limitations or restrictions on our eunrrent-assumptions-ability to take specific actions , whieh-such as incurring
additional debt or making capital expenditures. Our ability to raise additional funds may requirefutare-adjustmentsbased-be
adversely impacted by negative global economic conditions and any disruptions to and volatility in the credit and financial markets
in the United States and worldwide or other factors. There can be no assurance that we will be successful in acquiring additional
funding at levels sufficient to fund our operations or on terms favorable or acceptable to us. If we are unable to obtain adequate
financing when needed or on terms favorable or acceptable to us, we may be forced to delay, reduce the scope of or eliminate one or
more of our engeing-business-deeisions-research and development programs . Our future financing requirements will depend on many
factors, including: @ the timing, scope, progress, results and costs of research and development, preclinical and non- clinical studies and
clinical trials for our current and future product candidates; ® the number, scope and duration of clinical trials required for regulatory
approval of our current and future product candidates; ® the outcome, timing and costs of seeking and obtaining regulatory approvals from
the FDA and comparable foreign regulatory authorities for our product candidates, including any requirement to conduct additional studies
or generate additional data beyond that which we currently expect would be required to support a marketing application; e the costs of
manufacturing clinical and commercial supplies of our current and future product candidates; ® the costs and timing of future
commercialization activities, including product manufacturing, marketing, sales and distribution, for any of our product candidates for
which we receive marketing approval; @ any product liability or other lawsuits related to our product candidates; ® the revenue, if any,
received from commercial sales of any product candidates for which we may receive marketing approval; e our ability to establish a
commercially viable pricing structure and obtain approval for coverage and adequate reimbursement from third- party and government
payers; ® the costs to establish, maintain, expand, enforce and defend the scope of our intellectual property portfolio, including the amount
and timing of any payments we may be required to make, or that we may receive, in connection with licensing, preparing, filing,
prosecuting, defending and enforcing our patents or other intellectual property rights; @ expenses incurred to attract, hire and retain skilled
personnel; and e the costs of operating as a public company. A change in the outcome of any of these or other variables could significantly
change the costs and timing associated with the development of our product candidates. Furthermore, our operating plans may change in
the future, and we may need additional funds to meet operational needs and capital requirements associated with such change. Contractual
Obligations and Commitments We enter into contracts in the normal course of business with CROs for clinical trials, with CMOs for
clinical supplies manufacturing and with other vendors for preclinical studies, supplies and other services and products for operating
purposes. These contracts generally provide for termination on notice or may have a potential termination fee if a purchase order is
cancelled within a specified time, and therefore are cancelable contracts. We do not expect any such contract terminations and de-did not
have any non- cancellable obligations under these agreements as of December 31, 2023-2024 . Leases In August 2020 and-, January 2022



and July 2024 , we leased approximately +3-25 , 466-900 square feet of space for our headquarters in Redwood City, California. The lease
expires in August 2026. We have an option to extend the term for an additional five years to August 203 1. In addition to base rent, we pay
our share of operating expenses and taxes. As of December 31, 2623-2024 , our rent commitments under the lease agreement are-were $ 1.
2 mllllOH within the next 12 months from Dcccmber 31,2623-2024 , and $ +0 . 9-7 million for the remainder of the lease term. In March

626 2021 we entered 1ntoa—speﬂsered—fese&reh—agfeement—wtfh—$ta—nfeﬁé

Beeember%HG%—Iﬁ—Nfafeh%@%—w&eﬂtefe&ﬂ&te&e—Stantord Lleense Aéreement In luly 2()23 we entered into an amendment to the
2021 Stanford License Agreement to modify certain milestones set forth thereunder. Pursuant to the 2021 Stanford License Agreement we
are required to pay annual license maintenance fees, beginning on the first anniversary of the effective date of the agreement and ending
upon the first commercial sale of a product, method, or service in the licensed field of use, as follows: $ 25, 000 for each first and second
year, $ 35, 000 for each third and fourth year, and $ 50, 000 at each anniversary thereafter ending upon the first commercial sale. We are
also obligated to pay late- stage clinical development milestone payments and first commercial sales milestone payments of up to $ 9. 0
million in total. We will also pay low single- digit royalties on net sales of licensed products. All products are in development as of
December 31, 2623-2024 , and no such royalties were due as of such date and no milestones were achieved. In December 2024, we
entered into the 2024 Stanford License Agreement. Pursuant to the 2024 Stanford License Agreement, we are required to pay a
license issuance fee of $ 75, 000 and annual license maintenance fees, beginning on the first anniversary of the effective date of the
agreement: $ 25, 000 for each of the first through third years, $ 50, 000 for each of the fourth through sixth years and $ 65, 000 at
each anniversary thereafter. We are also obligated to pay clinical development milestone payments of up to $ 1. 3 million and sales
milestone payments of up to $ 7. 0 million in total. We will also pay low single- digit royalties on net sales of licensed products. All
products are in development as of December 31, 2024 , and no such royalties were due as of such date and no milestones were achieved.
Cash Flows The following table summarizes our sources and uses of cash for the periods presented (in thousands): Year ended December
31,2024 2023 2022-Net cash used in operating activities $ ( 62, 602) $ (52, 067 3$45;-858-) Net cash used in investing activities ( 532) (
267 H576-) Net cash provided by financing activities 47, 884 100, 971 55-Net (decrease) increase {deerease)-in cash and cash equivalents
and restricted cash $ (15, 250) $ 48, 637 $-46;379)-Cash Flows from Operating Activities Net cash used in operating activities was $ 62. 6
million and $ 52. | mithenand-$45-9-million for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2022-, respectively .Cash used in
operating activities in the year ended December 31, 2022-2024 was primarily due to our net loss for the period of $ 3771 . 73
million,adjusted by non- cash net gairrloss of § -7’—8 .5 million and a net change 0f$ 0.62 m11110n in our net operatmg assets and
lldbl]ltleb The non- cash amounts consisted of § +2-6 . 6 9-mt i

y whieh1 € - mllhon related to @tock based compensatlon
expense, $ 1. 04 mllllon leldted to deprecmtlon dnd amortlmtlon expense cmd $ 0. 3-5 million non- cash lease expense.The changes in our
net operating assets and liabilities were primarily due to a-an deerease-increase of $ 2. 29 million in accrued expenses aeeotnts
payable;an-and inerease-of $-0-F-mitlieninother reeeivables;-current liabilities and a decrease of $ 0. 6-5 million in other non- current
assets,offset by an increase of $ 2.1 million in prepaid expenses and other current assets,a decrease of $ 1.0 million in operating lease
liability ;partialy-and a decrease of $ 0.1 million in accounts payable . Cash used in operating activities in the year ended December 31,
2023 was primarily due to our net loss for the period of § 64. 5 million, adjusted by non- cash net loss of § 7. 3 million and a net change of
$ 5. 1 million in our net operating assets and liabilities. The non- cash amounts consisted of $ 5. 2 million related to stock- based
compensation expense, $ 1. 1 million related to depreciation and amortization expense, $ 0. 6 million net loss related to the changes in the
fair value of the common stock warrant liability and the earnout liability, and $ 0. 4 million non- cash lease expense. The changes in our
net operating assets and liabilities were primarily due to an increase of $ 2. 8 million in accrued expenses and other current liabilities, an
increase of $ 2. 4 million in accounts payable, a decrease of $ 0. 7 million in other receivables and a decrease of $ 0. 8 million in prepaid
expenses and other current assets, offset by a decrease of § 0. 9 million in operating lease liability, an increase of § 0. 6 million in other non-
current assets, and a decrease of $ 0. 1 million in other non- current liabilities . Cash used in operating activities in...... in prepaid expenses
and other current assets . Cash Flows from Investing Activities Cash used in investing activities was $ 0. 3-5 million for the year ended
December 31, 2023-2024 , which-eonsisted-principally consisting of purchases of fab-property and cquipment and-. Cash used in
investing was $ 0. 6-3 million for the year ended December 31, 2022-2023 , which consisted of purchases of farniture-and-fixtures;-lab
equipment and-Heaseheldimprevements- Cash Flows from Financing Activities Cash provided by financing activities for the year ended
December 31, 2024 was $ 47. 9 million, which consisted primarily of net proceeds from the issuance and sale of shares of common
stock in an underwritten public offering of $ 47. 2 million, cash received from the exercise of stock options of $ 0. 3 million and cash
received from the issuance of common stock in connection with purchases under our employee stock purchase plan of $ 0. 4
million. Cash provided by financing activities for the year ended December 31, 2023 was $ 101. 0 million, which consisted primarily
of net proceeds from the issuance and sale of shares of common stock in an underwritten public offering and the ATM Offering of $ 101. 5
million, cash received from the exercise of stock options of $ 0. 4 million and cash received from the issuance of common stock upon
employee stock purchase plan purchases of S 0.1 1n11 10n parnally offset by taxes wnhhcld and paid re alcd to net senlemenl of equny
derds of $ 1.0 m11]10n —€a atretng v ey
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Accounting Pollues dl’ld Significant ludgments dl’ld Estlmdtes Our (,I'ltl(,dl cu,(,ountmg pohues are dlsclosed in Note 2 ofthe notes to the
consolidated financial statements included in Part II, Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10- K. Our management’ s discussion and
analysis of our financial condition and results of operations is based on our consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The preparation of these consolidated financial
statements requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements, as well as the reported expenses incurred during the
reporting periods. Our estimates are based on our historical experience and on various other factors that we believe are reasonable under the



circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying value of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions. While our
significant accounting policies are described in more detail in Note 2 to our consolidated financial statements included in Part II, Item 8 of
this Annual Report on Form 10- K, we believe that the following accounting policies are those most critical to the judgments and estimates
used in the preparation of our consolidated financial statements. Accrued Research and Development Expenses We have entered into
various agreements with outsourced vendors, including CROs and CMOs. Research and development expenses are recognized as services
are performed and as costs occur. We make significant judgments and estimates in determining the accrual balance in each reporting
period. As actual costs become known, we adjust our accruals. Although we do not expect our estimates to be materially different than the
actual amounts incurred, such estimates for the status and timing of services performed relative to the actual status and timing of services
performed may vary and could result in us reporting amounts that are too high or too low in any one period. Our accrual is dependent, in
part, upon the receipt of timely and accurate reporting from CROs, CMOs, and other third- party vendors. Variations in the assumptions
used to estimate accruals including, but not limited to, the number of patients enrolled, the rate of patient enrollment and the actual services
performed, may vary from our estimates, resulting in adjustments to clinical trial expenses in future periods. Payments made under these
arrangements in advance of the performance of the related services are recorded as prepaid expenses and other current assets until the
services are rendered. To date, there have been no material differences between estimates of such expenses and the amounts actually
incurred. Stock- Based Compensation We measure stock- based awards made to employees and non- employees based on the estimated fair
values of the awards as of the grant dates using the Black- Scholes option- pricing model. The model requires management to make a
number of assumptions including common stock fair value, expected volatility, expected term, risk- free interest rate and expected dividend
yield. Expected Volatility — Expected volatility is estimated by studying the volatility of the prices of shares of common stock of
comparable public companies for similar terms. Expected Term — Expected term represents the period that our stock- based awards are
expected to be outstanding and is determined using the simplified method. Risk- Free Interest Rate — The risk- free interest rate is based
on the U. S. Treasury zero- coupon issued in effect at the time of grant for periods corresponding with the expected term of the option.
Expected Dividend — The Black- Scholes valuation model calls for a single expected dividend yield as an input. To date, we have not
declared or paid any dividends. Common Stock Fair Value — We estimate the fair value of our common stock based on the closing quoted
market price of our common stock as reported on the Nasdaq Capital Market. Prierte-We recorded stock- based compensation expense
of $ 6. 6 million and $ 5. 2 million for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively. As of December 31, 2024, the-there
elosing-was $ 15. 0 million of total unrecognized compensation expense, which we expect to recognize over a remaining weighted-
average period of 2. 59 years. We expect to continue to grant equity- based awards in the future, and to the extent that we do, our
stock- based compensation expense recognized in future periods will likely increase. Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements
See Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements included in Part II, Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10- K for more
information regarding recently issued accounting pronouncements. Smaller Reporting Company Status Previously, we were an
emergmg growth company as defined by the Jumpstart Our Business Combinatten-OurBusiness-Startups Act of 2012 (the “ JOBS Act
””) .The JOBS Act exempts emerging growth companies from being required to comply with new or revised financial accounting standards
until private companies (that is,those that have not had a U.S.Securities Act of 1933,as amended,registration statement declared effective or
do not have a class of securities registered under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,as amended (the “ Exchange Act ™)) are required to
comply with the new or revised financial accounting standards.The JOBS Act provides that a company can elect to opt out of the extended
transition period and comply with the requirements that apply to non- emerging growth companies but any such election to opt out is
irrevocable. As We-have-opted-to-take-advantage-of the-December 31,2024 . we determined-ceased to be an emerging growth company.
We are now a “ smaller reporting company, ” as defined in Item 10 (f) (1) of Regulation S- K. Smaller reporting companies may
take advantage of certain reduced disclosure obligations, including, among the-other fair-things, providing only two years of audited
financial statements. We will remain a smaller reporting company until the last day of the fiscal year in which (i) the market value
of our common stock using-methedetogies-held by non- affiliates exceeds $ 250 million as of the last business day of our second fiscal
quarter , approaches;-or (ii) our annual revenue exceeded $ 100 million during such completed fiscal year and assamptions-the
market value of our common stock held by non- affiliates exceeds $ 700 million as of the last business day of our second fiscal
quarter. ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK Interest Rate Risk We
had cash and cash equivalents of $ 71. 6 million as of December 31, 2024, which eensistent-consisted eensisted-of checking account
and money market funds.Historical fluctuations in interest rates have not been significant for us,and we believe a hypothetical 10 % change
in interest rates during any of the periods presented would not have had a material effect on our consolidated financial statements included
in Part ILItem 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10- K.We had no outstanding debt as of December 31, 20623-2024 .To minimize risk in the
future,we intend to maintain our portfolio of cash equivalents in institutional market funds that are composed of U.S.Treasury and
U.S.Treasury- backed repurchase agreements or short- term U.S.Treasury securities.Foreign Currency Exchange Risk All of our employees
are currently located in the United States;however,we do utilize certain vendors outside of the United States for our manufacturing of drug
substances and clinical supplies.As such,our expenses are denominated in both U.S.dollars and foreign currencies. Therefore,our operations
are and will continue to be subject to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates.To date,foreign currency transaction gains and losses
have not been material to our consolidated financial statements,and we have not had a formal hedging program with the-Amerteantnstitute
respect to foreign currency. We believe a hypothetical 10 % change in exchange rates during any of €ertified-the periods presented
would not have a material effect on our consolidated financial statements included in Part IL,Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-
K.Effects of Inflation Inflation generally affects us by increasing our cost of labor and in the future our clinical trial costs.We believe that
inflation has not had a material effect on our consolidated financial statements included in Part ILItem 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-
K.ITEM 8.FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA JASPER THERAPEUTICS,INC.INDEX TO THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Page Audited Consolidated Financial Statements Report of Independent Registered Pablie-Public
Aeeountants-Accounting and-Valuation-Guide, Valuationof Privately-Firm (PCAOB ID 238) F - Held-2 Consolidated Balance Sheets F
- 4 Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Loss F- S Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity F- 6
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows F- 7 Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements F- 8 F- 1 Report of Independent
Registered Public Accounting Firm To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Jasper Therapeutics, Inc. Opinion on the
Financial Statements We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Jasper Therapeutics, Inc. and its
subsidiary (the “ Company ) as of December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023 and the related consolidated statements of operations
and comprehensive loss, of stockholders’ equity and of cash flows for the years then ended, including the related notes (collectively



referred to as the “ consolidated financial statements ). In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, and the results of its operations and its
cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
Substantial Doubt About the Company' s Ability to Continue as a Going Concern The accompanying consolidated financial
statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a going concern. As discussed in Note 2 to the
consolidated financial statements, the Company has incurred significant losses and negative cash flows from operations since its
inception that raise substantial doubt about its ability to continue as a going concern. Management' s plans in regard to these
matters are also described in Note 2. The consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result from
the outcome of this uncertainty. Basis for Opinion These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’ s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’ s consolidated financial statements based on our audits.
We are a public accounting firm registered with the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB) and
are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U. S. federal securities laws and the applicable
rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB. We conducted our audits of these consolidated
financial statements in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due
to error or fraud. The Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over
financial reporting. As part of our audit we are required to obtain an understanding of internal control over financial reporting
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company' s internal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks.
Such procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion. Critical Audit Matters The critical audit matter communicated below is a matter arising from the current
period audit of the consolidated financial statements that was communicated or required to be communicated to the audit
committee and that (i) relates to accounts or disclosures that are material to the consolidated financial statements and (ii) involved
our especially challenging, subjective, or complex judgments. The communication of critical audit matters does not alter in any
way our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, taken as a whole, and we are not, by communicating the critical audit
matter below, providing a separate opinion on the critical audit matter or on the accounts or disclosures to which it relates.
Accrued Research and Development Expenses Related to Contract Manufacturing Organization Activities As described in Note 2
to the consolidated financial statements, the Company has entered into various agreements with contract manufacturing
organizations (CMO¥s). As disclosed by management, the Company relies on CMOs to produce drug candidates in accordance with
the U. S. Food and Drug Administration’ s current good manufacturing practices regulations for use in clinical studies.
Management makes estimates of accrued research and development expenses as of each balance sheet date based on facts and
circumstances known at that time. Management periodically confirms the accuracy of the Company’ s estimates with the service
providers and makes adjustments, if necessary. Research and development accruals are estimated based on the level of services
performed, progress of the studies, including the phase or completion of events, and contracted costs. If the actual timing of the
performance of services or the level of effort varies from the original estimates, the Company will adjust the accrual accordingly.
The Company recorded $ 10. 1 million of accrued expenses and other current liabilities as of December 31, 2024, a portion of which
relates to accrued research and development expenses related to CMO activities. The principal consideration for our determination
that performing procedures relating to accrued research and development expenses related to CMO activities is a critical audit
matter is a high degree of auditor effort in performing procedures related to the Company’ s accrued research and development
expenses related to CMO activities. Addressing the matter involved performing procedures and evaluating audit evidence in
connection with forming our overall opinion on the consolidated financial statements. These procedures included, among others (i)
evaluating the appropriateness of the method used by management to calculate the accrued research and development expenses
related to CMO activities; (ii) testing the accrued research and development expenses, on a sample basis, by obtaining and
inspecting source documents, such as the CMO contract and invoices, and recalculating the accrued research and development
expenses recognized; and (iii) confirming relevant information, such as key terms and percentage of completion, with the CMO. / s
/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP San Jose, California February 28, 2025 We have served as the Company' s auditor since 2021. F- 3
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (in thousands, except share and per share data) December 31, 2024 2023 Assets Current
assets: Cash and cash equivalents $ 71, 637 $ 86, 887 Prepaid expenses and other current assets 4, 174 2, 051 Total current assets
75, 811 88, 938 Property and equipment, net 1, 875 2, 727 Operating lease right- of- use assets 976 1, 467 Restricted cash 417 417
Other non- current assets 820 1, 343 Total assets $ 79, 899 $ 94, 892 Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity Seenrities-Current
liabilities : Accounts payable $ 4, 027 $ 4, 149 $3768-Current portion of operating lease liabilities 1,089 972 865-Accrued expenses and
other current liabilities 10,121 7,253 4—432—T0m| current lldbl]lllC\ 15 237 12,374 #665-Non- current portion of operating lease liabilities
724 1814 2786-Commen-—stoe ¥ b : 8-Other non- current liabilities 2,264 2,353-264 Total
liabilities 18,225 ]6 452 -1%—3—7’—2—( ommitments and contingencies (Note 8) Stockholders’ equity Preferred \muk $ 0.0001 par value
10,000,000 shares authorized at December 31,2024 and 2023;none 1ssted-issued and outstanding at December 31, 2024 and 2023 and
2022~ Common stock:$ 0.0001 par value — 492,000,000 shares authorized at December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2022;respeetively;
15,022,122 and 11,163,896 and-3;:804;42F-shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2022-respectively 2 1 —
Additional paid- in capital 302,541 248,039 +44424-Accumulated deficit ( 240,869) ( 169,600 HH05;435-) Total stockholders’ equity
61,674 78,440 35;989-Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 79,899 $ 94,892 $48;36+The accompanying notes are an integral part of
these consolidated financial statements. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHENSIVE LOSS Year
Ended December 31, 2024 2023 2822-Operating expenses Research and development $ 55,821 $ 51,785 $34;627General and
administrative 20,418 17,076 +6;569-Total operating expenses 76,239 68,861 5H496-Loss from operations ( 76,239) ( 68,8601 H5H196-)
Interest income 5, 058 5, 199 #84+-Change in fair value of earnout liability — 18 5;725-Change in fair value of common stock warrant
liability — (575) #5200-Other ineeme{cxpense ynet ( 88) (246 HHS5-) Total other income,net 4, 970 4, 396 4355H-Net loss and
comprehensive loss $ ( 71,269) $ ( 64,465 3$37%685-) Net loss per share attributable to common stockholders,basic and diluted $ ( 4.89) $




(6.18 ¥$1406-33-) Weighted- average shares used in computing net loss per share attributable to common stockholders,basic and diluted
14,584,870 10,439,034 3;648;340-CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS” EQUITY (in thousands,except share data)
Common Stock Additional Paid- In Accumulated Total Stockholders” Shares Amount Capital Deficit Equity Balance as Compensation-
Wereeognized-of December 31, 2022 3, 804, 427 $ — $ 141, 124 $ (105, 135) $ 35, 989 Issuance of common stock upon exercise of
stock options 54,580 — 388 — 388 Issuance of common stock through underwritten offering,net of discounts and commissions and
offering expenses of $ 6.6 million 6,900,000 1 96,969 — 96,970 Issuance of common stock through ATM offering,net of commissions and
offering expenses of $ 0.1 million 233,747 — 4,509 — 4,509 Reclassification of common stock warrants from liability to equity (Note 7)
725 — 725 Settlement of restricted stock units 238,605 Shares withheld for taxes (80,462) — (960) — (960) Issuance of
common st()ck pmsu(mt to Empl()yce Stock Pmchdsc Plan 12,999 — 64 — 64 Vcstmé of founders’ restr icted st()Lk — 9 — 9 Stock -

— 5,21 l —35 21 I Net Ioss _— (64 465) (64 463) BdldnCL as of l)cumbcr 31,2023 11,163, 896 1
248,039 (169,600) 78,440 Issuance of common stock upon exercise of stock options 33,735 — 329 — 329 Issuance of common stock
through underwritten offering,net of discounts and commissions and issuance costs of $ 3.3 million 3,900,000 | 47,194 — 47,195
Issuance of common stock pursuant to Employee Stock Purchase Plan 29,491 — 360 — 360 Forfeiture of shares subject to earnout
(Note 7) (105,000) — — — — Stock- based compensation expense — — 6,619 — 6,619 Net loss — — — (71,269) (71,269) Balance
as of December 31,2024 15,022,122 $ 2482 $ 302 , 639-541 $ (+69-240 , 666-869 ) $ 78-61 , 4460-674 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS
OF CASH FLOWS Year Ended December 31, 2024 2023 2022-Cash flows used in operating activities Net loss $ (6471 , 465-269 ) $ ( 37
64 , 685465 ) Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities Depreciation and amortization expense 1, 373 1,
108 975-Non- cash lease expense 491 419 335-Stock- based compensation expense 6,619 5,211 4;694+-Change in fair value of common
stock warrant liability — 575 €260)-Change in fair value of earnout liability — (18) £5;725)-Loss on disposal of property and
equipment 11 — Changes in operating assets and liabilities:Prepaid expenses and other current assets (2,123) 767 342-Other receivables
— 663 (663)-Other non- current assets 523 (584) (H4y-Accounts payable (122) 2,381 Z;35H-Accrued expenses and other current
liabilities 2, 868 2, 821 836-Operating lease liability ( 865973 ) ( 589-865 ) Other non- current liabilities — (80) ,726-Net cash used in
operating activities (52-62 , 967602 ) ( 45-52 , $58-067 ) Cash flows used in investing activities Purchases of property and equipment (
552) ( 267) £576)-Proceeds from sales of property and equipment 20 — Net cash used in investing activities ( 267532 ) ( 576-267 ) Cash
flows from financing activities Proceeds from issuance of common stock through ATM and underwritten offerings,net 47,195 101,479 —
Proceeds from exercise of common stock options 329 388 27-Proceeds from issuance of common stock pursuant to Employee Stock
Purchase Plan 360 64 28-Taxes withheld and paid related to net settlement of equity awards — (960) —Net cash provided by financing
activities 47,884 100,971 55-Net increase (decrease) in cash,cash equivalents and restricted cash (15,250) 48,637 46;379)-Cash,cash
equivalents and restricted cash at beginning of the year 87,304 38,667 5;8646-Cash,cash equivalents and restricted cash at end of the year §
72,054 $ 87,304 -$—38—667—Supplemental d]]d non- (,dsh items reconulmnons Recldssmmtlon 01‘ common stock warrant liability into
addlllonal pald in capltal $ g se-asset-obtaine exe e eas es-$— § 1,074 Non—eashleaschold

725 The accompanying notes are an

mlugral part of lhusu consohdalud Imanual statements. N()TES TO LONSOLIDATED FINAN( IAL STATEMENTS NOTE
1.ORGANIZATION AND DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS Description of Business Jasper Therapeutics,Inc.and its consolidated
subsidiary,Jasper Tx Corp.(collectively,* Jasper ” or the “ Company ”),is a clinical- stage biotechnology company focused on developing
therapeutics targeting mast cell driven diseases such as €hrente-chronic Spentaneeus-spontaneous Urtiearta-urticaria and-, Chronie
chronic ndueible-inducible Urtiearia-urticaria and asthma .The Company has also explored h&s—eﬁgemg—pfegr&ms—m—dlsuasu whuu

tar, getmo d]sedsed hemdt()po]etlc stem cells can plmlde benefits,such as

nam ; p-5an g a ; herap e The Company is heddqualteled in Red\x ood
City, Call[ornla ThL C ompanv isa Dula\\ are corpmallon and was mcorporatud in Math 2018.In September 2021 lhu Company completed
a merger with Amplitude Healthcare Acquisition Corporation (* AMHC ") and became a public company.

NOTE 2.SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES Basis of Presentation The consolidated financial statements
and accompanying notes have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America (“ U.S.GAAP ”) and applicable rules and regulations of the U.S.Securities and Exchange Commission for financial
reporting.The financial statements are consolidated for the years ended December 31 .2024 and 2023 , and include the accounts
Company-sold-3;900,000-shares-of Jasper Therapeutics,Inc.and its eemmon-stoekin-wholly- owned subsidiary,Jasper Tx Corp.All

intercompany transactions arn-and balances have been eliminated upon consolidation underwrittenoffering-and-reeetved-estimated-net
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Concern In accordance w1th Accountmg Standards Codlﬁcatlon (“ ASC ”) Toplc 205- 40 Golng Concern the Company evaluated
whether there are conditions and events,considered in the aggregate,that raise substantial doubt about its ability to continue as a
going concern within one year after the date that the consolidated financial statements are issued.This evaluation initially does not
take into consideration the potential mitigating effect of the Company’ s plans that have not been fully implemented as of the date
the financial statements are issued.When substantial doubt exists under this methodology,the Company evaluates whether the
mitigating effect of its plans sufficiently alleviates substantial doubt about its ability to continue as a going concern.The mitigating
effect of the Company’ s plans,however,is only considered if both (1) it is probable that the plans will be effectively implemented
within one year after the date that the financial statements are issued,and (2) it is probable that the plans,when implemented,will
mitigate the relevant conditions or events that raise substantial doubt about the Company’ s ability to continue as a going concern
within one year after the date that the consolidated financial statements are issued.In performing this analysis,the Company
excluded certain elements of its operating plan that cannot be considered probable. The Company has incurred significant losses and
negative cash flows from operations since its inception.During the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2622-,the Company
incurred net losses of $ 71.3 million and $ 64.5 m-rl-heﬂ—aﬂd%—?’—?—mllllon ,srespectively.During the years ended December 31, 2024 and
2023 and20622- the Company had negative operating cash flows of $ 62.6 million and $ 52.1 million a-nd—$—4§79—m-1-l-heﬂ—,1espect1\ ely.As of
December 31, 2023-2024 ,the Company had an accumulated deficit of $ +69-240 . 6-9 million.The Company expects to continue to incur
substantial losses,and its ability to achieve and sustain profitability will depend on the successful development,approval,and
commercialization of product candidates and on the achievement of sufficient revenues to support the Company’ s cost structure.
Management expects to finance the Company’ s future cash needs through equity or debt financings,collaborations or a
combination of these approaches.However,due to several factors,including those outside management’ s control,there can be no
assurance that the Company will be able to complete additional financings.The Company’ s ability to raise additional funds may be
adversely impacted by negative global economic conditions and any disruptions to and volatility in the credit and financial markets
in the United States and worldwide or other factors.There can be no assurance that the Company will be successful in acquiring
additional funding at levels sufficient to fund its operations or on terms favorable or acceptable to the Company.If the Company is
unable to obtain adequate financing when needed or on terms favorable or acceptable to it,the Company may be forced to
delay,reduce the scope of or eliminate one or more of its research and development programs.The Company concluded the
likelihood that its plan to successfully obtain sufficient funding or adequately delay or reduce expenditures,while reasonably
poss1ble,1s less than probable. As of December 31, 2023-2024 .the Company had cash and cash equivalents of $ 6-71 . 9-6 million.The

C ompany s manas_cmcnt cxpccts that the existing casl and cash equivalents stegether-with-the-total-estimated-netproeeeds-of $472

will mot be sufficient to fund the Company’ s operating plans for at
least twelve months t1 om the issuance dqtc of thcsc consolldqtcd financial statements. Fhe-Accordingly,the Company wittneed-to-raise

add-rt-reﬂa-l—ﬁﬁaﬂemg—has concluded that substantlal doubt ex1sts about its ablllty to continue as fts—pfeduets—deve}epmem—feﬁ-he

e:nd—fes-u-l-ts—e-ilepefa-&eﬂs— T e consolldatcd [mancnl stalcmcnls h'l\ been plcparcd on assammg—ﬂ%at—the@emp&ny—wﬂﬂ-een&ﬂﬂe-as—a going

concern basis ,which contemplates the realization of assets and satisfaction of liabilities in the rermal-ordinary course of business.The
consolidated financial statements do not refleetinclude any adjustments relating to the recoverability and reelassifieations—-- classification
of recorded assets— asset amounts or the amounts and classnﬁcatlon of lmbllmes that mwht result from be—neeessaﬂ—l—f—the outcome

y A v 5 A Re\ erse Stock Spllt On Lmualy 4 2()74 the ( ompany

effected a 1- for- 1() reverse ﬁtock spllt (the “ Reverse Stock Split’ ) of its common stock.The par value per share and the number of
authorized shares were not adjusted as a result of the Reverse Stock Split. The shares of common stock underlying outstanding stock
options,common stock warrants and other equity instruments were proportionately reduced and the respective exercise prices,if
applicable,were proportionately increased in accordance with the terms of the agreements governing such securities.In addition,the shares
available for grants under the Company’ s incentive plans were adjusted as a result of the Reverse Stock Split.All references to common
stock,options to purchase common stock,outstanding common stock warrants,common stock share data,per share data,and related
information contained in the consolidated financial statements have been retrospectively adjusted to reflect the effect of the Reverse Stock
Split for all periods presented.Use of Estimates The preparation of consolidated Tlmmcldl statements in conformity with U.S.GAAP requires
management to make estimates,assumptions and judgements that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent liabilities as of the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of income and expenses during the
reporting periods.Significant estimates and assumptions made in the consolidated financial statements include but are not limited to,the
determination of the accrued research and development expenses, vataattorrofearnouttiability-and the measurement of stock- based
compensation expense.The Company evaluates its estimates and assumptions on an ongoing basis using historical experience and other
factors and adjusts those estimates and assumptions when facts and circumstances dictate.Actual results could materially differ from those
estimates.Cash,Cash Equivalents,and Restricted Cash The following table provides a reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents and
restricted cash reported within the consolidated balance sheets that sum to the total amount shown in the consolidated statements of cash
flows (in thousands):December 31, 2024 2023 2022-Cash and cash equivalents $ 71,637 $ 86,887 $38;250-Restricted cash 417 417 Total
cash,cash equivalents and 1est11cted cash $ 72,054 $ 87,304 $38;667Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash held in operating accounts
and investments in money market funds.Restricted cash relates to the letter of credit secured in conjunction with the operating lease (Note
8). F- 9 Concentrations of Credit Risk and Other Risks and Uncertainties The Company’ s cash and cash equivalents are maintained with



financial institutions in the United States of America.Cash balances are held at financial institutions and account balances may exceed
federally insured limits.To date,the Company has not experienced any losses on its cash,cash equivalents and marketable securities’
balances and periodically evaluates the creditworthiness of its financial institutions. The Company is subject to risks common to companies
in the development stage,including,but not limited to,development and regulatory approval of new product candidates,development of
markets and distribution channels,dependence on key personnel,and the ability to obtain additional capital as needed to fund its product
plans.To achieve profitable operations,the Company must successfully develop and obtain requisite regulatory approvals
for,manufacture,and market its product candidates.There can be no assurance that any such product candidate can be developed and
approved or manufactured at an acceptable cost and with appropriate performance characteristics,or that such product will be successfully
marketed. These factors could have a material adverse effect on the Company’ s future financial results.Products developed by the
Company require approval from the U.S.Food and Drug Administration ( the “ FDA ”) or other international regulatory agencies prior to
commercial sales. There can be no assurance that the Company’ s future products will receive the necessary clearances.If the Company
were denied such clearances or such clearances were delayed,it could have a materially adverse impact on the Company. F—8-Property and
Equipment,Net Property and equipment,net is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization.Depreciation and amortization
are recorded using the straight- line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets,generally 3 to 5 years.Leasehold improvements are
amortized over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset or the remaining term of the lease.Upon the sale or retirement of
assets,the cost and related accumulated depreciation and amortization are removed from the balance sheets and the resulting gain or loss is
reflected in the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss.Maintenance and repairs are charged to operations as
incurred.Impairment of Long- Lived Assets The Company reviews its long- lived assets for impairment,principally property and
equipment,whenever events or changes in business circumstances indicate the carrying amount of an asset may not be fully
recoverable.Recoverability of assets held and used is measured by comparing the carrying amount of an asset to future net cash flows
expected to be generated by the asset.If the Company determines that the carrying value of long- lived assets may not be recoverable,the
impairment to be recognized is measured by the amount by which the carrying amount of the assets exceeds the fair value of the assets.Fair
value is determined through various valuation techniques,principally discounted cash flow models,to assess the fair values of long- lived
assets.The Company did not record any impairment of long- lived assets during the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2622
.The Company determines whether an arrangement is or contains a lease at the inception of the arrangement and whether such a lease is
classified as a financing lease or operating lease at the commencement date of the lease.Leases with a term greater than one year are
recognized on the balance sheet as operating right- of- use assets,current portion of operating lease liabilities and non- current portion of
operating lease liabilities. The Company elected not to recognize the right- of- use assets and lease liabilities for leases with lease terms of
12 months or less (short- term leases).Lease liabilities and their corresponding right- of- use assets are recorded based on the present value
of lease payments over the expected lease term.As the interest rate implicit in the Company’ s lease contracts is not readily
determinable,the Company utilizes a collateralized incremental borrowing rate based on the information available at the commencement
date to determine the present value of lease payments.Certain adjustments to the right- of- use asset may be required for items such as
initial direct costs paid or incentives received and impairment charges if the Company determines the right- of- use asset is impaired. F- 10
The Company considers the lease term to be the noncancelable period that it has the right to use the underlying asset,together with any
periods where it is reasonably certain it will exercise an option to extend (or not terminate) the lease.Periods covered by an option to extend
(or not terminate) the lease in which the exercise of the option is controlled by the lessor are included in the lease term.Rent expense for
operating leases is recognized on a straight- line basis over the lease term and is presented in operating expenses on the consolidated
statements of operations and comprehensive loss.The Company has elected to not separate lease and non- lease components for its real
estate leases and has instead accounted for each separate lease component and the non- lease components associated with that lease
component as a single lease component.Variable lease payments are recognized as lease expense as incurred and are presented in operating
expenses on the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss.The Company has no finance leases as of December 31,
2024 and 2023 and-2622-.Fair Value of Financial Instruments The Company’ s financial instruments consist of cash and cash equivalents,
otherreeetvables;prepaid expenses and other current assets,accounts payable,accrued expenses and other current liabilities seemmenrstoele
warrantliability— carnout liability and other non- current liabilities.Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.As such,fair value is a market-
based measurement that should be determined based on assumptions that market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability. The
carrying amounts of cash, etherreeetvables;-prepaid expenses and other current assets,accounts payable,accrued expenses and other current
liabilities,approximate fair value due to their short- term maturities. F—=9-Common Stock Warrant Liability The Company has 4,999,863
outstanding warrants to purchase an aggregate of 499,986 shares of its common stock (the “ Common Stock Warrants ),all of which were
issued in connection with AMHC’ s initial public offering and entitle a holder to purchase one share of the Company’ s common stock for
every ten warrants at an exercise price of $ 115.00 per share. The Common Stock Warrants are publicly traded and exercisable during the
exercise period,which commenced on October 24,2021 and ends on September 24,2026,for cash or,in certain circumstances,on a cashless
basis. The Common Stock Warrants are accounted as derivative financial instruments.As long as the Company had shares of non- voting
common stock outstanding,the Common Stock Warrants did not meet the equity classification guidance and were accounted as non-
current liabilities at fair value. The Common Stock Warrants were subsequently remeasured at each reporting date with changes in fair
value recorded in the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss until exercise or expiration.On January 31,2023,the
91,102 outstanding shares of the Company’ s non- voting common stock were converted into 91,102 shares of the Company’ s voting
common stock per the holder’ s request,leaving no shares of non- voting common stock remaining outstanding as of January 31,2023.Upon
conversion of all outstanding shares of non- voting common stock into shares of voting common stock,the Common Stock Warrants met
the equity classification guidance and were reclassified to equity at the then- current fair value -Earnouttiability-Atthe-elosingof the
Bustness—@embm&t—teﬂ—t:he—$ 0 7 mllllon The Company recognized a loss of $ 0.6 million for the year earnouttability-related-to-the
ated-May-5;202-and-amended - ended December 31 eﬂ—SepfembeH4— 2-92—1—2023 class1fled w1thm
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v v The Company has entered into various agreements with
outsour(,ed vendors,contract mdnufd(,turmg organizations and clinical research organizations.The Company makes estimates of accrued
research and development expenses as of each balance sheet date based on facts and circumstances known at that time.The Company
periodically confirms the accuracy of its estimates with the service providers and makes adjustments,if necessary .Research and
development accruals are estimated based on the level of services performed,progress of the studies,including the phase or
completion of events,and contracted costs.The estimated costs of research and development services provided,but not yet
invoiced,are included in accrued expenses on the consolidated balance sheets.If the actual timing of the performance of services or
the level of effort varies from the original estimates,the Company will adjust the accrual accordingly.Payments made under these
arrangements in advance of the performance of the related services are recorded as prepaid expenses and other current assets until
the services are rendered.To date,there have been no material differences between estimates of such expenses and the amounts
actually incurred.F- 11 The Company expenses research and development (“ R & D ”) expenses as incurred.R & D expenses
consist primarily of personnel- related expenses,clinical studies,engineering and product development costs to support regulatory
clearance of,and related regulatory compliance for,the Company’ s products.Specifically,R & D expenses that support regulatory
approval of,and related regulatory compliance for,the Company’ s products include costs associated with the Company’ s clinical
studies,consisting of clinical trial design,clinical site establishment and management,clinical data management,travel expenses and
the costs of products used for the Company’ s clinical trials.Personnel- related expenses include salaries,benefits,bonuses and stock-
based compensation of the Company’ s R & D employees.Non personnel- related expenses include costs of outside
consultants,testing,materials and supplies,and allocated overhead.The Company allocates overheads related to rent,facility
costs,information technology and human resources costs.R & D expenses are charged to expense when incurred.General and
administrative expenses include compensation,employee benefits and stock- based compensation for executive management,finance
administration and human resources,allocated facility and information technology costs,professional service fees and other general
overhead costs,including allocated depreciation to support the Company’ s operations.The Company measures its stock options
granted to employees and non- employees based on the estimated fair values of the awards as of the grant date using the Black-
Scholes option- pricing model.The model requires management to make a number of assumptions,including expected
volatility,expected term,risk- free interest rate and expected dividend yield.For restricted stock unit awards,the estimated fair
value is the fair market value of the underlying stock on the grant date.The Company expenses the fair value of its equity- based
compensation awards on a straight- line basis over the requisite service period, which is the period in which the related services are
received. We-The Company aeeeunt-accounts for award forfeitures as they occur. The expense for stock- based awards with
performance conditions is recognized when it is probable that a performance condition is met during the vesting period. We recorded
stock- based compensation expense...... 1s met during the vesting period. Income Taxes The Company accounts for income taxes using the
asset and liability method. The Company recognizes deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected future tax consequences of events
that have been included in the consolidated financial statements or tax returns. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on
the difference between the consolidated financial statements and tax basis of assets and liabilities using enacted tax rates in effect for the
year in which the differences are expected to reverse. In evaluating the ability to recover its deferred income tax assets, the Company
considers all available positive and negative evidence, including its operating results, ongoing tax planning, and forecasts of future taxable
income on a jurisdiction- by- jurisdiction basis. In the event the Company determines that it would be able to realize its deferred income tax
assets in the future in excess of their net recorded amount, it would make an adjustment to the valuation allowance that would reduce the
provision for income taxes. Conversely, if all or part of the net deferred tax assets are determined not to be realizable in the future, an
adjustment to the valuation allowance would be charged to the provision of income taxes in the period when such determination is made.
As of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2622-, the Company has recorded a full valuation allowance on its deferred tax assets. Tax
benefits related to uncertain tax positions are recognized when it is more likely than not that a tax position will be sustained during an
audit. Interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits are included within the provision for income tax. To date, there have been
no interest or penalties recorded in relation to unrecognized tax benefits. F- 12 Foreign Currency Transactions Transactions denominated in
foreign currencies are initially measured in U. S. dollars using the exchange rate on the date of the transaction. Foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and liabilities are subsequently re- measured at the end of each reporting period using the exchange rate at
that date, with the corresponding foreign currency transaction gain or loss recorded in the consolidated statements of operations and
comprehensive loss and consolidated statements of cash flows. Nonmonetary assets and liabilities are not subsequently re- measured.
Comprehensivetoss-Comprehensive loss represents all changes in stockholders’ equity except those resulting from distributions to
stockholders. There have been no items qualifying as other comprehensive income (loss) during the years ended December 31, 2024 and
2023 and-2022-, and therefore, the Company’ s comprehensive loss was the same as its reported net loss. ¥4Net Loss per Share
Attributable to Common Stockholders Basic net loss per common share is calculated by dividing the net loss attributable to common
stockholders by the weighted- average number of shares of common stock outstanding during the period, without consideration of
potentially dilutive securities. Diluted net loss per share is computed by dividing the net loss attributable to common stockholders adjusted
for income (expenses), net of tax, related to any diluted securities, by the weighted- average number of shares of common stock and
potentially dilutive securities outstanding for the period. For purposes of the diluted net loss per share calculation, the redeemable
convertible preferred stock, common stock subject to repurchase, common stock subject to restricted stock awards, the Earnout Shares (as
defined in Note 7) , the Common Stock Warrants and stock options are considered to be potentially dilutive securities. Basic and diluted
net loss attributable to common stockholders per share is presented in conformity with the two- class method required for participating
securities. The Company considers all series of its redeemable convertible preferred stock, common stock subject to repurchase, common
stock subject to restricted stock awards and the Earnout Shares to be participating securities as the holders are entitled to receive dividends
on a pari passu basis in the event that a dividend is paid on common stock. The Company’ s participating securities do not have a
contractual obligation to share in the Company’ s losses. As such, the net loss is attributed entirely to common stockholders. For the years
ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2022-, the diluted net loss per common share was the same as basic net loss per share of common
stock, as the impact of potentially dilutive securities was antidilutive to the net loss per common share. The Earnout Shares and common
stock subject to restricted stock awards are contingently issuable shares and are not included in the diluted net loss per share calculation

until contingencies are resolved. Segment Reporting The Company has one reportable and determined-it-operates-as-a-single-operating
and-reportable-scgment. Fhe-Financial information about the Company’ s ehtefoperating segment deetston-maket;tts— is presented in



Note 15 €h e e h : aS
long- lived assets are locatud in thc Unncd States. Rcccm Accountlng Pronouncements Recently Adopted /\ccountmg Pronouncements
In June 2022, the Financial A(,c()untmg Standards Board (“ FASB ”) issued Accounting Standards Update (“ ASU ) No. 2022- 03, Fair
Value Measurement (Topic 820): Fair Value Measurement of Equity Securities Subject to Contractual Sales Restrictions, which (1)
clarifies the guidance in Topic 820 on the fair value measurement of an equity security that is subject to contractual restrictions that
prohibit the sale of an equity security and (2) requires specific disclosures related to such an equity security. This guidance is effective for
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2023, and interim periods within those fiscal years. The Company dees-adopted ASU 2022- 03

as of January 1, 2024, and the adoption did not expeet-the-adoptionefthisASH-te-have a sigaiffeant-material impact on the Company”’ s
L()nsollddted financial statements. F {-ﬁ—Ma-feh%G%O—t-he—Fq%S-B—tssued—PrS-H—Ne—EO%G— 13 94—Refefeﬂee—R&te—Refeﬁﬂ—(—Tepie—84-8§—

the FASB issued ASU No 2023- ()7 Seg,ment RepoltmU (T()pl(. 78()) lmpmvements to Repmtdble Seunent Disclosures. Thls ASU
requires public entities to disclose information about their reportable segments’ significant expenses and other segment items on an interim
and annual basis. Public entities with a single reportable segment are required to apply the disclosure requirements in ASU 2023- 07, as
well as all existing segment disclosures and reconciliation requirements in ASC Topic 280 on an interim and annual basis. ASU No. 2023-
07 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2023, and for interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15,
2024 . The Company adopted ASU 2023- 07 as of December 31, 2024. The adoption of this standard did not impact the Company’ s
reportable segments and additional required disclosures have been included in Note 15. In March 2024, the FASB issued ASU No.
2024- 02, Codification Improvements- Amendments to Remove References to the Concepts Statements (“ ASU 2024- 02 ). ASU
2024- 02 clarifies and simplifies references to certain concept statements within U. S. GAAP and applies to all reporting entities
within the scope of the affected accounting guidance, but in most instances the references removed are extraneous and not required
to understand or apply the guidance. ASU 2024- 02 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2024 for public entities
and for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2025 for all other entities . with carly adeptterrapplication permitted. The Company
adopted is-eurrently-evaluating-the-impaet-the-adoption-of-this standard in wilthave-en-the diselosureswithinreur-consolidated financial
statements for the year ended December 31, 2024 . The adoption of this standard did not have a material impact on its consolidated
financial statements at the adoption date. Accounting Pronouncements Not Yet Adopted [n December 2023, the FASB issued ASU
No. 2023- 09, Income Taxes (Topic 740): Improvements to Income Tax Disclosures. This ASU requires public entities, on an annual basis,
to provide disclosure of specific categories in the rate reconciliation, as well as disclosure of income taxes paid disaggregated by
jurisdiction. ASU No. 2023- 09 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2024, with early adoption permitted. The
Company does not expect the adoption of this ASU to have a significant impact on the Company’ s consolidated financial
statements. In November 2024, the FASB issued ASU No. 2024- 03, Income Statement- Reporting Comprehensive Income- Expense
Disaggregation Disclosures (Subtopic 220- 40): Disaggregation of Income Statement Expenses to improve financial reporting by
requiring that public business entities disclose additional information about specific expense categories in the notes to financial
statements at interim and annual reporting periods. In January 2025, the FASB issued ASU No. 2025- 01, Income Statement-
Reporting Comprehensive Income- Expense Disaggregation Disclosures (Subtopic 220- 40): Clarifying the Effective Date (“ ASU
2025- 01 ). The amendments do not change or remove current expense disclosure requirements; however, the amendments affect
where such information appears in the notes to financial statements because entities are required to include certain current
disclosures in the same tabular format disclosure as the other disaggregation requirements in the amendments. The amendments
are effective for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2026, and interim reporting periods beginning after
December 15, 2027. Early adoption is permitted. The Company is currently evaluating the impact the-of adeption— adopting of-this
ASU to its standard-willhave-enthe-diselosuresswithineurconsolidated financial statements. F- 42-14 NOTE 3. FAIR VALUE
MEASUREMENTS The Company measures certain financial assets and liabilities at fair value on a recurring basis. Fair value is an exit
price, representing the amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants. As such, fair value is a market- based measurement that should be determined based on assumptions that market participants
would use in pricing an asset or a liability. A three- tier fair value hierarchy is established as a basis for considering such assumptions and
for inputs used in the valuation methodologies in measuring fair value: ® Level 1 — Inputs are unadjusted, quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities at the measurement date; ® Level 2 — Inputs are observable, unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for
similar assets or liabilities, unadjusted quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active, or other inputs
that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data for substantially the full term of the related assets or liabilities; and e
Level 3 — Unobservable inputs that are significant to the measurement of the fair value of the assets or liabilities that are supported by little
or no market data. In determining fair value, the Company utilizes valuation techniques that maximize the use of observable inputs and
minimize the use of unobservable inputs to the extent possible as well as considers counterparty credit risk in its assessment of fair value.
Assets and liabilities measured at fair value are classified in their entirety based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair
value measurement. The Company’ s assessment of the significance of a particular input to the fair value measurement in its entirety
requires management to make judgments and consider factors specific to the asset or liability. The fair value of Level 1 securities is
determined using quoted prices in active markets for identical assets. Level 1 securities consist of highly liquid money market funds. In
addition, restricted cash collateralized by money market funds is a financial asset measured at fair value and is a Level 1 financial
instrument under the fair value hierarchy. Financial assets and liabilities are considered Level 2 when their fair values are determined using
inputs that are observable in the market or can be derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data, such as pricing for
similar securities, recently executed transactions, cash flow models with yield curves, and benchmark securities. In addition, Level 2
financial instruments are valued using comparisons to like- kind financial instruments and models that use readily observable market data



as their basis. The Company had no financial instruments classified at Level 2 as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2622-. Financial
assets and liabilities are considered Level 3 when their fair values are determined using pricing models, discounted cash flow
methodologies, or similar techmques and at least one slgmﬁcant model assumptlon or mput is unobservable Level 3 l1ab1llt1es that are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis included the-d e

liability as of December 31, 2023 , which was recognized in connectlon w1th fhe—busmess—eemlﬂﬁ&&eﬂ—a merger w1th AMHC in
September 2021 and expired in September 2024. The Company had no financial instruments classified at Level 3 as of December
31, 2024 . During the periods presented, the Company has not changed the manner in which it values liabilities that are measured at
estimated fair value using Level 3 inputs. There were no transfers within the hierarchy during the years ended December 31, 2024 and
2023 and-2022-. F—43-The following tables set forth the fair value of the Company’ s financial assets and liabilities measured on a
recurring basis by level within the fair value hierarchy (in thousands): December 31, 2024 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Financial assets
Money market funds $ 70, 637 $ — $ — $ 70, 637 Total fair value of assets $ 70, 637 $ — $ — $ 70, 637 F- 15 December 31, 2023
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Financial assets Money market funds $ 85, 887 § — $ — $ 85, 887 Total fair value of assets $ 85, 887 § — $
—3 85, 887 Financial liabilities Eamout liability $ — $ — $ — S — Total fair value of ﬁnancial liabilities $—8$— $ — $ — December

Value—ef—ﬁfmﬂeial—h&bfhﬂes%—lé@%Thc followmé table sets f01th a summary of thc changcs in thc falr value ofthe
Company S Level 3 ﬁnanual liabilities (m thousands) Earnout L1ab1l1ty Falr Value as of Deeember 31, 202+-$-5;743-Change-in-the-fair

v 2022 $ 18 Change in the
falr value mcluded in other income (18) Fa1r Value as of December 31 2023 $ — The e@tlmated fair value of the earnout liability ts-was
determined using a Monte Carlo simulation model, which uses a dlstrlbutlon of potential outcomes on a monthly basis over the earnout
period prioritizing the most reliable information available. The assumptions utilized in the calculation are-were based on the achievement
of certain stock price milestones, mcludmg the Company s current common stock prlce expected volatility, risk- free rate and expected
term. On September 24, 2024, The-estimates-o e-are-tneerta nany-of-the earnout liability expired and estimated

inputsused-as-of-the Earnout Shares that were prevmusly held el-afe—e#t-lﬂs—fepoﬁ—eeuld—have—fese-}fed—m escrow were forfeited and
cancelled signifieant-adjustments-to-the-fatr-valae- F—4-As of December 31, 2023, the fair value of the earnout liability was minimal. The
following table presents quantitative information about the inputs and valuatlon methodologles used for the Company’ s fair value
measurements classified in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy at December 31, 2023: Fair value (in thousands) Valuation methodology
Significant unobservable mput Eamout llablllty $ — Monte Carlo Slmulatlon Common stock prlce $ 7. 9—90 Expected term (m yea1s) 0.73

--------------- i i Hteres .%NOTE4

CON SOLlDATED BALANCE SHEET COMPONENTS The followmg table summarizes the details of prepald expenses and other current
assets as of the dates set forth below (in thousands): December 31, 2024 2023 2022-Prepaid-insuranee-$-877-$+-362-Research and
development prepaid expenses $ 2, 604 $ 615 842-Prepaid insurance 784 877 Prepaid travel expenses 140 14 Payroll tax credit
receivable 256— 250 Other prepaid expenses and current assets 646 295 244-246-Other-65-H8-Total $ 24 , 85+174 $ 2, 848-051 F- 16
The following table summarizes the details of property and equipment, net as of the dates set forth below (in thousands): December 31,
2024 2023 2022-1 casehold improvements $ 2, 477711 $ 2, 477 Lab equipment 2, 049 1, 973 5706-Office furniture & fixtures 502-522
502 Computer equipment +45-310 145 Capitalized software 90 90 Property and equipment, gross 5, 682 5, 187 4:-926-Less: accumulated
depreciation and amortization ( 3, 807) ( 2, 460 ¥4-352-) Property and equipment, net $ 1, 875 $ 2, 727 $3;-568-Depreciation and
amortization expense for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2022-was $ 1. 4 million and $ 1. | million and-$3-—0-millien,
respectively. B—5-The following table summarizes the details of accrued expenses and other current liabilities as of the dates set forth
below (in thousands): December 31, 2024 2023 2022-Research and development accrued expenses $ 6, 424 $ 5, 169 $2-65+Accrued
employee and related compensation expenses 3, 100 1, 767 HS—T’—Other 597 317 494-Total $ 10, 1218 7,253 %—4,—43—2—9&&e1‘—ﬁeﬂ-—euﬁeﬂf

2-64—$—2—3§3—NOTE 5. CIRM GRAN T ln Novcmbcr 2020 Callfornla lnstltute for chencratlvc Mcdlcmc (“ CIRM ”) awarded the
Company $ 2. 3 million in support of the research project related to a monoclonal antibody that depletes blood stem cells and enables
chemotherapy- free transplants. The award is payable to the Company upon achievement of milestones everthe-rext-three-years-that are
primarily based on patient enrollment in the Company’ s clinical trials. CIRM could permanently cease disbursements if milestones are not
met within four months of the scheduled completion date. Additionally, if CIRM determines, in its sole discretion, that the Company has
not complied with the terms and conditions of the grant, CIRM may suspend or permanently cease disbursements. Funds received under
this grant may only be used for allowable project costs specifically identified with the CIRM- funded project. Such costs can include, but
are not limited to, salary for personnel, itemized supplies, consultants, and itemized clinical study costs. Under the terms of the grant, both
CIRM and the Company will co- fund the research project and the amount of the Company’ s co- funding requirement is predetermined as
a part of the award. Under the terms of the CIRM grant, the Company is obligated to pay royalties and licensing fees based on 0. 1 % of net
sales of CIRM- funded product candidates or CIRM- funded technology per § 1. 0 million of CIRM grant. As an alternative to revenue
sharing, the Company has the option to convert the award to a loan. In the event the Company exercises its right to convert the award to a
loan, it would be obligated to repay the loan within ten business days of making such election. Repayment amounts vary dependent on
when the award is converted to a loan, ranging from 60 % of the award granted to amounts received plus interest at the rate of the three-
month LIBOR rate plus 25 % per annum. Since the Company may be required to repay some or all of the amounts awarded by CIRM, the
Company accounted for this award as a liability. Given the uncertainty in amounts due upon repayment, the Company has recorded
amounts received without any discount or interest recorded, and upon determination of amounts that would become due, the Company will
adjust accordingly. In the absence of explicit U. S. GAAP guidance on contributions received by business entities from government
entities, the Company has applied to the CIRM grant the recognition and measurement guidance in Accounting Standards Codification
Topic 958- 605 by analogy. The Company has received an aggregate of $ 2. 3 million from CIRM through December 31, 2623-2024 , of
which $ 0. 7 million was received during the year ended December 31, 2023. As of December 31, 2023-2024 , $ 50, 000 is available for
future distribution to the Company under the grant upon the achievement of a future milestone. As of each of December 31, 2024 and



2023, the amount of CIRM grant received of $ 2. 3 million is included in other non- current liabilities in the consolidated balance
sheets. F- +6-17 NOTE 6. SIGNIFICANT AGREEMENTS Amgen License Agreement In November 2019, the Company entered into a
worldwide exclusive license agreement with Amgen Inc. (“ Amgen ) for briquilimab (formerly known as AMG- 191 and JSP191) that also
includes translational science and materials from The Board of Trustees of the Leland Stanford Junior University (“ Stanford ) (the
Amgen License Agreement ”’). The Company was assigned and accepted Amgen’ s rights and obligations, effective November 21, 2019,
under the Investigator Sponsored Research Agreement (the “ ISRA ), entered into in June 2013, between Amgen and Stanford, and the
Quality Agreement between Amgen and Stanford, effective as of October 7, 2015. Under the ISRA, the Company exercised its option and
entered into a definitive license with Stanford for rights to certain Stanford intellectual property related to the study of briquilimab (see
Stanford License Agreement-Agreements below). The Amgen License Agreement terminates on a country- by- country basis on the 10th
anniversary of the date on which the exploitation of the licensed products is no longer covered by a valid claim under a licensed patent in
such country. On a country- by- country basis, upon the expiration of the term in each country with respect to the licensed products, the
licenses to the Company by Amgen become fully paid and non- exclusive. The Company and Amgen have the right to terminate the
agreement for a material breach as specified in the agreement. Stanford License Agreement-Agreements In March 2021, the Company
entered into an exclusive license agreement with Stanford (the “ 2021 Stanford License Agreement ). In July 2023, the C ompany entered
into an amendment to the 2021 Stanford License Agreement to modify certain milestones set forth thereunder. The L()mpdny received a
worldwide, exclusive license, with a right to sublicense, for briquilimab in the field of depleting endogenous blood stem cells in patients for
whom hematopoietic cell transplantation is indicated. Stanford transferred to the Company certain know- how and patents related to
briquilimab (together, the “ Licensed Technology ). Under the terms of this agreement, the Company is required to use commercially
reasonable efforts to develop, manufacture, and sell licensed product and to develop markets for a licensed product. In addition, the
Company is required to use commercially reasonable efforts to meet the milestones as specified in the agreement over the six years from
execution of the 2021 Stanford License Agreement and must notify Stanford in writing as each milestone is met. The Company is obligated
to pay annual license maintenance fees, beginning on the first anniversary of the effective date of the agreement and ending upon the first
commercial sale of a product, method, or service in the licensed field of use, as follows: $ 25, 000 for each first and second year, $ 35, 000
for each third and fourth year and § 50, 000 at each anniversary thereafter ending upon the first commercial sale. The Company is also
obligated to pay late- stage clinical development milestone payments and first commercial sales milestone payments of up to $ 9. 0 million
in total. The Company will also pay low single- digit royalties on net sales of licensed products, if approved. The Company paid &8 35,
000 and $ 25, 000 license maintenance fee in eaehef-March 2024 and 2023 and-2022-, respectively , which was recognized as research
and development expense in the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss for the year-years ended December 31,
2024 and 2023 and2622-. The 2021 Stanford License Agreement expires on a country- by- country basis on the last- to- expire valid claim
of a licensed patent in such country. The Company may terminate the agreement by giving Stanford written notice at least 12 months in
advance of the effective date of termination. The Company may also terminate the agreement solely with respect to any particular patent
application or patent by giving Stanford written notice at least 60 days in advance of the effective date of termination. Stanford may
terminate the agreement after 90 days from a written notice by Stanford, specifying a problem, including a delinquency on any report
required pursuant to the agreement or any payment, missing a milestone or a material breach, unless the Company remediates the problem
in that 90- day period. F- +7-18 In December 2024, the Company entered into a co- exclusive license agreement with Stanford (the “
2024 Stanford License Agreement ). The Company received a co- exclusive license in the United States, with a right to sublicense,
for a certain patent to be used in the field of the treatment and prevention of human diseases, including the use of anti- CD117
antibodies (other than JSP191) for the purpose of depleting endogenous blood stem cells in patients for whom hematopoietic cell
transplantation is indicated (the “ Co- Exclusive Licensed Field of Use ) and an exclusive license in the United States for the use of
the same patent in the field provided in the 2021 Stanford License Agreement (the “ Exclusive Licensed Field of Use ). Stanford
will have at most one other commercial license for the licensed patent in the Co- Exclusive Licensed Field of Use. Under the terms
of this agreement, the Company is required to use commercially reasonable efforts to develop, manufacture, and sell a licensed
product and to develop markets for a licensed product. In addition, the Company is required to use commercially reasonable
efforts to meet the milestones as specified in the agreement over approximately 4. 5 years from the execution of the 2024 Stanford
License Agreement and must notify Stanford in writing when, and if, each milestone is met. The Company is obligated to pay a
license issue fee of $ 75, 000, following the execution of the Agreement. The Company is also obligated to pay annual license
maintenance fees, beginning on the first anniversary of the effective date of the agreement, as follows: $ 25, 000 for each of the first
through third years, $ 50, 000 for each of the fourth through sixth years and $ 65, 000 at each anniversary thereafter. The
Company is also obligated to pay clinical development milestone payments of up to $ 1. 3 million and sales milestone payments of
up to $ 7. 0 million in total. The Company will also pay low single- digit royalties on net sales of licensed products, if approved. The
Company will pay to Stanford a portion of sublicensee consideration if a sublicense is granted. As of December 31, 2024, the
Company recognized $ 75, 000 related to the license issue fee as research and development expense in the statement of operations
and comprehensive loss and as accrued expenses and other current liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet. The Company may
terminate the agreement by giving Stanford written notice at least 30 days in advance of the effective date of termination. Stanford
may terminate the agreement by giving the Company 90 days written notice for a problem, including a delinquency on any report
required pursuant to the agreement, missing a milestone or a material breach, and by giving the Company 30 days written notice
for a payment default, unless the Company remedlates the problem in that 90 day or 30- day perlod NOTE 7. DERIVATIVE
FINAN( IAL -I-N-SZFR-U-M-EN—T—S—h INSTRUMENT he-w :




sate-o Hreqtty- ontmgcnt Larnout Llablllty Upon the elos1n§_/, of the bus-l-ﬂess
eembm&&eﬂ—merger w1th AMHC and pursuant to the Sponsor Support Agreement, dated May 5, 2021 and amended on September 24,
2021, by and among the Company, Amplitude Healthcare Holdings LLC (the “ Sponsor ”) and Jasper Tx Corp., the Sponsor agreed
to place the 105, 000 earnout shares into escrow (the “ Earnout Shares inte-eserew-") , which will-e-would have been rcleased as
follows: (a) 25, 000 Earnout Shares will-be-would have been released if, during the period from and after September 24, 2021 until
September 24, 2024 (the *“ Earnout Period ), over any twenty trading days within any thirty day consecutive trading day period, the
volume- weighted average price of the Company’ s common stock (the “ Applicable VWAP ) is-was greater than or equal to $ 115. 00,
(b) 50, 000 Earnout Shares witt-be-would have been released if, during the Earnout Period, the Applicable VWAP ts-was greater than or
equal to $ 150. 00 and (c) 30, 000 Earnout Shares wil-be-would have been released if, during the Earnout Period, the Applicable VWAP
is-was greater than or equal to $ 180. 00 (the “ triggering events ). The Earnout Shares plaeed in escrow are-were legally mued and
outstandmg sharcs that paft-retpate—partlmpated in VOtlné and d1v1dcnds he-Ea &

aeh-teved—éu-rmg—t-be—Eaﬂ&e&t—Peﬂed—Upon the closmg of the merger Bﬂsmess—@eﬂ&bm&t—teﬂ— the contlngent obllgatlon to release the
Earnout Shares was accounted for as a liability- classified financial instrument upon thet—-- the initial recognition because the triggering
events that determine-determined the number of shares required to be released from escrow inelade-included cvents that were not solely
indexed to the common stock of the Company. The earnout liability +s-was remeasured each reporting period with changes in fair value
recognized in earnings. On September 24 Ateach-of Deeember31-. 2623-2024 and-2022-, the Earnout Shares were forfeited and
cancelled, and the contingent liability’ s value became zero, as the triggering events described above were not achieved during the
Earnout Period. The cstimated fair value of the earnout liability was fess-than-$-6-minimal as of December 31, 2023 . +million-based-on
The fair value was estimated using a Monte Carlo simulation model. Assumptlons used in the valuations— valuation as of December 31,
2023 and2022-are described in Note 3 —Ne-trig ¢ ed-as 4 ahd . The Company
recognized a gain of less than $ 0. 1 million &nd—$é—7—m-1-l-heﬁ—for the yeafs» year ended December 31, 2023 and-2022;respeetively-,
classified within change in fair value of earnout liability in the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss. The
Company recognized minimal change in fair value of earnout liability during the year ended December 31, 2024. - +8-19 NOTE &.
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES Opel atm& Leases -I-n—Augus{—As of December 31 2—9%9-2024 the Company leased #
apprOXImately 13 , 78+400 square feet and Attt h e 3 ware-feet-of laboratory and office
space in Redwood City, California , under an —"Phe—Gem-paﬂ-y—s—operatmg lease Ve‘r-l-l-that e*pi-re—explres in August 2026. In conjunction
with signing the lease, the Company secured a letter of credit in favor of the lessor in the amount of § 0. 4 million. The funds related to this
letter of credit are presented as restricted cash on the Company’ s consolidated balance sheets. The lease agreement includes an escalation
clause for increased base rent and a renewal provision allowing the Company to extend this lease for an additional 60 months at the
plevalhn& rental rate, which the Company is not 1easonably cer tain to exercise. In addition to base rent, the Company pays its share of

3 ated-on-a-stratght—line-basis-over-the rematningtease .TheCompanyalsopaysvarrableeosts
related to 1ts share of operating expenses and taxes These Vanable costs are recorded as lease expense as incurred and presented as
operating expenses in the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss. The components of lease costs, which were
included in the Company’ s consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss, are as follows (in thousands): Year ended
December 31, 2024 2023 2022-1_ease cost Operating lease cost $ 672 § 622-672 Short- term lease cost 354 2 429-Variable lease cost 163
217 Total lease cost $ 674-1, 189 $ 75+-891 Supplemental information related to the Company’ s operating leases is as follows: Year ended
December 31, 2024 2023 2022-Cash paid for amounts included in the measurement of lease liabilities (in thousands) $ 1,153 $1, 119 $
870-Weighted average remaining lease term (years) 1. 61 2 —6-3-. 6 Weighted average discount rate 8. 00 % 8. 00 % F- 20 The following
table summarizes a maturity analysis of the Company’ s operating lease liabilities showing the aggregate lease payments as of December
31, 2023-2024 (in thousands): Amount Year ending December 31, 2024-2025 $ +5453-2025-1, 187 2026 740 Total undiscounted lease
payments 3-1 , 686-927 Less imputed interest ( 294-114 ) Total discounted lease payments 2-1 , 786-813 Less current portion of lease
liability (992-1, 089 ) Noncurrent portion of lease liability $ 724 1-8+4-F—49-Stanford Sponsored Research Agreement In September 2020,
the Company entered into a sponsored research agreement with Stanford for a research program related to the treatment of Fanconi Anemia
patients in Bone Marrow Failure requiring allogeneic transplant with non- sibling donors at Stanford Lucile Packard Children’ s Hospital
using briquilimab (the “ Research Project ”). Stanford will perform the Research Project and is fully responsible for costs and operations
related to the Research Project. In addition, Stanford owns the entire right, title, and interest in and to all technology developed using
Stanford facilities and by Stanford personnel through the performance of the Research Project under this agreement (the *“ Fanconi Anemia
Research Project IP 7). Under this agreement, Stanford granted the Company an exclusive option to license Stanford’ s rights in the Fanconi
Anemia Research Project IP (the “ Fanconi Anemia Option ) in the field of commercialization of briquilimab. There is no license granted
or other intellectual property transferred under this agreement until the Fanconi Anemia Option is exercised. As of December 31, 2623
2024 , the Company has not yet exercised the Fanconi Anemia Option. As consideration for the services performed by Stanford under this
sponsored research agreement, the Company agreed to pay Stanford a total of $ 0. 9 million over approximately three years upon the
achievement of development and clinical milestones, including the FDA filings and patient enrollment. The first milestone in the amount of
$ 0. 3 million was achieved in 2020 —Fhe-, the second milestone in the amount of $ 0. 3 million was achieved in February 2022 and the
third and final milestone in the amount of $ 0. 3 million was achieved in July 2023. Each milestone was recognized as a research and
development expense in the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss fer-in the period in which the year-ended
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-I:reense%g-feemeﬂts—ln March 2021 thc Company entered into thc 2021 Stanford Llcensc Agleemcnt (Notc 6) which was amendcd n July
2023, pursuant to which the Company is required to pay annual license maintenance fees, clinical development and commercial sales



milestone payments of up to an aggregate of $ 9. 0 million, and low single- digit royalties on net sales of licensed products. All products
were in development as of December 31, 2023-2024 , and no royalties were due as of such date. The Company paid &8 35, 000 and $ 25,
000 license maintenance fee in eaehof-March 2024 and 2023 and-2622-, respectively, and recognized this as a research and development
expense in the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss for each of the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and
2022~ As of December 31, 2024 and 2023 , no milestones were probable to be achieved and payable. In December 2024, the
Company entered into the 2024 Stanford License Agreement (Note 6), pursuant to which the Company is required to pay a license
issue and annual license maintenance fees, clinical development and commercial sales milestone payments of up to and-—- an
aggregate of $ 8. 3 million and low single- digit royalties on net sales of licensed products. All products were in development as of
December 31, 2622-2024 , and no royalties were due as of such date. As of December 31, 2024 , no milestones were probable to be
achieved and payable. Legal Proceedings The Company, from time to time, may be party to litigation arising in the ordinary course of
business. The Company was not subject to any material legal proceedings during the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2622-,
and, to the best of its knowledge, no material legal proceedings are currently pending. F- 21 Guarantees and Indemnifications In the normal
course of business, the Company enters into agreements that contain a variety of representations and provide for general indemnification.
The Company’ s exposure under these agreements is unknown because it involves claims that may be made against the Company in the
future. To date, the Company has not paid any claims or been required to defend any action related to its indemnification obligations. As of
December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2622-, the Company does not have any material indemnification claims that were probable or reasonably
possible and consequently has not recorded related liabilities. F==26-NOTE 9. COMMON STOCK The Company is authorized to issue 490,
000, 000 shares of voting common stock, 2, 000, 000 shares of non- voting common stock, and 10, 000, 000 shares of undesignated
preferred stock. There were H-15 , +63-022 , §96-122 shares of voting common stock, no shares of non- voting common stock and no
shares of preferred stock issued and outstanding as of December 31, 2623-2024 . Holders of the voting common stock and the non- voting
common stock have similar rights, except that non- voting stockholders are not entitled to vote, including for the election of directors.
Holders of voting common stock do not have conversion rights, while holders of non- voting common stock have the right to convert each
share of non- voting common stock held by such holder into one share of voting common stock at such holder’ s election by providing
written notice to the Company, provided that as a result of such conversion, such holder, together with its affiliates, would not beneficially
own in excess of 9. 9 % of the Company’ s voting common stock following such conversion. On January 31, 2023, 91, 102 shares of the
Company’ s non- voting common stock were fully converted into 91, 102 shares of the voting common stock per the holder’ s request, and
no shares of non- voting common stock remained outstanding after such conversion. As of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2622-, the
Company had common stock reserved for future issuance as follows: December 31, 2024 2023 %GQQ—Outstandmg and issued common stock
options 1, 628, 378 1, 040, 875 6+6;-897-Shares issuable upon exercise of common stock warrants 499, 986 499, 986 Outstandingrestrieted
eteek—uﬂ-ﬁs—%—l—7%9—$hares available for grant under 2024-Equity Incentive Plan-Plans 1, 791, 291 119, 014 +38-Shares available for
grant under Employee Stock Purchase Plans 981 3-88—370 111 958 Shares avallable for grant under 2022 Inducement Equity Incentive
Plan 16, 885 95, 685 avata : 3 Total shares of
common stock reserved 4, 917 910 1, 867 5 18 -1—7-3-3—4'8-1—She1f Reglstratlon Statement On October 7, 2022 the Company filed a shelf
registration statement on Form S- 3 (the “ Prior S- 3 ) with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “ SEC ’), which was declared
effective on October 18, 2022. The Company could sell from time to time up to $ 150. 0 million of common stock, preferred stock, debt
securities, warrants, rights, units or depositary shares comprised of any combination of these securities, for the Company’ s own account in
one or more offerings under the Prior S- 3. On April 28, 2023, the Company filed a new shelf registration statement on Form S- 3 (“ New
S- 3 ) with the SEC, which was declared effective on May 5, 2023 and superseded the Prior S- 3. As of December 31, 2623-2024 , the
Company can sell from time to time up to $ 250. 0 million of common stock, preferred stock, debt securities, warrants, rights, units or
depositary shares comprised of any combination of these securities, for the Company’ s own account in one or more offerings under the
New S- 3. The terms of any offering under the New S- 3 will be established at the time of such offering and will be described in a
prospectus supplement to the New S- 3 filed with the SEC prior to the completion of any such offering. F- 22 In November 2022, the
Company entered into a Controlled Equity OfferingSM Sales Agreement with Cantor Fitzgerald & Co. (the “ Agent ), pursuant to which
the Company may offer and sell through or to the Agent, as sales agent or principal, shares of the Company’ s common stock from time to
time (the “ ATM Offering ”’). On November 10, 2022, the Company filed with the SEC a prospectus supplement under the Prior S- 3 in
connection with the ATM Offering, pursuant to which the Company could offer and sell shares of common stock having an aggregate
offering price of up to $ 15. 5 million. In January 2023, the Company issued and sold an aggregate of 233, 747 shares of common stock for
net proceeds of $ 4. 5 million. On May 5, 2023, the Company filed with the SEC a prospectus under the New S- 3 in connection with the
ATM Offering (the “ ATM Prospectus ), pursuant to which the Company can now offer and sell shares of common stock having an
aggregate offering price of up to $ 75. 0 million. As of December 31, 2023-2024 , $175-0-millionremained-available-and-unalloeated
underthe- New-S—3-and-$ 75. 0 million remained available under the ATM Prospectus. Public Offering In January 2023, the Company
entered into an underwriting agreement with Credit Suisse Securities (USA) LLC, William Blair & Company, L. L. C. and Oppenheimer &
Co. Inc., as the representatives of the several underwriters named therein (the *“ 2023 Underwriters ), relating to an underwritten public
offering under the Prior S- 3 of 6, 900, 000 shares of common stock, including 900, 000 shares issued as a result of the exercise of the 2023
Underwriters’ option to purchase 900, 000 shares. The Company received net proceeds of $ 97. 0 million. Underwritten Offering In
February 2024, the Company entered into an underwriting agreement with Cowen and Company, LLC and Evercore Group L. L. C., as the
representatives of the several underwriters named therein ¢the~Hnderwriters=J-, related to an underwritten offering under the New S- 3 of
3 900, 000 shares of eommon 5tock The teta-l—esﬁm&ted—Company recelved net proceeds ofﬂ&e—effeﬁng—wefe% 47 2 m11110n As of

fheﬁﬁ—"PM—Pfes-pee&ts—AfteH-he—February 25 %924—2025 uﬂderwrr&en—effermg— a-ppfeeﬂm&teb% 124. 5 mllhon remdmed dleldblC amd
unallocated under the New S- 3. F==24+-NOTE 10. STOCK- BASED COMPENSATION On September23-June 6 , 26242024 . the

Company’ s 2024 Equity Incentive Plan (the “ 2024 Plan ) and the 2024 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the “ 2024 ESPP ”) were
approved by its stockholders and became effective, superseding and replacing the Company’ s 2021 Equity Incentive Plan ( the
2021 Plan ) and the 2021 Employee Stock Purchase Plan ( the “ 2021 ESPP ™) bee&m&effeetwe— respectlvely -"PheNo further awards
or purchase rlghts w1]l be granted under the 2021 Plan a-nd—or the 2021 ESPP previde Ha A b




employees of, d-lfeeferﬁdlrectors , and consultants of-the a de—p ofh A
with-the-Company-. Under the 2024 ESPP, the Company can grant pumhase rights to unplovces to purchasc shares of common stock ata
purchase price which is equal to 85 % of the fair market value of common stock on the offering date or on the exercise date, whichever is
lower. On March 14, 2022, the Compensation Committee of the Board (the “ Compensation Committee ) adopted the 2022
Inducement Equity Incentive Plan (the “ 2022 Inducement Plan ) and on June 2, 2023, the Compensation Committee approved an
amendment and restatement of the 2022 Inducement Plan. Under the 2022 Inducement Plan, the Company may grant nonstatutory
stock options, restricted stock awards, stock appreciation rights, RSUs, performance awards and other awards, but only to an
individual, as a material inducement to such individual to enter into employment with the Company or an affiliate of the Company,
who (i) has not previously been an employee or director of the Company or (ii) is rehired following a bona fide period of non-
employment with the Company. F- 23 Stock options under the 20242024 Plan and the 2022 Inducement Plan may be granted for periods
of up to 10 years and at prices no less than 100 % of the fair market value of the shares on the date of grant, provided, however, that the
exercise price of an incentive stock option (which cannot be granted pursuant to the 2022 Inducement Plan) granted to a 10 % stockholder
may not be less than 110 % of the fair market value of the shares. Stock options granted to employees and non- employees generally vest
ratably over four years. As of December 31, 2024, 2, 762, 719 shares were reserved for issuance under the 2024 Plan, of which 1, 791,
291 shares were available for future grant and 971, 428 shares were subject to outstanding options and RSUs, including
performance- based awards of 65, 894. As of December 31, 2024, options to purchase 143, 835 shares of common stock remained
outstanding and unexercised, and continue to be governed by the 2019 Equity Incentive Plan (the “ 2019 EIP ”). As of December
31, 2024, 29, 802 shares have been issued under the 2021 ESPP and 18, 630 shares under the 2024 ESPP. As of December 31, 2024,
1, 000, 000 shares were reserved under the 2024 ESPP, of which 981, 370 shares were available for future issuance. As of December
31, 2024, 550, 000 shares were reserved for issuance under the 2022 Inducement Plan, of which 16, 885 shares were available for
future grant and 533, 115 shares were subject to outstanding stock options. Stock Option Activity The following table summarizes the
stock option activities, including performance- based stock options, under the 2024 Plan, the 2021 Plan, the 2022 Inducement Plan and the
2019 Pas-EIP for the year ended December 31, 2623-2024 : Options Outstanding Weighted Average Exercise Price Weighted Average
Remaining Contractual Life (Years) Aggregate Intrinsic Value (in thousands) Balance, December 31, 2022-2023 616-1 , 897040, 875 $ 22
19 . 5+7-82 8 . 86-55 § —237 Options granted 663-698 . 654-817 $ +5-19 . 53-87 Options exercised ( 54-33 , 586-735 ) § 9 . +6-79
Options cancelled / forfeited (424-77 , 496-579 ) § 4725 . 95-26 Balance, December 31, 2623-2024 1, 046-628 , 875-378 $ 19. 82-79 8. 55
31 $ 2376, 608 Vested and expected to vest, December 31, 2623-2024 1, 046-628 . 875-378 $ 19. 82-79 8. 55-31 $ 2376, 608 Excrcisable,
December 31, 2623-2024 324-566 , 645-167 S 20. 79-45 7. 33-22 § 3, 131 25F-22-The aggregate intrinsic value represents the difference
between the estimated fair value of the underlying common stock and the exercise price of outstanding, in- the- money options. The total
intrinsic value of the options exercised during the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2022-was $ 0. 4-5 million and $ 0. +4
million, respectively. The total fair value of options that vested during the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2022-was § 5. 5
million and $ 3. 4 mithenand-$+—-8-million, 1espect1\ elv The w eluhted average grant date fair v dlue of optlom granted dLllmU the years
ended December 31, 2623-2024 and s d 6-persha estoe o ested
eptions-as-of Deeember34:-2023 was $ 9—16 4—89 and $ 12. 82 per share, respectlvely Unamortlzed stock- based compensatlon
expense as of December 31, 2024 was $ 14. 3 million, which is expected to be recognized over a weighted- average period of 2. $3-64
years, including less than $ 0. 1 million related to performance- based stock options, which is expected to be recognized over a weighted-
average period of 0. 25-3 years. F- 24 Performance- based stock options The following table summarizes the performance- based stock
options activity under the 2024 Plan and 2021 Plan-andthe-2649-Plan for the year ended December 31, 2023-2024 : Options Outstanding
Weighted Average Exercise Price Weighted Average Remaining Contractual Life (Years) Aggregate Intrinsic Value (in thousands)
Balance, December 31, 2022-2023 46, 394 § 14. 19 87 . 06 $ —24 Options granted — 5;-866-$49-26-Options cancelled / forfeited ( 500
5-0600-) 35 $19-. 20-40 Balance, December 31, 2023-2024 46-45 |, 894 13 394-$14- 19-7-95 6 . 04 438 86-$24-Vested and expected to
vest, December 31, 2023-2024 46-45 , 894 13 394-$14- 19795 6 . 04 438 06-$24-Ixercisable, December 31, 2023-2024 31+-30 , 893 393
$-7.986-33 5 . 43 438 46-$24-Restricted Stock Units (RSUs ) As of December 31, 2024, the Company had no unvested outstanding
RSUs and no RSUs were granted during the year ended December 31, 2024. The total fair value of RSUs that vested during the
year ended December 31, 2023 was $ 1. 9 million. There was no unamortized stock- based compensation for RSUs as of December
31, 2023. Performance Restricted Stock Units (PSUs ) The following table provides a summary of RSYs-PSU activity under the 262+
2024 Plan during the year ended December 31, 2023-2024 : Number of Shares— Share Weighted - Average Grant date-Date Fair Value
Unvested performance- based restr icted stock units at December 31,2022-2023 — 264729-5 — F9+-Granted 520, 000 21 $45-. 90 66
Unvested performance- based restricted stock units at December 31, , 2023-2024 —$
—20, 000 21 90 ()utstandmg performance- based restricted stock units at December 31, 2623-2024 —20, 000 21. 90 In June 2024, the




Company granted PSUs for 20, 000 shares that will vest in full if the closing price of the Company’ s common stock on the Nasdaq
Capital Market reaches or exceeds S —35. 00 per share (subject to adjustment for recapitalizations, stock splits and similar
transactions) for thirty consecutive calendar days within two years from the grant date. If the vesting condition is not met within
two years from the grant date, the PSUs will be forfeited. The tetal-Company concluded that issued PSUs are equity- based awards
and include a market based vesting condition. The Company used a Monte Carlo simulation model to estimate the fair value of the
RSUs-PSUs with that-vested-during-the yearendedDeecember3+-following assumptions: common stock fair value of $ 23. 95 , 2623
which was the closing market price of the Company’ s common stock at the grant date, volatility of 133. 00 %, risk free rate of 4. 87
%, and vesting term of 2. 0 years. Total estimated fair value of $ +-0 . 9-4 million —Fhere-was ne-unamertized-recognized as stock-
based compensation expense over ( forRSUs-as-of Deeember31+;2023-. 4 years, the derived requisite service period from the grant
date. F- 25 The Company issued 29, 491 and 12, 999 and-5;-942-shares of common stock under the 2021 ESPP and 2024 ESPP during the
years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2622-, respectively, and recognized $ 0. 2 million and $ 0. 1 million compensation expense
related to the 2021 ESPP and 2024 ESPP during eaehefthe years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2022-, respectively . There
was no Ynamertized-unamortized stock- based compensation for shares issuable under the 2021 ESPP as of December 31, 2623-2024 .
There was fessthan-$ 0. +7 million unamortized stock- based compensation for shares issuable under the 2024 ESPP as of
December 31, 2024 , which is expected to be recognized over a weighted- average period of 6-1 . 44-5 years. The Company recorded fess
than-$ 0. 1 million in accrued expenses and other current liabilities related to contributions withheld as of December 31, 2623-2024 . £-23
Stock- Based Compensation Expense The following table presents stock- based compensation expenses related to options , PSUs and RSUs
granted to employee and non- employees, ESPP awards and restricted common stock shares issued to founders (in thousands): Year Ended
December 31, 2024 2023 2022-General and administrative $ 4, 580 $ 3, 607 $-Research and development 2, 039 668Research-and
develepment-1, 604 1423-Total $ 6,619 $ 5, 211 $4;-69+-The Company recognized $ 0. 5 million and less than $ 0. 1 million aad-$-0-2
mithen-of stock- based compensation expense related to performance- based options and RSUs during the years ended December 31, 2024
and 2023 and-2022-, respectively. Valuation of Stock Options The grant date fair value of stock options was estimated using a Black-
Scholes option- pricing model with the following assumptions: Year Ended December 31, 2024 2023 Expected term (in years) S. 50 — 6. 08
5.25— 6. 08 +00—6-08-Expected volatility 95. 8 %-123.1 % 103. 31 % — 112. 30 % 63-4+%—106-03-%Risk- free interest rate 3. 63
%-4.50 % 3. 45 % — 4. 71 %+-40-%—3-62-% Expected dividend yield — — The determination of the fair value of stock options on the
date of grant using a Black- Scholes option- pricing model is affected by the estimated fair value of the Company’ s common stock, as well
as assumptions regarding a number of variables that are complex, subjective and generally require significant judgment to determine. The
Company estimates the fair value of its common stock based on the closing quoted market price of its common stock as reported on the
Nasdaq Capital Market. ExpeetedFerm-The expected term represents the period that the options granted are expected to be outstanding
and is determined using the simplified method (based on the mid- point between the vesting date and the end of the contractual term) as the
Company has concluded that its stock option exercise history does not provide a reasonable basis upon which to estimate expected term.
Expeeted-Volatilit-The Company derived the expected volatility from the average historical volatilities over a period approximately equal
to the expected term of Lomparable publlcly traded compames w1th1n its peer group that were deemed to be representative of future stock
price trends as-+h a errstoek—. The Company will continue to apply this process
until a sufficient amount ofhlitorlcal mformatlon regtrdmg the volatlllty of its own stock price becomes available. RiskF - 26 FreeInterest
Rate-The risk- free interest rate is based on the U. S. Treasury rate, with maturities similar to the expected term of the stock options. F-—24
Expected Dividend Yield The Company does not anticipate paying any dividends in the foreseeable future and, therefore, uses an expected
dividend yield of zero. Valuation of ESPP Awards The grant date fair value of ESPP awards was estimated using a Black- Scholes option-
pricing model with the following assumptions: Year Ended December 31, 2024 2023 Expected term (in years) 0. 56-38 —2. 00 0. 50
Expected volatility 67. 74 %-154.96 % 77. 80 %- 266. 24 %-F5-6+%—7F8-89-% Risk- free interest rate 4. 13 %-5.36 % 5. 39 %- 5. 40
Y1+-81+9%—4—72-% Expected dividend yield — — NOTE 11. NET LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO COMMON
STOCKHOLDERS The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted net loss per share attributable to common
stockholders (in thousands, except share and per share data): Year Ended December 31, 2024 2023 2622-Numerator: Net loss attributable
to common stockholders $ ( 71, 269) $ (64, 465 3$37-685-) Denominator: Weighted average common shares outstanding 14, 661, 468
10, 551, 290 37793;375-Less: Weighted- average unvested restricted shares — (7, 256 346;235-) Less: Shares subject to earnout ( +65-76
,08006-598 ) (105, 000) Weighted average shares used to compute basic and diluted net loss per share 14, 584, 870 10, 439, 034 3;-648140
Net loss per share attributable to common stockholders — basic and diluted $ (4. 89) $ (6. 18 3¥$-6-33-) The potential shares of common
stock that were excluded from the computation of diluted net loss per share attributable to common stockholders for the periods presented
because including them would have had an antidilutive effect were as follows: December 31, 2024 2023 2622-Outstanding and issued
common stoc,k options 1, 628, 378 1, 040, 875 6+6;-89F-Shares issuable upon exercise of common stock warrants 499, 986 499, 986

Unvested performance- based restricted stock units 20, 000 — 26+-729-Unvested-restrieted-common-stoek—25;
884-Total 2,148,364 1, 540, 861 ,404;:496-F- 2527 NOTE 12. INCOME TAXES During the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023
and2022-, the Company did not incur any tax expense or benefit as the Company operated with taxable losses and provided a full valuation
allowance. The provision for income taxes differs from the amount computed by applying the federal statutory income tax rate to loss
before taxes as follows (in thousands): Year Ended December 31, 2024 2023 2022-Federal tax benefit at statutory rate $ ( 14, 966) $ (13,
538 y$FH9HH4-) State taxes HH2+ 2 4-548-) 2 Change in fair value of warrant liability — 121 &5-542>Change in fair value of earnout
liability — (4 345262-) Non- deductible expenses 26 (38 3H+08-) Research and development credits (1, 492) (1, 628 9—61—8—35—) Change in
valuation dllowam(,e 15 123 12, 539 -1-6%43—St0(,k bdsed compensdtlon 986 822 —Othel 6—1—4—846—327 1 726 P1 ovision for i income taxes
$ —2 $ 2 h o e atesd a t AX-WaS

< tatt i d i ements: Slgmhumt components
of lhu Company S ncl dciurud tax assets (habllmus) as 01 Duccmbur 31 2024 and 2023 a-nd—l’-@%—Z—wurc as follows (in thousands):
December 31, 2024 2023 2022-Deferred tax assets: Accrued expenses and other $ 479 § 477 $4528+Intangibles 287 313 484-Net
operating losses 31, 820 25, 146 20;669-Rescarch and development credits 6, 031 4, 873 3;245-Stock- based compensation 1, 146 676 985
Lease liability 382 585 5096-Section 195 start- up amortization 211 229 35+Fixed-assets—99-Capitalized section 174 21, 128 14, 308 6;
284-Other 340 346 —Total deferred tax assets 61, 824 46, 953 34;488-Valuation allowance ( 61, 590) (46, 465 3H33;-925-) Total net
deferred tax assets 234 488 $63-Deferred tax liabilities: Right- of- use asset ( 206) ( 308 3563-) Fixed assets ( 28) ( 180) —Total deferred




tax liabilities ( 234) (488 3563-) Net deferred tax assets $ — $ — F=26-A valuation allowance is provided when it is more likely than not
that some portion of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. The Company believes that, based on a number of factors such as the
history of operating losses, it is more likely than not that the deferred tax assets will not be fully realized, such that a full valuation
allowance has been recorded. The valuation allowance increased by $ 15. 1 million and $ 12. 5 mithen-and-$+6-—2-million for the years
ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2022-, respectively. F- 28 The following table sets forth the Company’ s federal and state net
operating loss carryforwards as of December 31, 2623-2024 (in thousands): Amount Expiration Years Net operating losses, Federal $ 9+
123 , 357147 Do not expire Net operating losses, states primarily California $ 131, 895-875 2038- 2042 As of December 31, 2623-2024 ,
the Company had research and development credit carryforwards of approximately $ 3-4 . 89 million and $ 3-4 . 2-1 million available to
reduce future taxable income, if any, for both federal and California state income tax purposes, respectively. The federal research and
development credit carryforwards begin expiring in 2040, and California credits carryforward indefinitely. Utilization of the net operating
loss carryforwards and research credit carryforwards may be subject to an annual limitation due to the ownership percentage change
limitations provided by the Internal Revenue Code, as amended (“ IRC ), and similar state provisions. Annual limitations may result in the
expiration of the net operating losses and tax credit carryforwards before they are utilized. Fhe-As of December 31, 2022, the Company
has completed an IRC Section 382 analysis from inception through the year ended December 31, 2022. The During-this-pertod;-the
Company experienced twe-an ownership ehanges— change --on November 21,2019 &nd—Sepfembe%—ZG%l—feSﬁ-l-&ﬂg—related to Series A
redeemable convertible preferred stock financing. Any net operating loss generated in excess of the $ 2. 9 million will be efset
operatingtosses-beeeming-permanently limited for California tax purposes. The Company reduced its California net operating loss deferred
tax assets balance by the permanently limited amount of $ 0. 6 million. Fhe-Net federal aet-operating losses are not limited as they can be
carried forward indefinitely. The Company experienced an additional ownership change on September 24, 2021 in connection with
the business combination with Amplitude Healthcare Acquisition Corporation, a special purpose acquisition company. Any further
potential ownership change will be evaluated through a section 382 study. However, the Company does not expect there are to-be
additional tax attributes that will expire unused before the expiration periods. Uncertain Tax Positions A reconciliation of the beginning
and ending balances of the unrecognized tax benefits during the periods ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2622-is as follows (in
thousands): Year Ended December 31, 2024 2023 2022-Balance at beginning of year $ 2, 420 $ 1, 722 $-828-Additions based on tax
positions related to current year 639 698 894-Balance at end of year $ 3,059 § 2, 420 $4-722-The Company recognizes interest accrued
related to unrecognized tax benefits and penalties as income tax expense. Related to the unrecognized tax benefits noted above, the
Company did not accrue any penalties or interest during tax years— year 2024 and 2023 ard-2622-. The Company does not expect its
unrecognized tax benefit to change materially over the next twelve months. The Company is subject to examination by the United States
federal and state tax authorities for the tax years 2649- 2021 and later. State income tax returns are generally subject to examination for a
period of four years after filing of the respective return. To the extent the Company has tax attribute carryforwards, the tax years in which
the attribute was generated may still be adjusted upon examination by the Internal Revenue Service and state tax authorities to the extent
utilized in a future period. No income tax returns are currently under examination by taxing authorities. NOTE 13. 401 (K) SAVINGS
PLAN The Company has a retirement and savings plan under Section 401 (k) of the IRC (the “ 401 (k) Plan ), covering all U. S.
employees. The 401 (k) Plan allows employees to make pre- tax contributions up to the maximum allowable amount set by the Internal
Revenue Service. The Company may make contributions to the 401 (k) Plan at its discretion. $ 0. 2 million and $ 0. 1 million contributions
were made to the 401 (k) Plan by the Company for eaeh-efthe years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2022-, respectively . F- 29
NOTE 14. RELATED PARTIES The Company entered into consulting agreements with two founders, one of whom is also a member of
the Board, and each of whom also received founders” common stock shares for services and assigned patents. The Company recorded $ 0. 3
million and-$-0—-5mithen-for thefounders™advisory and consulting services performed by Professor Judith Shizuru, one of the founders
of the Company and a member of the Board, for each of the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2022,respeetively-. These
expenses were recorded as research and development expenses in the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss . The
Company recorded $ 0. 1 million in accounts payable and accrued expenses related to advisory and consulting services performed
by Dr. Shizuru as of December 31, 2024 . Also, the Company’ s Licensed Technology from Stanford (see Note 6) was created in the
Stanford laboratory of Prefesserdudith-Dr. Shizuru . In the first quarter of 2024 , ere-a senior executive of the Company joined the
Board of Directors of an information technology service provider that the Company has utilized to support a broad array of the
Company’ s founders-and-systems infrastructure as well as for general information technology support services. For the year ended
December 31, 2024, the Company paid that service provider $ 1. 4 million for various information technology support services.
NOTE 15. SEGMENT INFORMATION The Company has determined it operates as a member-single operating and reportable
segment, which is the research and development of therapeutic products in the fields of chronic urticaria and asthma. The
Company’ s chief operating decision maker, its Chief Executive Officer (the “ CEO ), manages the Company’ s operations on a
consolidated basis. The CEO assesses the segments performance and allocates resources based on review of various development,
manufacturing and clinical programs expenses, along with the segment’ s personnel and general and overhead costs. In addition to
the significant expense categories included within net loss presented on the Company' s consolidated statements of operations and
comprehensive loss, see below for disaggregated amounts that comprise total operating expenses: Year Ended December 31, 2024
2023 Personnel- related costs $ 27, 615 $ 18, 724 Facilities and overhead costs 14, 356 13, 360 Program costs Briquilimab platform
5, 637 4, 639 CMO 9, 500 21, 709 CSU 10, 689 3, 368 CIndU 2, 234 189 Asthma 1, 975-- MDS / AML 1, 824 3, 955 SCID 2, 409 2,
917 Total program costs 34, 268 36, 777 Total operating expense 76, 239 68, 861 the-Other Beard-income, net 4, 970 4, 396 Net loss $
(71, 269) $ (64, 465) F- 27-30 ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE None. ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES Management’ s Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and
Procedures We maintain disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by us in
the reports we file or submit under the Exchange Act, is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in
the SEC” s rules and forms. Our disclosure controls and procedures include, without limitation, controls and procedures designed to ensure
that information required to be disclosed by us in the reports we file under the Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to our
management, including our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding
required disclosure. In designing and evaluating the disclosure controls and procedures, management recognizes that any controls and
procedures, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable assurance of achieving the desired control objectives.
As required by Rule 13a- 15 (b) or Rule 15d- 15 (b) promulgated by the SEC under the Exchange Act, we carried out an evaluation, under
the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, of



the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this Annual
Report on Form 10- K. Based on the foregoing, our principal executive officer and principal financial officer concluded that our disclosure
controls and procedures were effective as of the end of the period covered by this Annual Report on Form 10- K at the reasonable
assurance level. Management’ s Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting Our management is responsible for
establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as such term is defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a- 15 (f)
and 15d- 15 (f). Our management conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2623-2024 based on the criteria established in Internal Control- Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on the results of its evaluation, management concluded that our internal
control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 2023-2024 . Attestation Report of the Registered Public Accounting Firm
This Annual Report on Form 10- K does not include an attestation report of our registered public accounting firm due-regarding internal
control over financial reporting because as a smaller reporting company we are not subject to an-exemption-established-by-Section
404 (b) of the JOBS-Sarbanes- Oxley Act of 2002 fer-—emerging-growth-eempantes-. Changes in Internal Controls There have been no
changes in our internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rules 13a- 15 (f) and 15d- 15 (f) under the Exchange Act) during the
quarter ended December 31, 2623-2024 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over
financial reporting. ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION During the fiscal quarter ended December 31, 2023-2024 , none of our directors
or officers (as defined in Section 16 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended) adopted or terminated any contract, instruction or
written plan for the purchase or sale of our securities that was intended to satisfy the affirmative defense conditions of Rule 10b5- 1 (¢) or
any “ non- Rule 10b5- 1 trading arrangement, ” as defined in Item 408 (a) of Regulation S- K. ITEM 9C. DISCLOSURE REGARDING
FOREIGN JURISDICTIONS THAT PREVENT INSPECTIONS Not applicable. PART III ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE
OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE Fhe-informationrequired-by-thisttem-Our business and affairs are managed under
the direction of our Board. Our Board consists of eight directors, all of whom, other than Judith Shizuru, M. D., Ph. D. and Ronald
Martell, qualify as “ independent ” under the listing standards of the Nasdaq Capital Market (“ Nasdaq ”), including Nasdaq
Listing Rule 5605 (a) (2). Our Board is divided into three staggered classes of directors. At each annual meeting of stockholders, a
class of directors will be eentainedin-elected for a three- year term to succeed the class whose term is then expiring. The following
table sets forth the names, ages as of February 25, 2025, and certain other information for each of the members of our definitive
Board: Class Age Position Director Since Current Term Expires Kurt von Emster (1) (2) (3) (4) I 57 Director *
2019 2025 Scott Brun, M. D. (2) (4) I 57 Director * 2023 2025 Vishal Kapoor (1) (3) I 49 Director * 2023 2025 Judith Shizuru, M.
D., Ph. D. (4) 11 68 Director 2018 2026 Tom Wiggans II 73 Chairperson of the Board * 2023 2026 Ronald Martell III 63 Director
2022 2027 Christian Nolet (2) (3) III 68 Director * 2021 2027 Svetlana Lucas, Ph. D. (1) III 53 Director * 2024 2027 (1) Member of
the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee of the Board (the “ Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee )
(2) Member of the Compensation Committee of the Board (the “ Compensation Committee ) (3) Member of the Audit Committee
of the Board (the “ Audit Committee ) (4) Member of the Research and Development Committee of the Board (the “ Research and
Development Committee ”’) * Independent DirectorKurt von Emster. Mr. von Emster has served as a member of our Board since
September 2021. Mr. von Emster served on Sehedule14A-the Pre- Merger Board (as defined below) from November 2019 to
September 2021. Mr. von Emster has been a Partner at Abingworth LLP, a venture capital firm, since January 2015 and as
Managing Partner since July 2015. Prior to joining Abingworth, Mr. von Emster was a co- founder and Partner of venBio LLC, a
venture capital firm, from May 2009 until January 2015. In 2001, Mr. von Emster became a General Partner at MPM Capital, a
leading biotechnology private equity firm, and launched the MPM BioEquities Fund, a crossover public and private biotechnology
hedge fund. He was the portfolio manager of this fund from inception in 2001 until his departure in 2009. Mr. von Emster’ s
investment career started in 1989 at Franklin Templeton Investments where he founded and managed several health and
biotechnology funds in the 1990s. Mr. von Emster has served on the boards of directors of Tizona Therapeutics, Inc. since
November 2020, Orbus Therapeutics, Inc. since July 2020, Launch Therapeutics since August 2021, SFJ Pharmaceuticals Inc.
since April 2020 and Iambic Therapeutics since November 2023. He previously served as a director of CymaBay Therapeutics, Inc.
(Nasdaq: CBAY) from April 2009 until its acquisition by Gilead Sciences, Inc. in March 2024, CRISPR Therapeutics AG from
March 2015 to June 2019, Vera Therapeutics, Inc. (Nasdaq: VERA) from November 2020 to May 2022, Vaxcyte, Inc. (Nasdaq:
PCVX) from June 2019 to June 2022 and Trishula Therapeutics, Inc. from December 2020 to November 2021. Mr. von Emster
holds a B. S. in Business and Economics from the University of California, Santa Barbara and is a Chartered Financial Analyst
(CFA). We believe that Mr. von Emster is qualified to serve as a member of our Board because of his extensive financial and
investment experience, as well as his experience serving on the boards of directors of other therapeutic and pharmaceutical
companies. Scott Brun, M. D. Dr. Brun has served as a member of our Board since June 2023. Dr. Brun is currently President at
Gold Mast Consulting, LL.C, an advisory firm he founded in 2019 to provide technical advice and strategic guidance related to
biopharmaceutical research and development, pipeline portfolio management, commercialization of new therapeutics and strategic
communications related to R & D activities. Dr. Brun serves as a Venture Partner at Abingworth LLP and a Senior Medical
Advisor to Launch Therapeutics. Prior to his current roles, Dr. Brun had te-two decades of experience in various leadership roles
at AbbVie, Inc., including 15 years at the predecessor company, Abbott Laboratories. The majority of his career has been focused
on leading teams and clinical development organizations across a broad variety of therapeutic areas including autoimmune,
neurologic and renal, among others. He was most recently Corporate Vice President of Scientific Affairs and Head of AbbVie
Ventures, a corporate venture fund responsible for investment opportunities within AbbVie’ s R & D therapeutic areas as well as
technology platforms of interest from March 2016 to March 2019. Previously, Dr. Brun served as Corporate Vice President and
Head of Pharmaceutical Development at AbbVie from November 2013 to March 2016. During his tenure at AbbVie, Dr. Brun
oversaw a global organization with responsibilities for AbbVie’ s entire portfolio of early- and late- stage clinical pre- registration
pipeline compounds as well as marketed compounds within oncology, neurology, immunology, renal, infectious disease, and
women’ s and men’ s health therapeutic areas. Prior to joining AbbVie, Dr. Brun spent over 15 years at Abbott Laboratories,
where he held positions of increasing leadership responsibility in drug development within the R & D organization. Dr. Brun is a
member of the boards of directors of Axial Biotherapeutics, Inc. and Trishula Therapeutics, Inc., both private, clinical- stage
biopharmaceutical companies, Forte Biosciences, Inc. (Nasdaq: FBRX), a preclinical- stage company focused on autoimmune
diseases, and Cabaletta Bio, Inc. (Nasdaq: CABA), a clinical- stage biotechnology company focused on the discovery and
development of engineered T cell therapies for autoimmune diseases. Previously, Dr. Brun served as a Senior Advisor to the



business development team at Horizon Therapeutics plc (Nasdaq: HZNP) from 2020 to 2023. Dr. Brun received his B. S. in
Biochemistry from the University of Illinois at Urbana- Champaign and earned his M. D. from the Johns Hopkins University
School of Medicine. He completed his residency in ophthalmology at the Massachusetts Eye and Ear Infirmary, Harvard Medical
School. We believe that Dr. Brun is qualified to serve as a member of our Board because of his extensive background in research,
development and commercialization of product candidates, as well as his current and prior service with pharmaceutical and
biotechnology companies on matters pertaining to strategy and operations. Vishal Kapoor. Mr. Kapoor has served as a member of
our Board since February 2023. He has been a Partner of Avego Management, LL.C, an affiliate of Velan Capital Partners LP,
since January 2021, leading their life sciences venture investing strategy. He was previously with Amplitude Healthcare Acquisition
Corporation from January 2020 until our merger with it in September 2021. Prior to that, Mr. Kapoor was Chief Business Officer
of Iveric bio, Inc. (formerly known as Ophthotech) from April 2015 to December 2019. At Iveric bio, Inc., he was responsible for
acquiring an industry- leading portfolio of gene therapy and therapeutic assets in ophthalmology. From October 2014 to April
2015, Mr. Kapoor was Director of Corporate Development at NPS Pharmaceuticals, Inc., which Shire PLC acquired in 2015 for
approximately $ S. 2 billion. From 2005 to 2014, Mr. Kapoor spent nine years at Genentech, Inc. in various positions, including
leading strategy for ophthalmology and central nervous system pipeline assets, Lucentis marketing, commercial assessments for
business development and medical affairs. In addition, Mr. Kapoor has previously worked at Pfizer Inc. Mr. Kapoor received an
MBA in Finance and Management from Columbia Business School in 2004 and a B. A. in Biology from Columbia University in
1997. We believe that Mr. Kapoor is qualified to serve as a member of our Board in light of his years of experience in the life
sciences industry, including with respect to acquisition, strategy, marketing and business development. Judith Shizuru, M. D., Ph.
D. Dr. Shizuru has served as a member of our Board since September 2021. Dr. Shizuru is our scientific co- founder and served as
a member of the board of directors of our Company prior to the merger with Amplitude Healthcare Acquisition Corporation (the «
Pre- Merger Board ) from March 2018 to September 2021 and as Chair of its Scientific Advisory Board from December 2019 to
September 2021. Dr. Shizuru is a Professor of Medicine (Blood and Marrow Transplantation) and Pediatrics (Stem Cell
Transplantation) at Stanford. Dr. Shizuru is a member of the Stanford Blood and Marrow Transplantation and Cellular Therapy
(BMT- CT) faculty, the Stanford Immunology Program, the Stanford Cancer Institute, and the Institute for Stem Cell Biology and
Regenerative Medicine. Dr. Shizuru received a Bachelor’ s degree from Bennington College and an M. D. and Ph. D. from the
Stanford University School of Medicine. She trained as a resident in adult internal medicine at the University of California, San
Francisco, and in the sub- specialty of hematology at Stanford. Dr. Shizuru has been attending on the Stanford BM- CT clinical
service since 1997, and she oversees a research laboratory. Her laboratory is focused on understanding the cellular and molecular
basis of resistance to engraftment of transplanted allogeneic hematopoietic cells, and the way in which bone marrow grafts modify
immune responses including the induction of immune tolerance. Dr. Shizuru’ s laboratory has developed the translational science
of anti- CD117 antibodies, and was the first to advance an anti- human CD117 antibody as a transplant conditioning agent from the
laboratory to the clinic. Dr. Shizuru has over 160 publications in the fields of immunology and hematopoietic cell transplantation.
We believe that Dr. Shizuru is qualified to serve as a member of our Board because of her expertise in immunology, antibody and
cellular therapies, and transplant conditioning agents, as well as her knowledge of our technology and product candidates, having
co- founded our Company in 2018. Tom Wiggans. Mr. Wiggans has served as a member of our Board and as its Chairperson since
November 2023. He most recently served as the Chief Executive Officer and chair of the board of directors of Pardes Biosciences,
Inc. (Nasdaq: PRDS) from March 2022 until its merger with MediPacific, Inc. in August 2023. Mr. Wiggans founded Dermira, Inc.
(Nasdaq: DERM) in August 2010, and served as its Chief Executive Officer and a member of its board of directors from August
2010 and as the chairman of its board of directors from April 2014 until Dermira’ s acquisition by Eli Lilly and Company in 2020.
From October 2007, Mr. Wiggans served as chairman of the board of directors of Peplin, Inc. and in August 2008, he became its
Chief Executive Officer, serving in these positions until Peplin’ s acquisition by LEO Pharma Inc. in November 2009. Previously,
Mr. Wiggans served as chief executive officer of Connetics USA from 1994, and as chairman of the board of directors of Connetics
from January 2006 until December 2006 when Connetics was acquired by Stiefel Laboratories, Inc. From 1992 to 1994, Mr.
Wiggans served as President and Chief Operating Officer of CytoTherapeutics, Inc., a biotechnology company. From 1980 to 1992,
Mr. Wiggans served at Ares- Serono S. A. in various management positions, including as President of its U. S. pharmaceutical
operations and Managing Director of its U. K. pharmaceutical operations. Mr. Wiggans began his career with Eli Lilly and
Company. He currently serves on the board of directors of Annexon, Inc. (Nasdaq: ANNX), a position he has held since February
2017. Mr. Wiggans has previously served on the boards of various industry organizations, educational institutions and private and
public companies, including service on the boards of directors of Cymabay Therapeutics, Inc. (Nasdaq: CBAY) from April 2021
until its acquisition by Gilead Sciences, Inc. in March 2024, Onyx Pharmaceuticals Inc. from March 2005 until its acquisition by
Amgen Inc. in October 2013, Sangamo Biosciences, Inc. from June 2008 until June 2012, Somaxon Pharmaceuticals, Inc. from
June 2008 until May 2012, Forma Therapeutics Holdings, Inc. from September 2020 until its acquisition by Novo Nordisk A /S in
October 2022, and as chairman of the board of directors of Excaliard Pharmaceuticals, Inc. from October 2010 until its acquisition
by Pfizer Inc. in December 2011. Mr. Wiggans was instrumental in the formation of the Biotechnology Industry Organization and
served as a member of its board of directors for many years. He is currently a member of the Board of Trustees of the University of
Kansas Endowment Association. Mr. Wiggans holds a B. S. in Pharmacy from the University of Kansas and an M. B. A. from
Southern Methodist University. We believe that Mr. Wiggans is qualified to serve as a member of our Board because of his
leadership and business and product development expertise, as well as his extensive experience in the pharmaceutical and
therapeutics industry at both the executive and board level. Ronald A. Martell. Mr. Martell has served as our President, Chief
Executive Officer and a member of our Board since March 2022. Mr. Martell has more than 30 years’ experience building and
managing unique businesses in the biotech industry. Mr. Martell has served as a Director of MorphImmune, Inc. since April 2021,
and served as the Chief Executive Officer and President from April 2021 to March 2022. Prior to joining MorphImmune, Inc., Mr.
Martell served as the President and CEO of Nuvelution Pharma, Inc. from November 2019 to March 2021. He was also the Co-
Founder and Executive Chairman of Indapta Therapeutics, Inc. from April 2017 to March 2022. Mr. Martell was the Co- Founder
and Executive Chairman of Orca Bio from January 2016 to June 2019 and the Co- Founder and CEO of Achieve Life Sciences,
Inc. from March 2015 to December 2017, where he led the merger of the company with OncoGenex Pharmaceuticals, Inc. in
August 2017. He served on the board of directors of Plus Therapeutics, Inc. (previously Cytori Therapeutics, Inc.) (Nasdaq: PSTYV)
from December 2016 until December 2019. He served as Chief Executive Officer of Sevion Therapeutics, Inc. from June 2014 to



January 2015 and Executive Chairman of KaloBios Pharmaceuticals, Inc. from February 2015 to October 2015. Prior to Sevion,
Mr. Martell was President and CEO of NeurogesX, Inc. from January 2012 to July 2013 and sold the company’ s assets to Acorda
Therapeutics, Inc. Prior to NeurogesX, he was Chief Executive Officer of Poniard Pharmaceuticals, Inc. from February 2010 to
March 2013. Before joining Poniard, he served in the capacity of the Office of the CEO and as Senior Vice President of Commercial
Operations at ImClone Systems. Mr. Martell built ImClone Systems’ Commercial Operations and field sales force to market and
commercialize Erbitux ® with partners Bristol- Myers Squibb and Merck KGaA. Prior to joining ImClone Systems, Mr. Martell
worked for 10 years at Genentech, Inc. in a variety of positions, the last of which was Group Manager, Oncology Products. At
Genentech, he was responsible for the launch of Herceptin ® for metastatic HER- 2 positive breast cancer and Rituxan ® for non-
Hodgkin’ s lymphoma. Mr. Martell began his career at Roche Pharmaceuticals. We believe that Mr. Martell is qualified to serve as
a member of our Board because of his depth of experience in oncology and cell therapy development and commercialization, as
well as deep relationships across the industry. Christian W. Nolet. Mr. Nolet has served as a member of our Board since September
2021. Mr. Nolet has more than 44 years of experience in various leadership roles in the audit services profession and in the life
sciences industry. Mr. Nolet was an audit partner at Ernst & Young LLP (“ EY ”), a professional services firm, from November
2001 to June 2019. While at EY, Mr. Nolet led the West EY Life Sciences Industry Group. He served on both the Executive
Committee and Finance Committee (Chair) of the California Life Sciences industry association from 2000 through February 2024.
Mr. Nolet was also a member of the Finance & Investment Committee and Emerging Companies Section of BIO (the Biotechnology
Innovation Organization). Prior to EY, Mr. Nolet was a partner at PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP from 1991 to 2001. Mr. Nolet
holds a B. S. in Accounting from San Diego State University and is a retired Certified Public Accountant in California. Mr. Nolet
has served on the board of directors of Revance Therapeutics, Inc. (Nasdaq: RVNC) from July 2019 to its acquisition in February
2025, and currently serves on the board of directors of ArriVent Biopharma, Inc. (Nasdaq: AVBP) since September 2023. He was
previously on the board of directors of PolarityTE, Inc. (Nasdaq: PTE) from April 2020 to January 2023 and on the board of
directors of Ambrx Biopharma Inc. (Nasdaq: AMAM) from January 2021 to November 2021. Mr. Nolet also served on the board of
directors of Viela Bio, Inc. (Nasdaq: VIE) from August 2019 until it was acquired in March 2021. We believe that Mr. Nolet is
qualified to serve as a member of our Board because of his experience with multiple life sciences companies ranging from growing
venture- capital- backed start- ups to Fortune 100 companies, and his financial expertise as a former audit partner and retired
California Certified Public Accountant. Svetlana Lucas, Ph. D. Dr. Lucas has served as a member of our Board since June 2024.
Dr. Lucas has served as the Chief Business Officer at Scribe Therapeutics Inc., a genetic medicine company, since June 2019,
where she established multiple strategic collaborations with pharmaceutical companies, including Sanofi and Prevail Therapeutics,
a subsidiary of Eli Lilly and Company. Previously, she served as Senior Vice President, Business Development at Tizona
Therapeutics, Inc. (Tizona), a clinical- stage immunotherapy company, from January 2019 to June 2019, and prior to that as Vice
President, Business Development from June 2015 to January 2019, where she was responsible for the company’ s business
development strategy and transactions, including a global strategic collaboration with AbbVie Inc. Before joining Tizona, Dr.
Lucas was Head of Oncology and Inflammation External R & D Team at Amgen Inc. from August 2014 to July 2015 where she
oversaw business development activities, including Amgen’ s strategic cancer immunotherapy research collaboration and licensing
agreement with Kite Pharma, and collaborated with Amgen Ventures on several investments in oncology and inflammation. Dr.
Lucas joined Amgen following the acquisition of Onyx Pharmaceuticals, Inc., where she served as a Director, Corporate
Development from September 2012 to August 2014 and spearheaded the company’ s oncology partnering strategy and due
diligence of new opportunities. She held positions of increasing responsibility in strategy, business development, and strategic
marketing at Amgen from January 2003 to September 2005, PDL BioPharma / Facet Biotech (acquired by Abbvie) from
September 2005 to July 2010, and XOMA Corporation from July 2010 to September 2012. From February 2001 to January 2003,
Dr. Lucas was a strategy consultant in the Life Sciences practice of McKinsey & Company, Inc. She received her undergraduate
degree in Biology from Moscow State University, and her Ph. D. in Molecular Biology and Biochemistry from the California
Institute of Technology. Dr. Lucas has served on the board of directors of aTyr Pharma, Inc. (Nasdaq: ATYR) since June 2019 and
as an advisor to Radar Therapeutics since October 2023. We believe that Dr. Lucas is qualified to serve as a member of our Board
due to her extensive business development experience in the biotherapeutics industry. The table below provides an enhanced
disclosure regarding the diversity of our Board members and nominees. Each of the categories listed in the below table has the
meaning as it is used in Nasdaq Rule 5605 (f). Board Diversity Matrix As of February 25, 2025 Board Size: Total Number of
Directors: 8 Male Female Non- Binary Gender Undisclosed Part I: Gender Identity Number of directors based on gender identity
— — Part II: Demographic Background African American or Black — — — — Alaskan Native or Native American — — — —
Asian — — — Hispanic or Latinx — — — — Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander — — — — White — — Two or More Races or
Ethnicities LGBTQ Did not Disclose Demographic Background Composition of Our Board of Directors The primary
responsibilities of our Board are to provide oversight, strategic guidance, counseling and direction to our management. Our Board
meets on a regular basis and on an ad hoc basis as required. Our Board currently consists of eight directors. Our Certificate of
Incorporation provides that the authorized number of directors may be filed-with-the-Seeuritiesand-Exehange—- changed
Commisston-in-eenneetionronly by resolutions approved by a majority of the authorized number of directors constituting our Board.
In accordance with our 2024-Certificate of Incorporation, our Board is divided into three classes with staggered three- year terms.
At each annual meeting of stockholders €, the successors to directors whose terms are expiring will be elected to serve from the time
of election and qualification until the third annual meeting following election. Our directors are divided among the the-three classes
as follows: e the Class I directors are Mr. von Emster, Dr. Brun and Mr. Kapoor, and their terms will expire at our annual meeting
of stockholders to be held in 2025; e the Class II directors are Dr. Shizuru and Mr. Wiggans, and their terms will expire at our
annual meeting of stockholders to be held in 2026; and e the Class III directors are Mr. Martell, Mr. Nolet and Dr. Lucas, and their
terms will expire at our annual meeting of stockholders to be held in 2027. Any additional directorships resulting from an increase
in the number of directors will be distributed among the three classes so that, as nearly as possible, each class will consist of one-
third of the directors. The division of our Board into three classes with staggered three- year terms may delay or prevent a change
of our management or a change in control. Director Independence Under the listing requirements and rules of Nasdagq,
independent directors must comprise a majority of our Board as a listed company. Our Board has undertaken a review of its
composition, the composition of its committees and the independence of each director. Based upon information requested from and
provided by each director concerning the director’ s background, employment and affiliations, including family relationships, our



Board has determined that each of Mr. von Emster, Dr. Lucas, Mr. Kapoor, Dr. Brun, Mr. Wiggans and Mr. Nolet do not have
any relationships that would interfere with the exercise of independent judgment in carrying out the responsibilities of a director
and that each of these directors is * independent 2024-Proxy-Statement-" J;-whteh-we-expeet-to-file-as that term is defined under the
applicable rules and regulations of the SEC and the listing requirements and rules of Nasdaq. Mr. Martell was determined not to be
independent as fater-than120-days-after-the— he end-of-currently serves as our President and Chief Executive Officer. Our Board
further determined that Dr. Shizuru is not independent due to the fisealsrear-eevered-by-fact that she provides non- employee
consulting services to our Company (See “ Certain Relationships and Related Party Transactions — Dr. Shizuru Consulting
Agreement ” in Part ITI, Item 13 of this Annual Report on Form 10- K for additional information). In making these determinations ,
our Board considered the current and prior relationships that each non- employee director has with our Company and all other
facts and circumstances our Board deemed relevant in determining his or her independence, including the beneficial ownership of
our capital stock with respect to each non- employee director. Board Leadership Structure Mr. Wiggans currently serves as the
non- employee Chairperson of our Board. In such role, Mr. Wiggans has authority, among other things, to call and preside over
our Board meetings, to set meeting agendas and to determine materials to be distributed to our Board. As the roles of Chairperson
of our Board and Chief Executive Officer are separated between Mr. Wiggans and Mr. Martell, respectively, our Board believes
our leadership structure enhances the accountability of our Chief Executive Officer to our Board and encourages balanced decision
making. In addition, our Board believes that this structure provides and-—- an environment in which the independent directors are
fully informed, have significant input into the content of Board meetings, and can provide objective and thoughtful oversight of
management. Each of the committees of our Board, other than the Research and Development Committee of our Board (the “
Research and Development Committee ), is ineerporated-comprised solely of independent directors that provide strong
independent leadership for each of these committees. Our independent directors generally meet in executive session after each
regular meeting of our Board. At each such meeting, the presiding director for each executive session of our Board is an
independent or non- employee director. Our Board will continue to evaluate this repert-leadership structure on an ongoing basis
based on factors such as the experience of the applicable individuals and the current business environment. Board Meetings and
Committees Our Board may establish the authorized number of directors from time to time by resolutions adopted by a majority
of the authorized number of directors constituting our Board. Our Board currently consists of eight members. During our fiscal
year ended December 31, 2024, our Board held six meetings (including regularly scheduled and special meetings), and acted by
written consent three times. Each director attended at least 75 % of the aggregate of (i) the total number of meetings of our Board
held during the period for which the director had been a director and (ii) the total number of meetings held by all committees of
our Board on which the director served during the periods that the director served. Although our corporate governance guidelines
do not have a formal policy regarding attendance by members of our Board at annual meetings of stockholders, we encourage, but
do not require, our directors to attend. Those who do attend are expected to answer appropriate questions from stockholders.
Ronald Martell attended our annual meeting of stockholders in 2024. Our Board has established an Audit Committee, a
Compensation Committee, a Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee and a Research and Development Committee.
The composition and responsibilities of each of the committees of our Board are described below. Each committee of our Board has
a written charter approved by our Board. Copies of each charter are posted in the “ Investors- Corporate Governance ” portion of
our website at ir. jaspertherapeutics. com / corporate- governance / documents- charters. The reference to our website address does
not constitute incorporation by reference of —Te—llk eﬁeﬁt—t-h&t—we—ée-mformatmn contalned at or available or accessible through our
website, and you should not consider it to be a part of this
Annual Report on Form 10- K . Members serve on these commlttees untll their res1gnat10n or untll 0therw1se determined by our
Board. Our Board may establish other committees as it deems necessary or appropriate from time to time. The Audit Committee of
our Board (the “ Audit Committee ) consists of Mr. Nolet, Mr. von Emster and Mr. Kapoor. Our Board has determined that each
member of our Audit Committee satisfies the independence requirements under Nasdaq listing standards and Rule 10A- 3 (b) (1)
of the Exchange Act. The chairperson of our Audit Committee is Mr. Nolet. Our Board has determined that Mr. Nolet is an “ audit
committee financial expert ” within the meaning of SEC regulations. Each member of our Audit Committee can read and
understand fundamental financial statements in accordance with applicable requirements. In arriving at these determinations, our
Board has examined each Audit Committee member’ s scope of experience and the nature of his employment. The primary
purpose of our Audit Committee is to discharge the responsibilities of our Board with respect to our corporate accounting and
financial reporting processes, systems of internal control and financial statement audits, and to oversee our independent registered
public accounting firm. Specific responsibilities of our Audit Committee include, among other things: e evaluating, appointing,
determining the compensation of, retaining, overseeing and evaluating our independent registered public accounting firm and any
other registered public accounting firm engaged for the purpose of performing other review or attest services for us; e prior to
commencement of the audit engagement, reviewing and discussing with the independent registered public accounting firm a
written disclosure by the prospective independent registered public accounting firm of all relationships between us, or persons in
financial oversight roles with us, and such independent registered public accounting firm or their affiliates; ® determining and
approving engagements of the independent registered public accounting firm, prior to commencement of the engagement, and the
scope of and plans for the audit; e monitoring the rotation of partners of the independent registered public accounting firm on our
audit engagement; e reviewing with management and the independent registered public accounting firm any fraud that includes
management or the-other employees who have a significant role in our internal control over financial reporting and any significant
changes in internal controls; e establishing and overseeing procedures for the receipt, retention and treatment of complaints
regarding accounting, internal accounting controls or auditing matters and the confidential and anonymous submission by
employees of concerns regarding questionable accounting or auditing matters; ® reviewing the results of management’ s efforts to
monitor compliance with our programs and policies designed to ensure compliance with laws and rules; ® overseeing our
programs, policies, and procedures related to our information technology systems, including information asset security, data
protection, data privacy, cybersecurity and back- up of information systems, and the steps taken to monitor, mitigate and control
such exposures and our plans to mitigate cybersecurity risks and to respond to data breaches; ® providing oversight regarding our
policies with respect to risk assessment and risk management, including enterprise risk and risks pertaining to our financial,
accounting and tax matters; ® overseeing insurance coverage for our directors and executive officers; and e reviewing and
discussing with management and the independent registered public accounting firm the results of the annual audit and the




independent registered public accounting firm’ s assessment of the quality and acceptability of our accounting principles and
practices and all other matters required to be communicated to our Audit Committee by the independent registered public
accounting firm under generally accepted accounting standards, the results of the independent registered public accounting firm’ s
review of our quarterly financial information prior to public disclosure and our disclosures in our periodic reports filed with the
SEC. Our Audit Committee reviews, discusses and assesses its own performance and composition at least annually. Our Audit
Committee also periodically reviews and assesses the adequacy of its charter, including its role and responsibilities as outlined in its
charter, and recommends any proposed changes to our Board for its consideration and approval. Our Audit Committee held five
meetings during fiscal year 2024 and acted by written consent one time during fiscal year 2024. Our Compensation Committee
consists of Mr. von Emster, Mr. Nolet and Dr. Brun. The chairperson of our Compensation Committee is Mr. Nolet. Our Board
has determined that each member of our Compensation Committee is independent under the listing standards of Nasdaq and a «
non- employee director ” as defined in Rule 16b- 3 promulgated under the Exchange Act. The primary purpose of our
Compensation Committee is to discharge the responsibilities of our Board in overseeing our compensation policies, plans and
programs and to review and determine the compensation to be paid to our executive officers, directors and other senior
management, as appropriate. Specific responsibilities of our Compensation Committee include, among other things: e reviewing,
modifying and approving (or, if it deems appropriate, making recommendations to our Board regarding) our overall compensation
strategy and policies, and reviewing, modifying and approving corporate performance goals and objectives relevant to the
compensation of our executive officers and other senior management; e determining and approving (or, if it deems appropriate,
recommending to our Board for determination and approval) the compensation and terms of employment of our Chief Executive
Officer, including seeking to achieve an appropriate level of risk and reward in determining the long- term incentive component of
the Chief Executive Officer’ s compensation; ® determining and approving (or, if it deems appropriate, recommending to our
Board for determination and approval) the compensation and terms of employment of our executive officers and other members of
senior management, including seeking to achieve an appropriate level of risk and reward; e reviewing and approving (or, if it
deems appropriate, making recommendations to our Board regarding) the terms of employment agreements, severance
agreements, change- of- control protections and other compensatory arrangements for our executive officers and other senior
management; ® conducting periodic reviews of the base compensation levels of all of our employees generally; ® reviewing human
capital management strategies, programs and policies, including those relating to our workplace environment and culture; e
reviewing and approving the type and amount of compensation to be paid or awarded to non- employee directors; ® reviewing and
administering the “ clawback policy ” applicable to our executive officers, in accordance with applicable rules and regulations of
the SEC and Nasdaq; e reviewing and approving the adoption, amendment and termination of our stock option plans, stock
appreciation rights plans, pension and profit sharing plans, incentive plans, stock bonus plans, stock purchase plans, bonus plans,
deferred compensation plans, 401 (k) plans, supplemental retirement plans and similar programs, if any; and administering all
such plans, establishing guidelines, interpreting plan documents, selecting participants, approving grants and awards and
exercising such other power and authority as may be permitted or required under such plans; e reviewing our incentive
compensation arrangements to determine whether such arrangements encourage excessive risk- taking, reviewing and discussing at
least annually the relationship between our risk management policies and practices and compensation and evaluating
compensation policies and practices that could mitigate any such risk; and e reviewing and recommending to our Board for
approval the frequency with which we conduct a vote on executive compensation, taking into account the results of the most recent
stockholder advisory vote on the frequency of the vote on executive compensation, and reviewing and approving the proposals
regarding the frequency of the vote on executive compensation to be included in our annual meeting proxy statements. In addition,
once we cease to be a “ smaller reporting company > as defined in the rules and regulations of the SEC, the responsibilities of our
Compensation Committee will include reviewing and discussing with management our Compensation Discussion and Analysis, and
recommending to our Board that the Compensation Discussion and Analysis be approved for inclusion in our Annual Reports on
Form 10- K, registration statements and annual meeting proxy statements. Under its charter, our Compensation Committee may
form, and delegate authority to, subcommittees as appropriate. Our Compensation Committee reviews, discusses and assesses its
own performance and composition at least annually. Our Compensation Committee also periodically reviews and assesses the
adequacy of its charter, including its role and responsibilities as outlined in its charter, and recommends any proposed changes to
our Board for its consideration and approval. Our Compensation Committee held four meetings during fiscal year 2024 and acted
by written consent six times during fiscal year 2024. Compensation Committee Processes and Procedures Typically, our
Compensation Committee meets at least quarterly and with greater frequency if necessary. The agenda for each meeting is usually
developed by the chairperson of our Compensation Committee, in consultation with the Chief Executive Officer. Our
Compensation Committee meets regularly in executive session. However, from time to time, various members of management and
other employees as well as outside advisors or consultants may be invited by our Compensation Committee to make presentations,
to provide financial or other background information or advice or to otherwise participate in Compensation Committee meetings.
The Chief Executive Officer may not participate in, or be present during, any deliberations or determinations of our Compensation
Committee regarding his compensation or individual performance objectives. The charter of our Compensation Committee grants
our Compensation Committee full access to all of our books, records, facilities and personnel. In addition, under the charter, our
Compensation Committee has the authority to obtain, at our expense, advice and assistance from compensation consultants and
internal and external legal, accounting or other advisors and other external resources that our Compensation Committee considers
necessary or appropriate in the performance of its duties. Our Compensation Committee has direct responsibility for the oversight
of the work of any consultants or advisers engaged for the purpose of advising our Compensation Committee. In particular, our
Compensation Committee has the sole authority to retain, in its sole discretion, compensation consultants to assist in its evaluation
of executive and director compensation, including the authority to approve the consultant’ s reasonable fees and other retention
terms. Under the charter, our Compensation Committee may select, or receive advice from, a compensation consultant, legal
counsel or other adviser to our Compensation Committee, other than in- house legal counsel and certain other types of advisers,
only after taking into consideration six factors, prescribed by the SEC and Nasdagq, that bear upon the adviser’ s independence;
however, there is no requirement that any adviser be independent. For purposes of 2024 compensation, our Compensation
Committee utilized Alpine Rewards (“ Alpine ) as its compensation consultant. In connection with assessing 2024 compensation for
our directors, officers and other employees, Alpine provided our Compensation Committee with general compensation consultant



services. The Compensation Committee assessed whether the work of Alpine as a compensation consultant has raised any conflict
of interest, taking into consideration the following factors: (i) the provision of other services, if any, to us by Alpine; (ii) the amount
of fees we paid to Alpine; (iii) Alpine’ s policies and procedures that are designed to prevent conflicts of interest; (iv) any business
or personal relationship of Alpine or the individual compensation advisors employed by the firm with an executive officer of the
Company; (v) any business or personal relationship of the individual compensation advisors with any member of Alpine; and (vi)
any shares of our common stock owned by Alpine or the individual compensation advisors employed by the firm. Our
Compensation Committee has determined, based on its analysis of the above factors, that the work of Alpine and the individual
compensation advisors employed by Alpine as our compensation consultant has not created any conflict of interest. Our
Compensation Committee also assessed the independence of Alpine pursuant to SEC rules and concluded that the work of Alpine
has not raised any conflict of interest. Our Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee consists of Mr. von Emster, Dr.
Lucas and Mr. Kapoor. The chairperson of our Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee is Mr. von Emster. Our Board
has determined that each member of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee is independent under the listing
standards of Nasdaq. Specific responsibilities of our Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee include, among other
things: e making recommendations to our Board regarding corporate governance issues; ® evaluating the composition, size,
organization and governance of the Board and its committees to ensure that they appropriately reflect the knowledge, skills,
integrity, ethics, diversity (including that of gender, sexual orientation, disability, age, race, ethnicity or national origin, global
perspective and experience, business experience, functional expertise, stakeholder expectations, culture and geography), and other
characteristics required to fulfill their respective duties, and determine future requirements; ® identifying, reviewing and
evaluating candidates to serve as directors (consistent with criteria approved by our Board); e determining the minimum
qualifications for service on our Board; e reviewing and evaluating incumbent directors and Board performance generally; o
instituting and overseeing director orientation and director continuing education programs; e serving as a focal point for
communication among candidates, non- committee directors and our management; ® recommending to our Board for selection
candidates to serve as nominees for director for the annual meeting of stockholders; e assessing Board member independence; ®
making other recommendations to our Board regarding matters relating to the directors; ® reviewing succession plans for our
Chief Executive Officer and our other executive officers; ® reviewing and overseeing matters of corporate responsibility and
sustainability, including potential long- and short- term trends and impacts to our business of environmental, social and
governance issues, and our public reporting on these topics; ® overseeing our environmental, social and governance programs and
strategies; and e considering any recommendations for nominees and proposals submitted by stockholders. Our Nominating and
Corporate Governance Committee periodically reviews, discusses and assesses the performance of our Board and the committees of
our Board. In fulfilling this responsibility, our Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee seeks input from senior
management, our Board and others, which may include external advisors. In assessing our Board, our Nominating and Corporate
Governance Committee evaluates the overall composition of our Board, our Board’ s contribution as a whole and its effectiveness
in serving our best interests and the best interests of our stockholders and, following the assessment process, our Nominating and
Corporate Governance Committee may recommend changes in the composition of our Board, changes in the size of our Board, or
other recommended future additions or changes to our Board structure based on our clinical programs and business focus. Our
Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee reviews, discusses and assesses its own performance and composition at least
annually. Our Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee also periodically reviews and assesses the adequacy of its
charter, including its role and responsibilities as outlined in its charter, and recommends any proposed changes to our Board for its
consideration and approval. Our Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee held two meetings during fiscal year 2024 and
acted by written consent three times during fiscal year 2024. Our Research and Development Committee is an ad hoc committee of
our Board that was formed in May 2022. Our Research and Development Committee consists of Dr. Brun, Dr. Shizuru and Mr.
von Emster. The chairperson of our Research and Development Committee is Dr. Brun. Specific responsibilities of our Research
and Development Committee include, among other things: (i) facilitating the technical review of our science and technology
strategy research and development and product innovation and strategy; and (ii) reporting to our Board regarding our Research
and Development Committee’ s activities, including its reviews and assessments of our internal technology development, technology
assessment, technology review and technical goals and research and development strategies, and any other matters deemed
appropriate by our Research and Development Committee. Our Research and Development Committee held 4 meetings during
fiscal year 2024 and did not act by written consent during fiscal year 2024. Identifying and Evaluating Director Nominees Our
Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee is responsible for identifying, reviewing, evaluating and recommending
candidates for nomination to our Board, including candidates to fill any vacancies that may occur. Our Nominating and Corporate
Governance Committee assesses the qualifications of candidates in light of the policies and principles in our corporate governance
guidelines and may also engage third- party search firms to identify director candidates. Our Nominating and Corporate
Governance Committee may conduct interviews, detailed questionnaires and comprehensive background checks or use any other
means that it deems appropriate to gather information to evaluate potential candidates. Based on the results of the evaluation
process, our Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee recommends candidates to our Board for approval as director
nominees for election to our Board. In assessing our Board, our Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee will evaluate
the overall composition of our Board, our Board’ s contribution as a whole and its effectiveness in serving our best interests and the
best interests of our stockholders. Minimum Requirements Our Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee believes that
candidates for director should have certain minimum qualifications, including being able to read and understand basic financial
statements, being over 21 years of age and having the highest personal integrity and ethics. Some of the qualifications that our
Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee will also consider include, but are not limited to, such candidate’ s (i) level of
expertise, (ii) potential conflicts of interests or other commitments, (iii) demonstrated excellence in his or her field, (iv) ability to
exercise sound business judgment, (v) diversity with respect to personal background, perspective and experience and (vi)
commitment to rigorously representing our stockholders’ long- term interests. Our Nominating and Corporate Governance
Committee also reviews director candidates in the context of the current size and composition of our Board, our operating
requirements and our stockholders’ long- term interests. Although our Board does not maintain a specific policy with respect to
board diversity, our Board values diversity as a factor in selecting nominees. Our Nominating and Corporate Governance
Committee considers a broad range of backgrounds and experiences and may consider factors including gender, racial diversity,



age, skills, and such other factors as it deems appropriate to maintain an appropriate balance of knowledge, experience and
capability. In the case of incumbent directors whose terms of office are set to expire, our Nominating and Corporate Governance
Committee reviews such directors’ overall service to us during their term, including the number of meetings attended, level of
participation, quality of performance, and any other relationships and transactions that might impair such directors’
independence. In the case of new director candidates, our Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee also determines
whether the nominee is independent for purposes of Nasdagq listing rules. Stockholder Recommendations and Nominations to the
Board of Directors Stockholders may submit recommendations for director candidates to our Nominating and Corporate
Governance Committee by sending the individual’ s name and qualifications to our Corporate Secretary at Jasper Therapeutics,
Inc., 2200 Bridge Pkwy Suite # 102, Redwood City, CA 94065, who will forward all recommendations to our Nominating and
Corporate Governance Committee. Our Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee will evaluate any candidates
recommended by stockholders against the same criteria and pursuant to the same policies and procedures applicable to the
evaluation of candidates proposed by directors or management. Stockholder and Other Interested Party Communications Our
Board provides to every stockholder and any other interested parties the ability to communicate with our Board as a whole, and
with individual directors on our Board, through an established process for stockholder communication. For a communication
directed to our Board as a whole, stockholders and other interested parties may send such communication to our Corporate
Secretary at Jasper Therapeutics, Inc., 2200 Bridge Pkwy Suite # 102, Redwood City, CA 94065, Attn: Board of Directors ¢ / o
Corporate Secretary. For a stockholder or other interested party communication directed to an individual director in his or her
capacity as a member of our Board, stockholders and other interested parties may send such communication to the attention of the
individual director at Jasper Therapeutics, Inc., 2200 Bridge Pkwy Suite # 102, Redwood City, CA 94065, Attn: Name of Director.
Our Corporate Secretary, in consultation with appropriate members of our Board as necessary, will review all incoming
communications and, if appropriate, all such communications will be forwarded to the appropriate member or members of our
Board, or if none is specified, to the Chairperson of our Board. Corporate Governance Guidelines and Code of Business Conduct
and Ethics Our Board has adopted corporate governance guidelines that address items such as the qualifications and
responsibilities of our directors and director candidates and corporate governance policies and standards applicable to us in
general. In addition, our Board has adopted a code of business conduct and ethics that applies to our directors, officers and
employees, including our principal executive officer, principal financial officer, principal accounting officer or controller, and
persons performing similar functions. Our code of business conduct and ethics is available under the “ Investors- Corporate
Governance ” section of our website at ir. jaspertherapeutics com / corporate- governance / documents- charters. In addition, we
intend to post on our website all disclosures that are required by thisHtem—106-law or the listing standards of Nasdaq concerning any
amendments to, or waivers from, any provision of the code . HFEM-H-EXECUTIVE-COMPENSATON-The informationrequired-by
this-itenrisreference to our website address does not constitute ineerperated-incorporation by reference frem-of the information

contained in the-2624-Prexy-Statement-or available or accessible through our website . and you should whieh-we-expeetto-file-not
consider it to be a part later-than126-days-after-the-end-of the-fiseal-yeareovered-by-this Annual Report on Form 10- K. Risk

Management Management is responsible for the day- to- day management of risks we face, while our Board, as a whole and
assisted by its committees, is responsible for the oversight of risk management. In its risk oversight role, our Board has the
responsibility to satisfy itself that the risk management processes designed and implemented by management are appropriate and
functioning as designed. Our Board is responsible for risk oversight. Our Board believes that it is essential for effective risk
management and oversight that there be open communication between management and our Board. Our Board meets with our
Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and other members of the senior management team at quarterly meetings of our
Board, where, among other topics, they discuss strategy and risks facing us, as well as at such other times as they deem
appropriate. Our Audit Committee assists our Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities with respect to risk management in
the areas of internal control over financial reporting, accounting, tax disclosure controls and procedures, enterprise risk and legal
and regulatory compliance, and discusses with management and the independent auditor guidelines and policies with respect to
risk assessment and risk management. Our Audit Committee also reviews our major financial, cybersecurity and information
technology risk exposures and the steps management has taken to monitor and control these exposures. Our Audit Committee also
monitors certain key risks on a regular basis throughout the fiscal year, such as risk associated with internal control over financial
reporting and liquidity risk. Our Compensation Committee assesses risks created by the incentives inherent in our compensation
policies and evaluates our compensation policies and practices that could mitigate any such risks. Our Nominating and Corporate
Governance Committee assists our Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities with respect to the management of risk
associated with board organization, membership and structure, and environmental, social and corporate governance matters. Qur
full Board also reviews strategic and operational risk in the context of reports from the management team, receives reports on all
significant committee activities at regular meetings of our Board, and evaluates the risks inherent in significant transactions. We
have established a scientific advisory board. We regularly seek advice and input from these experienced scientific leaders on
matters related to our research and development programs. Our scientific advisory board consists of experts across a range of key
disciplines relevant to our programs and science. We intend to continue to leverage the broad expertise of our advisors by seeking
their counsel on important topics relating to our research and development programs. Executive Officers The following table
identifies certain information about our executive officers as of February 25, 2025. Our executive officers are appointed by, and
serve at the discretion of, our Board and hold office until his successor is duly elected and qualified or until his earlier resignation
or removal. There are no family relationships among any of our directors or executive officers. Name Age Position (s) Ronald
Martell President, Chief Executive Officer and Director Herb Cross Chief Financial Officer and Corporate Secretary Jeet Mahal
Chief Operating Officer Edwin Tucker, M. D. Chief Medical OfficerRonald A. Martell. Please see above discussion of our directors
for Mr. Martell’ s biography. Herb Cross. Mr. Cross has served as our Chief Financial Officer and Corporate Secretary since
September 2023. Previously, Mr. Cross had served as the Chief Financial Officer of Atreca, Inc., a biotechnology company, since
February 2019. From November 2017 to June 2018, he served as Chief Financial Officer of ARMO Biosciences, Inc., a
biotechnology company. From February 2016 to November 2017, Mr. Cross served as Chief Financial Officer of Balance
Therapeutics, Inc., a biotechnology company. From October 2013 to November 2015, he served as Chief Financial Officer of
KaloBios Pharmaceuticals, Inc., a biotechnology company, and interim Chief Executive Officer from January 2015 to November
2015. In December 2015, KaloBios filed a voluntary petition for relief under Chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code. KaloBios



emerged from Chapter 11 in July 2016. From November 2010 to June 2013, Mr. Cross served as Chief Financial Officer of
Affymax, Inc., a biotechnology company. He served as a director of Apexigen, Inc. from July 2022 to August 2023 and Apexigen
America, Inc. from October 2019 to August 2023. Mr. Cross received a B. S. in Business Administration from the University of
California, Berkeley and is a certified public accountant (inactive). Jeet Mahal. Mr. Mahal has served as our Chief Operating
Officer since March 2022. He served as our Chief Financial Officer and Corporate Secretary from September 2021 to September
2023 and as our Chief Business Officer from September 2021 to March 2022. Prior to that, Mr. Mahal had served as our Chief
Financial and Business Officer since December 2019. Prior to joining our Company, Mr. Mahal worked at Portola
Pharmaceuticals, Inc. from August 2008 to December 2019, where Mr. Mahal held a number of positions of increasing leadership,
most recently as Vice President, Strategic Marketing from January 2019 to December 2019 and Vice President, Business
Development from February 2013 to December 2018. While at Portola Pharmaceuticals, Inc., Mr. Mahal led the execution of
multiple business development partnerships for Andexxa ®, Bevyxxa ® and cerdulatinib. Mr. Mahal also played a key role in the
company’ s equity financings, including its initial public offering and multiple royalty transactions. Earlier in his career, from
January 2006 to September 2008, Mr. Mahal was Director, Business and New Product Development, at Johnson & Johnson on the
cardiovascular in- licensing and Xarelto ® product development teams. Mr. Mahal started his career in the drug development
laboratories at COR Therapeutics. Mr. Mahal holds a Bachelor’ s degree in Molecular and Cell Biology from U. C. Berkeley, a
Master’ s degree in Engineering from North Carolina State University, a Master’ s degree in Molecular and Cell Biology from the
Illinois Institute of Technology and an MBA from Duke University. Edwin Tucker, M. D. Dr. Tucker has served as our Chief
Medical Officer since June 2023. He has over 30 years of clinical experience leading novel drug development. Dr. Tucker was most
recently Chief Medical Officer at Goldfinch Bio, where he led clinical development and helped build the regulatory, medical affairs
and clinical operations functions. Previously, he served as Chief Medical Officer at Mirum Pharmaceuticals, where he contributed
to the achievement of key milestones in the development of medicines for adult and pediatric cholestatic liver disease, including the
first FDA approval for Alagille Syndrome. Prior to joining Mirum, Dr. Tucker was at Acerta Pharma LLC, now part of the
AstraZeneca family of companies, ultimately serving as Chief Operating Officer. Prior to joining Acerta, he held leadership
positions in development, medical safety and medical affairs at Genentech, Janssen Research and Development and Bayer
HealthCare Pharmaceuticals. Dr. Tucker is a member of the Royal College of Physicians (UK) and received his M. B. A. from the
University of Connecticut. Dr. Tucker holds degrees in Pharmacology and Medicine from the University of Leeds, United
Kingdom. Additionally, he serves as a managing director at Golden Seeds, an investment firm dedicated to pursuing early- stage
investment opportunities in women- led businesses. ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION Executive Compensation
Overview Our named executive officers for the year ended December 31, 2024 were: ® Ronald Martell, our President and Chief
Executive Officer; ® Herb Cross, our Chief Financial Officer and Corporate Secretary; o Jeet Mahal, our Chief Operating Officer;
and e Edwin Tucker, M. D., our Chief Medical Officer. Executive Summary The following is a discussion and analysis of
compensation arrangements of our named executive officers. This discussion may contain forward- looking statements that are
based on our current plans, considerations, expectations and determinations regarding future compensation programs. As a “
smaller reporting company ” as defined in the rules and regulations of the SEC, we are not required to include a Compensation
Discussion and Analysis section and have elected to comply with the scaled disclosure requirements applicable to smaller reporting
companies. 2024 Financial and Performance Highlights Our financial and performance highlights during 2024 include the
following: e Cash and cash equivalents as of December 31, 2024, totaled $ 71. 6 million. ¢ Research and development expenses for
the year ended December 31, 2024, were $ 55. 8 million, including stock- based compensation expenses of $ 4. 6 million. ® General
and administrative expenses for the year ended December 31, 2024, were $ 20. 4 million, including stock- based compensation
expenses of $ 2. 0 million. ® Reported a net loss of $ 71. 3 million, or basic and diluted net loss per share attributable to common
stockholders of $ 4. 89, for the year ended December 31, 2024. Compensation Philosophy and Practices To achieve our goals, we
have designed, and intend to modify as necessary, our compensation and benefits programs to attract, retain, incentivize and
reward deeply talented and qualified executives who share our philosophy and desire to work towards achieving our goals. We
believe our compensation programs should promote the success of our Company and align executive incentives with the long- term
interests of our stockholders. This section provides an overview of our executive compensation programs, including a narrative
description of the material factors necessary to understand the information disclosed in the summary compensation table below.
Insider Trading Policy Our Board has adopted an insider trading policy (the “ Insider Trading Policy ), which provides guidelines
to our employees, directors, officers and consultants with respect to transactions in our securities, including the purchase, sale and /
or the-other extent-disposition of our securities. We adopted the Insider Trading Policy and the procedures set forth therein to help
avoid inadvertent instances of improper insider trading. We believe the Insider Trading Policy is reasonably designed to promote
compliance with insider trading laws, rules and regulations and listing standards applicable to Jasper. Prohibition on Hedging and
Pledging Transactions Our Insider Trading Policy prohibits any director, employee (including our executive officers) or consultant
to our Company from, among other things, engaging in short sales, transactions in put or call options, hedging transactions,
margin accounts or other inherently speculative transactions with respect to our securities at any time. Our directors, employees
(including our executive officers) and consultants are also not permitted to pledge our securities as collateral for a loan. Clawback
Policy Effective October 1, 2023, our Board adopted a restated compensation recovery (“ clawback ”) policy pursuant to the listing
standards approved by The Nasdaq Stock Market LL.C implementing Rule 10D- 1 under the Exchange Act (“ Rule 10D- 1 ”). The
clawback policy is administered by our Compensation Committee and applies to our current and former executive officers as
defined in Rule 10D- 1 (each, an “ Affected Officer ). Under the clawback policy, if we are required to prepare an accounting
restatement to correct our material noncompliance with any financial reporting requirement under securities laws, including
restatements that correct an error in previously issued financial statements that is material to the previously issued financial
statements or that would result in a material misstatement if the error were corrected in the current period or left uncorrected in
the current period (collectively, a “ Restatement ), we are obligated to recover erroneously awarded incentive- based
compensation received from us by Affected Officers. Incentive- based compensation includes any compensation that is granted,
earned or vested based in whole or in part on the attainment of a financial reporting measure. Erroneously awarded incentive-
based compensation is the amount of incentive- based compensation received that exceeds the amount of incentive- based
compensation that otherwise would have been received had it been determined based on an applicable Restatement. Individual
Compensation Elements During 2024, the principal elements of our executive compensation program were as follows: Base Salaries



We use base salaries to recognize the experience, skills, knowledge and responsibilities required of all our employees, including our
named executive officers. Base salaries are reviewed annually, typically in connection with our annual performance review process,
and adjusted from time to time after taking into account individual responsibilities, performance and experience. For 2024, Mr.
Martell earned an annual base salary of $ 727, 272, Mr. Cross earned an annual base salary of $ 476, 100, Mr. Mahal earned an
annual base salary of $ 481, 301 and Dr. Tucker earned an annual base salary of $ 514, 500. Annual Cash Incentive Bonuses We
pay cash bonuses to reward our executives for their performance over the fiscal year, based on an analysis by our Board or our
Compensation Committee of our company performance and each executive’ s performance during the year. During 2024, Mr.
Martell’ s annual bonus target was equal to S0 % of his annual base salary, Mr. Cross’ annual bonus target was equal to 45 % of
his annual base salary, Mr. Mahal’ s annual bonus target was equal to 45 % of his annual base salary and Dr. Tucker’ s annual
bonus target was equal to 45 % of his annual base salary. Our Board adopted corporate performance goals for the 2024 bonus
program for our employees based on milestones that primarily included: (1) generating positive data in our spontaneous urticaria
and inducible urticaria clinical trials; (2) commencing enrollment in our asthma program; (3) expanding our BEACON /
SPOTLIGHT clinical trials with additional cohorts; (4) chemistry, manufacturing and controls (CMC) goals; (5) research and
translational goals and; (6) corporate goals, including finance, business development and human resources. Our Compensation
Committee determined that the total attainment rate for 2024 was 85 %. For 2024, Mr. Martell received a $ 309, 091 bonus, Mr.
Cross received a $ 182, 108 bonus, Mr. Mahal received a $ 184, 098 bonus and Dr. Tucker received a $ 196, 796 bonus. The bonus
amounts for Mr. Martell, Mr. Mahal, Mr. Cross and Dr. Tucker were determined based on the base salary earned by each
executive officer for the calendar year multiplied by his bonus target percentage and the 85 % achievement level. Long- Term
Equity Incentives We believe equity awards are a critical element of our executive compensation programs as they provide an
incentive for our executives to focus on driving growth in our stock price and long- term stockholder value creation and help us to
attract and retain key talent in a competitive market. Specifically, the granting of stock options helps ensure that the interests of
our executive officers are aligned with those of our stockholders as the options only have value if the value of our stock increases
after the date the option is granted. 2024 Option Awards On February 15, 2024, Mr. Martell was granted an option to purchase
100, 000 shares of our common stock, of which 25 % of the total number of shares subject to the option vested on February 15,
2025, and 1/ 48th of the total number of shares subject to the option vest monthly thereafter, subject in each case to Mr. Martell’ s
continued service to us on each vesting date. On June 10, 2024, Mr. Martell was granted (a) an option to purchase 10, 000 shares of
our common stock, of which 25 % of the total number of shares subject to the option will vest on June 10, 2025, and 1 / 48th of the
total number of shares subject to the option vest monthly thereafter, subject in each case to Mr. Martell’ s continued service to us
on each vesting date, and (b) performance- based restricted stock units with respect to 20, 000 shares of our common stock (*
PRSUs ), with each PRSU representing a contingent right to receive one share of common stock. If, by June 10, 2026, the closing
price of our common stock on Nasdaq is at or above $ 35. 00 per share (subject to adjustment for recapitalizations, stock splits and
similar transactions) for thirty consecutive calendar days, all of the shares of common stock subject to the PRSUs shall vest in full
on such thirtieth day, subject to Mr. Martell’ s continued service to us through such date. On February 15, 2024, Mr. Cross was
granted an option to purchase 40, 000 shares of our common stock, of which 25 % of the total number of shares subject to the
option vested on February 15, 2025 and 1 / 48th of the total number of shares subject to the option vest monthly thereafter, subject
in each case to Mr. Cross’ s continued service to us on each vesting date. On February 15, 2024, Mr. Mahal was granted an option
to purchase 40, 000 shares of our common stock, of which 25 % of the total number of shares subject to the option vested on
February 15, 2025 and 1 / 48th of the total number of shares subject to the option vest monthly thereafter, subject in each case to
Mr. Mahal’ s continued service to us on each vesting date. On February 15, 2024, Dr. Tucker was granted an option to purchase
45, 000 shares of our common stock, of which 25 % of the total number of shares subject to the option vested on February 15, 2025
and 1/ 48th of the total number of shares subject to the option vest monthly thereafter, subject in each case to Dr. Tucker’ s
continued service to us on each vesting date. Other Elements of Compensation Perquisites, Health, Welfare and Retirement
Benefits Our executive officers, during their employment with us, are eligible to participate in our employee benefit plans,
including our medical and dental insurance plans, in each case on the same basis as all of our other employees. We generally do not
fite-provide perquisites or personal benefits to our named executive officers, except in limited circumstances. We do, however,
cover a certain portion of the premiums for medical and dental insurance for all of our employees, including our named executive
officers. Our Board may elect to adopt qualified or nonqualified benefit plans in the future if it determines that doing so is in our
best interests. We currently maintain a 401 (k) retirement savings plan for our employees, including our named executive officers,
who satisfy certain eligibility requirements. The 401 (k) plan is intended to qualify as a tax- qualified plan under the Internal
Revenue Code. Our named executive officers are eligible to participate in the 401 (k) plan on the same basis as our the-other
employees. The Internal Revenue Code allows eligible employees to defer a portion of their compensation, within prescribed limits,
on a pre- tax basis (or post- tax basis through a Roth 401 (k) election) through contributions to the 401 (k) plan. We provided
matching contributions of up to $ 3, 000 per employee under our 401 (k) plan during the year ended December 31, 2024 Proxy
Staterent-. Pension Benefits Our named executive officers did not participate in, or otherwise receive any benefits under, any
pension or retirement plan sponsored by sueh-us during the year ended December 31, 2024. Nonqualified Deferred Compensation
Our named executive officers did not participate in, or earn any benefits under, any nonqualified deferred compensation plan
sponsored by us during the year ended December 31, 2024. Our Board may elect to provide our officers and other employees with
nonqualified deferred compensation benefits in the future if it determines that doing so is in our best interests. No Tax Gross- Ups
In 2024, we did not make gross- up payments to cover our named executive officers’ personal income taxes that pertained to any of
the compensation, perquisites or personal benefits paid or provided by us. Currently, we have no agreements or arrangements in
place with any executive officer that require or provide for a tax gross- up or similar payment. We also do not intend to enter into
any future employment or other agreement or arrangement with any of our executive offices that includes a tax gross- up.
Summary Compensation Table The following table presents all of the compensation awarded to, earned by or paid to our named
executive officers during the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively: Name and Principal Position Year Salary ($)
Non- Equity Incentive Plan Compensation ($) Bonus ($) Option Awards ($) (1) Stock Awards ($) (2) All Other Compensation ($)
Total ($) Ronald Martell 2024 727, 272 309, 091 — 1, 740, 640 438, 000 4, 956 3, 219, 959 President and Chief Executive Officer
2023 695, 255 312, 917 — 2, 361, 818 — — 3, 369, 990 Herb Cross (3) 2024 476, 100 182, 108 — 612, 732 — 1, 629 1, 272, 569 Chief
Financial Officer and Corporate Secretary 2023 125, 615 51, 552 100, 000 (4) 361, 955 — 4, 000 (5) 643, 122 Jeet Mahal (6) 2024



481, 301 184, 098 — 612, 732 — 2,229 1, 280, 360 Chief Operating Officer 2023 461, 693 187, 024 — 535, 990 — — 1, 184, 707
Edwin Tucker, M. D. (7) 2024 514, 500 196, 796 — 689, 324 — 2, 001 1, 402, 621 Chief Medical Officer 2023 272, 955 110, 371 50,
000 (8) 544,400 — — 977, 726 (1) Amounts reported represent the aggregate grant date ;-we-wit-file-fair value of the stock options
granted to the named executive officers during 2024 an-and amendment-2023 under the 2024 Plan, the 2021 Plan or the Inducement
Plan (as each term is defined under “ Equity Compensation Plan ), computed in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 718. The
assumptions used in calculating the grant date fair value of the stock options reported in this column are set forth in Note 10 to our
consolidated financial statements included in Part II, Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10- K . This amount does not reflect the
actual economic value that may be realized by the named executive officer, which will depend on factors including the continued
service of the executive and the future value of our stock. (2) Amounts reported represent the aggregate grant date fair value of the
restricted stock unit awards granted to the named executive officers during 2024 under the 2021 Plan, computed in accordance
with FASB ASC Topic 718. The assumptions used in calculating the grant date fair value of the restricted stock units reported in
this column are set forth in Note 10 to our consolidated financial statements ineludes-included in Part I, Item 8 of this Annual
Report on Form 10- K. This amount does not reflect the actual economic value that may be realized by the named executive officer,
which will depend on factors including the continued service of the executive and the future value of our stock. (3) Mr. Cross was
appointed as our Chief Financial Officer effective September 22, 2023. (4) Represents a cash sign- on bonus in connection with the
commencement of Mr. Cross’ employment with us. (5) Represents consulting fees paid to Mr. Cross for consulting services prior to
his appointment as our Chief Financial Officer and Corporate Secretary effective September 22, 2023. (6) Mr. Mahal transitioned
to the role of our Chief Operating Officer on September 22, 2023. Prior to such time, the— he served as our Chief Operating and
Financial Officer and Corporate Secretary. (7) Dr. Tucker was appointed as our Chief Medical Officer as of June 12, 2023. (8)
Represents a cash sign- on bonus in connection with the commencement of Dr. Tucker’ s employment with us. Employment and
Other Arrangements with Named Executive Officers The current amended and restated employment agreements with our named
executive officers generally provide for at- will employment and set forth the executive officer’ s initial base salary and potential
annual performance bonus, applicable signing bonuses, eligibility for employee benefits, confirmation of the terms of previously
issued equity grants, and severance benefits on a qualifying termination of employment or resignation. In addition, each of our
named executive officers has executed our standard employee confidential information and inventions assignment agreement. The
key terms of these agreements are described below. We entered into an Employment Agreement with Ronald Martell, effective
March 15, 2022 (the “ Martell Employment Agreement ), pursuant to which Mr. Martell became our President and Chief
Executive Officer. Pursuant to the Martell Employment Agreement, Mr. Martell’ s initial annualized salary was $ 675, 000, and he
was eligible to receive an annual performance bonus of up to 50 % of his base salary. His salary and performance bonus
percentage may be adjusted in the future at the discretion of our Compensation Committee. Pursuant to the Martell Employment
Agreement, Mr. Martell was granted an option to purchase 170, 432 shares of our common stock, of which 25 % of the total
number of shares subject to the option vested on March 15, 2023 and 1 / 48th of the total number of shares subject to the option
vest monthly thereafter, subject in each case to Mr. Martell’ s continued service to us on each vesting date. The agreement further
provided that in the event we close an equity financing of at least $ 50 million after the date of commencement of Mr. Martell’ s
employment with us, then, promptly following the closing of such financing, and subject to approval by the Board or our
Compensation Committee, Mr. Martell would be granted an additional option to purchase 1. 0 % of the outstanding shares of our
common stock (the “ True- Up Option ), measured as of the date of grant. On February 2, 2023, Mr. Martell was granted an
option to purchase 109, 383 shares of our common stock in satisfaction of our obligation to issue the True- Up Option to Mr.
Martell. The True- Up Option will vest over four years, with 25 % of the total number of shares subject to the True- Up Option
vesting on February 2, 2024 and 1 / 48th of the total number of shares subject to the True- Up Option vesting monthly thereafter,
subject in each case to Mr. Martell’ s continued service to us on each vesting date. In addition, the Martell Employment Agreement
provided that if Mr. Martell’ s employment with us is terminated by us without “ Cause ” or by Mr. Martell for “ Good Reason ”
(as each term is defined in the Martell Employment Agreement), then Mr. Martell would be entitled to receive 18 months of his
base salary, payable in accordance with our payroll cycle, subject to Mr. Martell executing a release in favor of us. On April 13,
2023, we entered into an amendment to the Martell Employment Agreement with Mr. Martell (the “ Martell Amendment ), which
additionally provided that, in the event Mr. Martell’ s employment was terminated by us without “ Cause > or was terminated by
Mr. Martell for “ Good Reason ” (as each term is defined in the Martell Employment Agreement), in either case within 24 months
following a “ Change in Control ” of us (as defined in the Martell Amendment), all of the outstanding equity awards held by Mr.
Martell would become fully vested, subject to Mr. Martell executing a release in favor of us. The Martell Employment Agreement
further provided that Mr. Martell was not eligible for payments or benefits under the Severance Plan (as defined below). On June
10, 2024, we entered into an Amended and Restated Employment Agreement with Mr. Martell (the “ Martell A & R Employment
Agreement ), pursuant to which Mr. Martell will continue to serve as our President and Chief Executive Officer. Pursuant to the
Martell A & R Employment Agreement, Mr. Martell’ s initial annualized salary was $ 727, 272, and he is eligible to receive an
annual performance bonus of up to 50 % of his base salary. His salary and performance bonus percentage may be adjusted in the
future at the discretion of the Compensation Committee. Mr. Martell’ s employment is on an “ at will ” basis. Mr. Martell is also
entitled to other customary employment benefits, including reimbursement of expenses, paid vacation, and shall be eligible to
participate in all benefit plans that are generally made available to our executive officers. The Martell A & R Employment
Agreement also provides that if Mr. Martell’ s employment with us is terminated by us without “ Cause > or by Mr. Martell for
Good Reason ” (as each term is defined in the Martell A & R Employment Agreement), then Mr. Martell shall be entitled to
receive an amount equal to 18 months of his base salary, payable in accordance with our payroll cycle and we shall pay COBRA
premiums for Mr. Martell and his covered dependents for a period of up to 18 months, subject in each case to Mr. Martell
executing a release in our favor. Additionally, in the event Mr. Martell’ s employment is terminated by us without “ Cause > or is
terminated by Mr. Martell for “ Good Reason ” (as each term is defined in the Martell A & R Employment Agreement), in either
case within 24 months following a “ Change in Control ” (as defined in the Martell A & R Employment Agreement), Mr. Martell
shall be entitled to receive the sum of (i) 18 months of his base salary plus (ii) 1. S times his target incentive bonus for the year in
which the termination occurred, any service- based outstanding equity awards held by Mr. Martell shall become fully vested and
any performance- based vesting requirement shall be deemed satisfied at target, and we shall pay COBRA premiums for Mr.
Martell and his covered dependents for a period of up to 18 months, subject in each case to Mr. Martell executing a release in our



favor. We entered into an Offer Letter with Herb Cross, dated September 19, 2023 (the “ Cross Offer Letter ), pursuant to which
Mr. Cross became our Chief Financial Officer. Pursuant to the Cross Offer Letter, Mr. Cross’ initial annualized salary was $ 460,
000, and he was eligible to receive an annual performance bonus of up to 45 % of his base salary. His salary and performance
bonus percentage may be adjusted in the future at the discretion of our Compensation Committee. Pursuant to the Cross Offer
Letter, Mr. Cross received a sign- on bonus of $ 100, 000. If Mr. Cross had resigned from us without Good Reason (as defined in
the Severance Plan) or no reason or Mr. Cross was terminated by us for Cause (as defined in the Severance Plan) on or prior to
September 22, 2024, Mr. Cross was required to repay us 100 % of the sign- on bonus within 30 days of the date Mr. Cross ceases to
be an employee. In addition, Mr. Cross was granted an option to purchase 55, 000 shares of our common stock, of which 25 % of
the total number of shares subject to the option will vest on September 22, 2024 and 1 / 48th of the total number of shares subject to
the option will vest monthly thereafter, subject in each case to Mr. Cross’ continued service to us on each vesting date. Mr. Cross
was also eligible for payments and benefits under the Severance Plan. On June 10, 2024, we entered into an Amended and Restated
Employment Agreement with Mr. Cross (the “ Cross A & R Employment Agreement ”’), pursuant to which he will continue to
serve as our Chief Financial Officer. Pursuant to the Cross A & R Employment Agreement, Mr. Cross’ initial annualized salary
was $ 476, 100, and he is eligible to receive an annual performance bonus of up to 45 % of his base salary. His salary and
performance bonus percentage may be adjusted in the future at the discretion of the Compensation Committee and Mr. Cross’
base salary was most recently increased to $ 493, 000. Mr. Cross’ employment is on an “ at will  basis. Mr. Cross is also entitled to
other customary employment benefits, including reimbursement of expenses, paid vacation, and shall be eligible to participate in
all benefit plans that are generally made available to our executive officers. The Cross A & R Employment Agreement provides
that if Mr. Cross is terminated by us without “ Cause ” or by Mr. Cross for “ Good Reason ” (as each term is defined in the Cross
A & R Employment Agreement), then Mr. Cross shall be entitled to receive an amount equal to 12 months of his base salary,
payable in accordance with our payroll cycle and we shall pay COBRA premiums for Mr. Cross and his covered dependents for a
period of up to 12 months, subject in each case to Mr. Cross executing a release in our favor. Additionally, in the event Mr. Cross’
employment is terminated by us without “ Cause ” or is terminated by Mr. Cross for “ Good Reason ” (as each term is defined in
the Cross A & R Employment Agreement), in either case within 24 months following a “ Change in Control ” (as defined in the
Cross A & R Employment Agreement), Mr. Cross shall be entitled to receive the sum of (i) 12 months of his base salary plus (ii)
100 % of Mr. Cross’ target incentive bonus for the year in which the termination occurred, any service- based outstanding equity
awards held by Mr. Cross shall become fully vested and any performance- based vesting requirement shall be deemed satisfied at
target and we shall pay COBRA premiums for Mr. Cross and his covered dependents for a period of up to 12 months, subject in
each case to Mr. Cross executing a release in our favor. On September 24, 2021, we entered into an Employment Agreement with
Jeet Mahal (the “ Mahal Employment Agreement ) as our Chief Financial Officer and Business Officer. The Mahal Employment
Agreement initially provided for an annual base salary of $ 400, 000, subject to adjustment from time to time (the “ Mahal Base
Salary ”), and a target annual incentive bonus of 40 % of the Mahal Base Salary. In accordance with the Mahal Employment
Agreement, on March 21, 2022, Mr. Mahal was granted an option to purchase 8, 727 shares of our common stock pursuant to the
2021 Plan, of which 25 % of the total number of shares subject to the option vested on March 21, 2023 and 1 / 48th of the total
number of shares subject to the option vest monthly thereafter, subject in each case to Mr. Mahal’ s continued service to us on each
vesting date. Effective March 1, 2022, Mr. Mahal’ s annual base salary was increased to $ 416, 000. Then, effective March 21, 2022,
Mr. Mahal was promoted to the role of our Chief Operating and Financial Officer, at which time his annual base salary was
increased to $ 445, 000 and his target bonus percentage was increased to 45 %. Mr. Mahal transitioned to the role of our Chief
Operating Officer effective September 22, 2023. Pursuant to the Mahal Employment Agreement, Mr. Mahal was also eligible to
participate in the benefit plans that are generally available to all of our executive employees. Mr. Mahal’ s employment with us was
at- will, meaning either we or Mr. Mahal may terminate the employment relationship with or without cause. However, Mr. Mahal
must provide at least 30 days’ advance written notice of any termination of his employment under the Mahal Employment
Agreement. Mr. Mahal was also eligible for payments and benefits under the Severance Plan. On June 10, 2024, we entered into an
Amended and Restated Employment Agreement with Mr. Mahal (the “ Mahal A & R Employment Agreement ), pursuant to
which he will continue to serve as our Chief Operating Officer. Pursuant to the Mahal A & R Employment Agreement, Mr. Mahal’
s initial annualized salary was $ 481, 301, and he is eligible to receive an annual performance bonus of up to 45 % of his base
salary. His salary and performance bonus percentage may be adjusted in the future at the discretion of the Compensation
Committee and Mr. Mahal’ s base salary was most recently increased to $ 498, 000. Mr. Mahal’ s employment is on an “ at will ”
basis. Mr. Mahal is also entitled to other customary employment benefits, including reimbursement of expenses, paid vacation, and
shall be eligible to participate in all benefit plans that are generally made available to our executive officers. The Mahal A & R
Employment Agreement provides that if Mr. Mahal is terminated by us without “ Cause ” or by Mr. Mahal for “ Good Reason ”
(as each term is defined in the Mahal A & R Employment Agreement), then Mr. Mahal shall be entitled to receive an amount equal
to 12 months of his base salary, payable in accordance with our payroll cycle and we shall pay COBRA premiums for Mr. Mahal
and his covered dependents for a period of up to 12 months, subject in each case to Mr. Mahal executing a release in our favor.
Additionally, in the event Mr. Mahal’ s employment is terminated by us without “ Cause ” or is terminated by Mr. Mahal for «
Good Reason ” (as each term is defined in the Mahal A & R Employment Agreement), in either case within 24 months following a
“ Change in Control ” (as defined in the Mahal A & R Employment Agreement), Mr. Mahal shall be entitled to receive the sum of
(i) 12 months of his base salary plus (ii) 100 % of Mr. Mahal’ s target incentive bonus for the year in which the termination
occurred, any service- based outstanding equity awards held by Mr. Mahal shall become fully vested and any performance- based
vesting requirement shall be deemed satisfied at target and we shall pay COBRA premiums for Mr. Mahal and his covered
dependents for a period of up to 12 months, subject in each case to Mr. Mahal executing a release in our favor. We entered into an
Offer Letter with Edwin Tucker, M. D., dated June 7, 2023 (the “ Tucker Offer Letter ), pursuant to which Dr. Tucker became
our Chief Medical Officer. Pursuant to the Tucker Offer Letter, Dr. Tucker’ s initial annualized salary was $ 490, 000, and he was
eligible to receive an annual performance bonus of up to 45 % of his base salary. His salary and performance bonus percentage
may be adjusted in the future at the discretion of our Compensation Committee. Pursuant to the Tucker Offer Letter, Dr. Tucker
received a sign- on bonus of $ 50, 000. If Dr. Tucker had resigned from us without Good Reason (as defined in the Severance Plan)
or no reason or Dr. Tucker was terminated by us for Cause (as defined in the Severance Plan) on or prior to June 12, 2024, Dr.
Tucker was required to repay us 100 % of the sign- on bonus within 30 days of the date Dr. Tucker ceased to be an employee. In



addition, Dr. Tucker was granted an option to purchase 40, 000 shares of our common stock, of which 25 % of the total number of
shares subject to the option vested on June 12, 2024 and 1 / 48th of the total number of shares subject to the option vest monthly
thereafter, subject in each case to Dr. Tucker’ s continued service to us on each vesting date. Dr. Tucker was also eligible for
payments and benefits under the Severance Plan. On June 10, 2024, we entered into an Amended and Restated Employment
Agreement with Dr. Tucker (the “ Tucker A & R Employment Agreement ), pursuant to which he will continue to serve as our
Chief Medical Officer. Pursuant to the Tucker A & R Employment Agreement, Dr. Tucker’ s initial annualized salary was $ 514,
500 and he is eligible to receive an annual performance bonus of up to 45 % of his base salary. His salary and performance bonus
percentage may be adjusted in the future at the discretion of the Compensation Committee and Dr. Tucker’ s base salary was most
recently increased to $ 532, 500. Dr. Tucker’ s employment is on an “ at will ” basis. Dr. Tucker is also entitled to other customary
employment benefits, including reimbursement of expenses, paid vacation, and shall be eligible to participate in all benefit plans
that are generally made available to our executive officers. The Tucker A & R Employment Agreement provides that if Dr. Tucker
is terminated by us without “ Cause ” or by Dr. Tucker for “ Good Reason ” (as each term is defined in the Tucker A & R
Employment Agreement), then Dr. Tucker shall be entitled to receive an amount equal to 12 months of his base salary, payable in
accordance with our payroll cycle and we shall pay COBRA premiums for Dr. Tucker and his covered dependents for a period of
up to 12 months, subject in each case to Dr. Tucker executing a release in our favor. Additionally, in the event Dr. Tucker’ s
employment is terminated by us without “ Cause ” or is terminated by Dr. Tucker for “ Good Reason ” (as each term is defined in
the Tucker A & R Employment Agreement), in either case within 24 months following a “ Change in Control ” (as defined in the
Tucker A & R Employment Agreement), Dr. Tucker shall be entitled to receive the sum of (i) 12 months of his base salary plus (ii)
100 % of Dr. Tucker’ s target incentive bonus for the year in which the termination occurred, any service- based outstanding
equity awards held by Dr. Tucker shall become fully vested and any performance- based vesting requirement shall be deemed
satisfied at target and we shall pay COBRA premiums for Dr. Tucker and his covered dependents for a period of up to 12 months,
subject in each case to Dr. Tucker executing a release in our favor. Employee Severance Plan In connection with our entry into the
amended and restated employment agreements with our named executive officers on June 10, 2024, we terminated the Severance
Plan in favor of individual agreements with our employees as discussed above. Under our Employee Severance Plan for Vice
Presidents and Executive Committee Members previously applicable to Mr. Mahal, Mr. Cross, Dr. Tucker and other executive
committee members, which became effective in February 2021 and was terminated on June 10, 2024 (the “ Severance Plan ”’), upon
a named executive officer’ s termination by us without “ cause ” (as defined in the Severance Plan) or a resignation by a named
executive officer for “ good reason ” (as defined in the Severance Plan) within 24 months after a change in control (as defined in the
Severance Plan), the named executive officer was eligible to receive (i) any earned but unpaid salary, unpaid and eligible expense
reimbursements, accrued but unused vacation and any vested benefits such named executive officer may have under any of our
employee benefit plans, (ii) continued payment of the named executive officer’ s base salary for 12 months following termination
(less applicable tax withholdings) and (iii) full acceleration of vesting of any equity awards subject to any maximum term (with any
vesting based on satisfaction of performance objectives deemed satisfied at 100 % of target); provided that, in each case of (ii) and
(iii), the terminated named executive officer executed a separation agreement satisfactory to us containing, but not limited to, a
general release of claims, a non- disparagement clause and reaffirmation of such individual’ s post- termination restrictive
covenants. Outstanding Equity Awards as of December 31, 2024 The following table presents the outstanding equity incentive plan
awards held by each named executive officer as of December 31, 2024. Option Awards (1) Stock Awards Name Grant Date Vesting
Commencement Date (1) Number of Securities Underlying Unexercised Options Exercisable (#) Number of Securities Underlying
Unexercised Options Unexercisable (#) (2) Option Exercise Price ($) Option Expiration Date Number of Shares or Units of Stock
That Have Not Vested (#) Market Value of Shares or Units of Stock That Have Not Vested ($) Equity Incentive Plan Awards:
Number of Unearned Shares, Units or Other Rights That Have Not Vested (#) (3) Equity Incentive Plan Awards: Market or
Payout Value of Unearned Shares, Units or Other Rights That Have Not Vested ($) (4) Ronald Martell 3 /21 /2022 3/15/2022

117,173 53,259 35.403/21/2032 —— ——2/2/20232/2/2023 50,133 59,25017.802 /2 /2033 ————3/17/20233/3
/2023 21, 869 28,13018.703/17 /2033 — — ——2/15/20242/15/2024 — 100, 000 17.952/15/2034 —— — —6 /10 /2024
6/10/2024 —10,00023.956/10/34 ————6/10/2024 6/10/2024 — — — — 20, 000 $ 427, 600 Herb Cross 9 /22 /2023 9
/22/202317.18837,8127.809/22/2033 —— ——2/15/20242/15/2024 —40,00017.952/15/2034 — — — — Jeet
Mahal 6/1/202012/12/201913,772 —7.106/1/2030 — — ——3/21/2022 12 /7 /2021 566 187 35.403/21/2032 — — —
—3/21/20223/21/20223,3502,73035.403/21/2032 ————4/7/20223/21/20222,814 693 31.204/7 /2032 — — —
—3/17/20233/3/202315,31019, 689 18.703/17 /2033 ————2/15/20242/15/2024 — 40,000 17.952/15/2034 —
— — — Edwin Tucker, M. D. 6 /12 /2023 6 /12 / 2023 15, 000 25, 000 16. 20 6 /12 /2033 — — ——2/15/20242/15/2024 —
45,000 17.952/15/2034 — — — — (1) Unless otherwise indicated, the shares underlying the stock options that are not fully

vested are scheduled to vest over a four- year period, with 1 / 4th vesting on the first anniversary of the vesting commencement date
and 1/ 48th vesting on a monthly basis thereafter through the fourth anniversary of the vesting commencement date, subject to the
named executive officer’ s continued service with us. (2) The unvested shares underlying the awards held by Mr. Martell are
subject to accelerated vesting as described in “ — Employment and Other Arrangements with Named Executive Officers —
Ronald Martell ”. The unvested shares underlying the awards held by Mr. Cross, Mr. Mahal and Dr. Tucker are subject to
accelerated vesting as described in “ — Employment and Other Arrangements with Named Executive Officers — Employee
Severance Plan ”. (3) If, by June 10, 2026, the closing price of our common stock on Nasdaq is at or above $ 35. 00 per share
(subject to adjustment for recapitalizations, stock splits and similar transactions) for thirty consecutive calendar days, all of the
shares subject to the award shall vest in full on such thirtieth day, so long as the award holder provides continuous services to us on
and through the vesting date, inclusive. (4) Amounts in this column are calculated by multiplying the number of shares shown as
unvested in the prior column by $ 21. 38, the closing price of our common stock on December 31, 2024, as reported on Nasdaq.
Equity Award Timing Procedures In accordance with [tcm 402 (x) of Regulation S- K under the Securities Act, we are providing
information regarding our procedures related to the grant of certain equity awards close in time to the release of material non-
public information (*“ MNPI ). Although we do not have a formal policy, program or plan that requires us to award equity or
equity- based compensation on specific dates, we generally issue equity awards to our executive officers annually in the first
quarter, and such awards are approved by our Compensation Committee during the first quarter. Additionally, our Insider
Trading Policy prohibits directors, officers and employees from trading in our common stock while in possession of or on the basis



of MNPI about us. We have not timed, and do not plan to time, the disclosure of MNPI for the purpose of affecting the value of
executive compensation. In the year ended December 31, 2024, no options were granted to our named executive officers within four
business days prior to, or one business day following, the filing or furnishing of a periodic or current report by us that disclosed
MNPI. Non- Employee Director Compensation Pursuant to our Non- Employee Director Compensation Policy for the
compensation of our non- employee directors, during 2024, each of our non- employee directors received annual retainers, subject
to proration, for service on our Board and its committees as follows: Chairperson Each Other Member Board of Directors $ 70,
000 $ 40, 000 Audit Committee $ 15, 000 $ 7, 500 Compensation Committee $ 10, 000 $ 5, 000 Nominating and Corporate
Governance Committee $ 8, 000 $ 4, 000 Research and Development Committee $ 11,300 $ 6, 300 All cash retainers will be earned
on a quarterly basis based on a calendar quarter, and, if applicable, will be prorated for the portion of the calendar quarter during
which such non- employee director actually serves on our Board or a committee thereof, and will be paid in arrears no later than
the 30th day following the end of each calendar quarter. The Non- Employee Director Compensation Policy also provides that we
will reimburse reasonable expenses incurred by the non- employee directors in connection with attendance at Board or committee
meetings. From January 1, 2024 through April 18, 2024, our Non- Employee Director Compensation Policy provided that any new
non- employee director elected or appointed to our Board would, upon his or her appointment to our Board, be granted a one- time
stock option award to purchase 9, 400 shares of our common stock (subject to adjustment for recapitalizations, stock splits and
similar transactions), of which 25 % of the total number of shares subject to the option would vest on the one- year anniversary of
the date of grant and 1 / 48th of the total number of shares subject to the option would vest monthly thereafter, subject to the
director’ s continued service through such vesting dates. Also, from January 1, 2024 through April 18, 2024, our Non- Employee
Director Compensation Policy provided that, on the date of each annual meeting of our stockholders, each individual who is a non-
employee director immediately prior to such annual meeting and who will continue to serve as a non- employee director
immediately following such annual meeting would be granted an annual stock option award to purchase 4, 700 shares of our
common stock (subject to adjustment for recapitalizations, stock splits and similar transactions), which would vest in full upon the
first anniversary of the date of the grant, subject to the director’ s continued service through such vesting date. Employee directors
receive no additional compensation for their service as a director. 2024 Updates to Non- Employee Director Compensation Policy
Effective as of April 19, 2024, any new non- employee director elected or appointed to our Board will, upon his or her appointment
to our Board, be granted a one- time stock option award to purchase 15, 000 shares of our common stock, of which 25 % of the
total number of shares subject to the option shall vest on the one- year anniversary of the date of grant and 1 / 48th of the total
number of shares subject to the option shall vest monthly thereafter, subject to the director’ s continued service through such
vesting dates. Also effective as of April 19, 2024, on the date of each annual meeting of our stockholders, each individual who is a
non- employee director immediately prior to such annual meeting and who will continue to serve as a non- employee director
immediately following such annual meeting will be granted an annual stock option award to purchase 7, 500 shares of our common
stock, which shall vest in full upon the first anniversary of the date of the grant, subject to the director’ s continued service through
such vesting date. Non- Employee Director Compensation Table The following table provides information regarding the total
compensation that was earned by or paid to each of our non- employee directors during the year ended December 31, 2024. Name
Fees Earned or Paid in Cash Option Awards (1) (2) Other Compensation Total Judith Shizuru, M. D., Ph. D. § 46, 300 $ 161,489 $
250, 000 (3) $ 457, 789 Kurt von Emster $ 66, 800 $ 161, 489 — $ 228, 289 Christian Nolet $ 65, 000 $ 161, 489 — $ 226, 489 Vishal
Kapoor $ 51,500 $ 161, 489 — $ 212, 989 Scott Brun, M. D. $ 56, 300 $ 161, 489 — $ 217, 789 Tom Wiggans $ 70, 000 $ 161, 489 —
$ 231, 489 Svetlana Lucas, Ph. D. (4) $ 21, 429 $ 302, 606 — $ 324, 034 Anna French, D. Phil. (5) $ 29, 330 — — $ 29, 330 (1)
Amounts reported represent the aggregate grant date fair value of the stock options granted to the non- employee director under
the 2024 Equity Incentive Plan, computed in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board (“ FASB ”) Accounting
Standards Codification (“ ASC ) Topic 718. The assumptions used in calculating the grant date fair value of the stock options
reported in this column are set forth in Note 10 to our consolidated financial statements included in Part II, Item 8 of this Annual
Report on Form 10- K. This amount does not reflect the actual economic value that may be realized by the non- employee director,
which will depend on factors including the continued service of the non- employee director and the future value of our stock. (2)
The table below shows the aggregate number of option awards (vested and unvested) held by each of our non- employee directors
as of December 31, 2024: Name Number of Shares Underlying Outstanding Options as of December 31, 2024 Judith Shizuru, M. D.,
Ph. D. 34, 620 Kurt von Emster 20, 004 Christian Nolet 20, 004 Scott Brun, M. D. 16, 900 Tom Wiggans 18, 500 Vishal Kapoor 23,
138 Svetlana Lucas, Ph. D. 15, 000 (3) Consists of fees earned by Dr. Shizuru for non- employee consulting services provided to us.
See “ Certain Relationships and Related Party Transactions — Dr. Shizuru Consulting Agreement ” in Part III, Item 13 of this
Annual Report on Form 10- K for additional information. (4) Dr. Lucas was appointed to our Board in June 2024. (5) Dr. French
resigned from our Board in June 2024. Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation None of the members of our
Compensation Committee is currently or has been at any time one of our officers or employees. None of our executive officers
currently serves, or has served during the last completed fiscal year, as a member of the board of directors or compensation
committee of any entity that has one or more executive officers serving as a member of our Board or Compensation Committee .
ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS The following table sets forth information about required-by-thisttemis-incorporated-byreference-from
the infermationeontained-in-the-beneficial ownership of our common stock as of February 14, 2024-2025 Prexy-Statement,-which-we
expeet-for: e each person or group known to file-nottater-us who beneficially owns more than 5 % 126-days-afterthe-end-of the-fiseat
year-ecovered-by-our common stock; ® each of our directors and nominees for director; e each of our named executive officers
named in “ Executive Compensation > in Part III, Item 11 of this Annual Report on Form 10- K ; and e all of our directors and
executive officers as a group . To-Each stockholder’ s percentage ownership is based on 15, 022, 122 shares of our common stock
outstanding as of February 14, 2025. Beneficial ownership for the extent-purposes of the following table is determined in accordance
with the rules and regulations of the SEC. These rules generally provide that a person is the beneficial owner of securities if such
person has or shares the power to vote or direct the voting thereof, or to dispose or direct the disposition thereof or has the right to
acquire such powers within 60 days. Common stock subject to options that are currently exercisable or exercisable within 60 days
of February 14, 2025 are deemed to be outstanding and beneficially owned by the person holding the options. These shares,
however, are not deemed outstanding for the purposes of computing the percentage ownership of any other person. Except as
disclosed in the footnotes to this table and subject to applicable community property laws, we de-believe that each stockholder



identified in the table possesses sole voting and investment power over all common stock shown as beneficially owned by the
stockholder. Unless otherwise indicated, the address of each beneficial owner listed below is c / 0 Jasper Therapeutics, Inc., 2200
Bridge Pkwy Suite # 102, Redwood City, CA 94065. Except as stated in the footnotes below, none of the stockholders or their
affiliates, officers, directors and principal equity holders have held any position or office or have had any material relationship
with us or our affiliates within the past three years. Name of Beneficial Owner Number of Shares Percent of Class S %
Stockholders: Entities affiliated with The Carlyle Group Inc. (1) 1, 066, 189 7. 1 % BlackRock, Inc. (2) 800, 028 5. 3 % Soleus
Capital Management, L. P. (3) 1, 494, 420 9. 9 % Qiming U. S. Healthcare Fund II, L. P. (4) 928, 964 6. 2 % Entities affiliated with
Velan Capital Management LLC (5) 1, 471, 903 9. 8 % Directors and Named Executive Officers: Ronald Martell (6) 278, 942 1. 8
% Herb Cross (7) 32, 291 * Jeet Mahal (8) 79, 476 * Edwin Tucker, M. D. (9) 31, 858 * Svetlana Lucas, Ph. D. — — Scott Brun, M.
D. (10) 4, 112 * Tom Wiggans (11) 8, 895 * Christian W. Nolet (12) 15, 754 * Judith Shizuru, M. D. Ph. D. (13) 143, 021 1. 0 % Kurt
von Emster (14) 14, 621 * Vishal Kapoor (15) 16, 367 * All current directors and executive officers as a group (11 persons) 625, 337
4. 0 % * Denotes less than one percent. (1) The shares reported herein are held of record by Abingworth Bioventures VII LP. The
Carlyle Group Inc., which is a publicly traded entity listed on Nasdagq, is the sole shareholder of Carlyle Holdings I GP Inc., which
is the sole member of Carlyle Holdings I GP Sub L. L. C., which is the general partner of Carlyle Holdings I L. P., which, with
respect to the securities reported herein, is the managing member of CG Subsidiary Holdings L. L. C., which is the managing
member of TC Group, L. L. C., which is the managing member of Carlyle Investment Management, L. L. C., which is the sole
member of Carlyle Genesis UK LLC, which is the principal member of Abingworth LLP. Abingworth Bioventures VII LP has
delegated to Abingworth LLP all investment and dispositive power over the securities held of record by Abingworth Bioventures
VII LP. Accordingly, each of the foregoing entities may be deemed to share beneficial ownership of the securities held of record by
Abingworth Bioventures VII LP. The address of each of Abingworth LLP and Abingworth Bioventures VII LP is 38 Jermyn
Street, London, SW1Y6DN, UK. The address of each of the foregoing entities is ¢ / 0 The Carlyle Group, 1001 Pennsylvania Ave.
NW, Suite 220 South, Washington, DC 20004- 2505. Information in this footnote is based solely on a Schedule 13D / A jointly filed
by The Carlyle Group Inc., Carlyle Holdings I L. P., Carlyle Holdings I GP Sub L. L. C., Carlyle Holdings I L. P., CG Subsidiary
Holdings L. L. C., TC Group, L. L. C., Carlyle Investment Management L. L. C., Carlyle Genesis UK LLC, Abingworth LLP and
Abingworth Bioventures VII LP on February 12, 2024. (2) The shares reported herein are held by subsidiaries of BlackRock, Inc.
BlackRock, Inc. is the parent holding company or control person in accordance with Rule 13d- 1 (b) (1) (ii) (G) and is deemed to
have had sole voting and dispositive power over the share. The address for BlackRock, Inc. is 50 Hudson Yards, New York, New
York 10001. Information in this footnote is based solely on a Schedule 13G filed by BlackRock, Inc. on November 8, 2024. (3) The
shares reported herein are held directly by Soleus Private Equity Fund III, L. P. (“ Soleus PE ) and by Soleus Capital Master
Fund, L. P. (“ Master Fund ). Soleus Private Equity GP III, LLC (“ Soleus PE GP ”) is the sole general partner of Soleus PE;
Soleus PE GP III, LLC is the sole manager of Soleus PE GP; Soleus Capital Management, L. P. (“ Soleus Capital Management ”)
is the investment manager for Soleus PE; and Soleus GP, LLC is the sole general partner of Soleus Capital Management. Soleus
Capital, LLC is the sole general partner of Master Fund; Soleus Capital Group, LLC is the sole managing member of Soleus
Capital, LLC; Soleus Capital Management is the investment manager for Master Fund; and Soleus GP, LLC is the sole general
partner of Soleus Capital Management. Guy Levy is the sole managing member of each of Soleus PE GP 111, LLC, Soleus Capital
Group, LLC and Soleus GP, LLC. Each of Soleus PE GP, Soleus PE GP 111, LLC, Soleus Capital, LLC, Soleus Capital Group,
LLC, Soleus Capital Management, Soleus GP, LLC and Mr. Levy disclaims beneficial ownership of these shares held directly by
Soleus PE and Master Fund. The address for each of these entities and individual is 104 Field Point Road, 2nd Floor, Greenwich,
CT 06830. Information in this footnote is based solely on a Schedule 13G jointly filed by Soleus PE GP, Soleus PE, Soleus PE GP
III, LLC, Master Fund, Soleus Capital, LL.C, Soleus Capital Group, LLC, Soleus Capital Management, Soleus GP, LLC and Guy
Levy on February 11, 2025. (4) The shares reported herein are directly held by Qiming U. S. Healthcare Fund II, L. P. (“ Qiming
). The general partner of Qiming is Qiming U. S. Healthcare GP I, LLC (“ Qiming GP ). Gary Rieschel and Mark D. McDade
are the managing partners of Qiming GP. Each of Qiming GP, Mr. Rieschel and Mr. McDade may be deemed to beneficially own
the shares beneficially owned by Qiming, but each disclaims beneficial ownership of such shares. The address for each of these
entities and individuals is 11100 NE 8th Street, Suite 200, Bellevue, WA 98004. Information in this footnote is based solely on a
Schedule 13G / A jointly filed by Qiming, Qiming GP, Mr. McDade and Mr. Rieschel on February 14, 2024. (5) Consists of: (i) 1,
188, 500 shares directly beneficially owned by Velan Capital Master Fund LP (“ Velan Master ) and (ii) 283, 403 shares directly
beneficially owned by Avego Healthcare Capital, L. P. (“ Avego Fund ”). Velan Capital Holdings LLC (“ Velan GP »), as the
general partner of Velan Master, may be deemed to beneficially own the 1, 188, 500 shares owned by Velan Master. Avego
Healthcare Capital Holdings, LLC (“ Avego GP ”), as the general partner of Avego Fund, may be deemed to beneficially own the
283, 403 shares beneficially owned by Avego Fund. Avego Management, LLC (“ Avego Management ”), as the co- investment
manager of Avego Fund, may be deemed to beneficially own the 283, 403 shares beneficially owned by Avego Fund. Velan Capital
Investment Management LP (“ Velan Capital ”), as the investment manager of Velan Master and co- investment manager of Avego
Fund, may be deemed to beneficially own the 1, 471, 903 shares beneficially owned in the aggregate by Velan Master and Avego
Fund. Velan Capital Management LLC (“ Velan IM GP ), as the general partner of Velan Capital, may be deemed to beneficially
own the 1, 471, 903 shares beneficially owned in the aggregate by Velan Master and Avego Fund. Adam Morgan, as a Managing
Member of each of Velan GP and Velan IM GP, may be deemed to beneficially own the 1, 471, 903 shares beneficially owned in the
aggregate by Velan Master and Avego Fund. Balaji Venkataraman, as the Managing Member of each of Avego GP and Avego
Management and a Managing Member of each of Velan GP and Velan IM GP, may be deemed to beneficially own the 1, 471, 903
shares beneficially owned in the aggregate by Velan Master and Avego Fund. Each of Velan Master, Avego Fund, Velan GP, Avego
GP, Avego Management, Velan Capital, Velan IM GP, Mr. Morgan and Mr. Venkataraman disclaims beneficial ownership of the
securities reported herein that he or it does not directly own. Mr. Kapoor is a partner at Avego Management and is on our Board.
The address for each of these entities and individuals is 1055b Powers Place, Alpharetta, Georgia 30009. Information in this
footnote is based solely on a Schedule 13D / A jointly fie-filed the-by Velan Master, Avego Fund, Velan GP, Avego GP, Avego
Management, Velan Capital, Velan IM GP, Mr. Morgan, Mr. Venkataraman and Mr. Kapoor on February 9, 2024 Prexy-Statement
. (6) Consists of (i) 33, 118 shares held directly, and (ii) 245, 824 shares issuable upon exercise of options exercisable within 60 days
of February 14, 2025. (7) Consists of 32, 291 shares issuable upon exercise of options exercisable within 60 days of February 14,
2025. (8) Consists of (i) 25, 009 shares held directly, and (ii) 54, 467 shares issuable upon exercise of options exercisable within 60



days of February 14, 2025. (9) Consists of (i) 400 shares held directly, and (ii) 31, 458 shares issuable upon exercise of options
exercisable within 60 days of February 14, 2025. (10) Consists of 4, 112 shares issuable upon exercise of options exercisable within
60 days of February 14, 2025. (11) Consists of (i) 5, 000 shares held directly, and (ii) 3, 895 shares issuable upon exercise of options
exercisable within 60 days of February 14, 2025. (12) Consists of (i) 3, 250 shares held directly, and (ii) 12, 504 shares issuable upon
exercise of options exercisable within 60 days of February 14, 2025. (13) Consists of (i) 115, 901 shares held directly, and (ii) 27, 120
shares issuable upon exercise of options exercisable within 60 days of February 14, 2025. (14) Consists of (i) 2, 117 shares held
directly, and (ii) 12, 504 shares issuable upon exercise of options exercisable within 60 days of February 14, 2025. (15) Consists of
(i) 4, 375 shares held directly, and (ii) 11, 992 shares issuable upon exercise of options exercisable within 60 days of February 14,
2025. As of December 31, 2024, the 2024 Equity Incentive Plan (the “ 2024 Plan ), the 2024 Equity Employee Stock Purchase Plan
(the “ 2024 ESPP ) and the 2022 Inducement Equity Incentive Plan (the “ Inducement Plan ) were the only compensation plans
under which our securities were authorized for future grant. In addition, as of December 31, 2024, equity awards were outstanding
under our 2021 Equity Incentive Plan (the “ 2021 Plan ). Effective as of the effectiveness of the 2024 Plan, we cannot grant future
awards under the 2021 Plan. However, the 2021 Plan continues to govern awards outstanding thereunder. Each of the 2021 Plan,
the 2024 Plan and the 2024 ESPP was approved by our stockholders. The Inducement Plan has not been approved by our
stockholders. In 2021, our 2019 Equity Incentive Plan (the “ 2019 EIP ), which was adopted by our Board and stockholders on
November 18, 2019, terminated prior to and contingent upon the consummation of the business combination with Amplitude
Healthcare Acquisition Corporation that was completed in 2021. However, the 2019 EIP continues to govern awards outstanding
thereunder. The following table provides information as of December 31, 2024 with respect to our existing and predecessor plans.
Plan Category (a) Number of Securities to be Issued Upon Exercise of Outstanding Options, Warrants and Rights (b) Weighted-
Average Exercise Price of Outstanding Options, Warrants and Rights (¢) Number of Securities Remaining Available for Future
Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans (Excluding Securities Reflected in Column (a)) Equity compensation plans approved
by stockholders (1) 1, 115, 263 $ 18. 71 (2) 2, 772, 661 (3) (4) Equity compensation plans not approved by stockholders (5) 533, 115
$ 22. 00 16, 885 Total 1, 648, 378 $ 40. 72 2, 789, 546 (1) Includes the following plans: the 2024 Plan, 2021 Plan, the 2019 EIP and
the 2024 ESPP. (2) Amount is based on the weighted- average exercise price of vested and unvested stock options outstanding
under the 2024 Plan, the 2021 Plan and the 2019 EIP and does not reflect the shares that will be issued upon the vesting of
outstanding awards of restricted stock unit awards, which have no exercise price. (3) As of December 31, 2024, a total of 1, 791, 291
shares of our common stock were reserved for issuance for future grants pursuant to the 2024 Plan. All of the foregoing share
numbers are subject to adjustment in the event of a stock split, stock dividend or other change in our capitalization. Shares subject
to awards granted under the 2024 Plan that expire or terminate without being exercised in full will not reduce the number of shares
available for issuance under the 2024 Plan. The settlement of any portion of an award in cash will not reduce the number of shares
available for issuance under the 2024 Plan. Shares withheld under an award to satisfy the exercise, strike or purchase price of an
award or to satisfy a tax withholding obligation will reduce the number of shares available for issuance under the 2024 Plan. With
respect to a stock appreciation right, only shares of common stock that are issued upon settlement of the stock appreciation right
will count towards reducing the number of shares available for issuance under the 2024 Plan. If any shares of our common stock
issued pursuant to an award are forfeited back to or repurchased or reacquired by us because of a failure to meet a contingency or
condition required for the vesting of such date-shares , we-the shares that are forfeited or repurchased or reacquired will file-revert
to and again become available for issuance under the 2024 Plan. If any shares of our common stock issued pursuant to an
amendment-award are forfeited back (o thisAnnual-Repert-onFerm—10—I—or repurchased or reacquired by us (i) to satisfy the
exercise, strike or purchase price of an award or (ii) to satisfy a tax withholding obligation in connection with an award, the shares
that inelades-the-informationare forfeited or repurchased or required-reacquired by-thistem12-will reduce the number of shares
available for issuance under the 2024 Plan. We no longer make grants under the 2019 EIP or the 2021 Plan; however, up to 783,
478 shares of our common stock (subject to adjustment for recapitalizations, stock splits and similar transactions) subject to
outstanding stock options or other equity awards granted under the 2021 Plan that, following June 6, 2024, terminate or expire
prior to exercise or settlement, are not issued because the award is settled in cash or are forfeited because of the failure to vest,
became or will become available for issuance under the 2024 Plan. (4) As of December 31, 2024, a total of 981, 370 shares of our
common stock were reserved for future issuance pursuant to the 2024 ESPP. (5) Includes solely the Inducement Plan . I[TEM 13
CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS The followmg mfefma&eﬂ—feqwfed—by—ﬂa-rs—rtem-lx a
summary of transactions since January 1, e 2 g atred-n-the- (24 Prexy-Statement-, to
which we expeet-have been a participant in which the amount involved exceeded or will exceed the lesser of $ 120, 000 or one
percent of the average of our total assets at year- end for the last te-two file-notlater-completed fiscal years, and in which any of our
directors, executive officers or holders of more than 120-days-after-five percent of our capital stock, or any member of the immediate
family of the foregoing persons, had or will have a direct or indirect material interest, the-other end-than compensation
arrangements which are described in “ Executive Compensation ” in Part III, Item 11 of the-fiseal-yeareovered-by-this Annual
Report on Form 10- K. Fe-We believe the extent-terms obtained or consideration that we de-netfile-paid or received, as applicable, in
connection with the 2024-Proxy-Statement-by-sueh-date-transactions described below were comparable to terms available or the
amounts that would be paid or received, as applicable, in arm’ s length transactions. On December 16, 2019 , we will-file-entered
into a consulting agreement with Judith Shizuru, M. D., Ph. D., a member of our Board an-and amendment-holder of more than 5
% of our capital stock at the time the consulting agreement was entered into, pursuant to which Dr. Shizuru provides us with
consulting and advisory services in exchange for a cash fee of $ 20, 833 per month, or $ 250, 000 per year. Employment
Arrangements We have entered into employment agreements, offer letters and service agreements with certain of our executive
officers. For more information regarding these agreements with our executive officers, see “ Executive Compensation —
Employment and Other Arrangements with Named Executive Officers ” in Part III, Item 11 of this Annual Report on Form 10- K

. Annual Cash Bonus We have established a cash incentive plan for certain of our executive
officers. For a description of this plan, see “ Executive Compensatlon — Individual Compensation Elements — Annual Cash
Incentlve Bonuses i 1n Part III [tem 11

of t-he—ﬁsea-l—ywﬁeevefed—by—lhl\ \nnLuI I\qmll on Form I - K. :Fe-Indemmﬁcatmn ofDlrectors and
Officers Our Certificate of Incorporation contains provisions that limit the liability of our current and former directors and



officers for monetary damages to the fullest cxtent permitted by Delaware law. Delaware law provides that directors and officers of
a corporation will not be personally liable for monetary damages for any breach of fiduciary duties as directors or officers, except
liability for: e any breach of the director’ s or officer’ s duty of loyalty to the corporation or its stockholders; ® any act or omission
not in good faith or that involves intentional misconduct or a knowing violation of law; e as a director, unlawful payments of
dividends or unlawful stock repurchases or redemptions; e as an officer, derivative claims brought on behalf of the corporation by
a stockholder; or e any transaction from which the director or officer derived an improper personal benefit. Such limitation of
liability does not apply to liabilities arising under federal securities laws and does not affect the availability of equitable remedies
such as injunctive relief or rescission. Our Certificate of Incorporation authorizes us to indemnify our directors, officers, employees
and other agents to the fullest extent permitted by Delaware law. Our Bylaws provide that we de-netftle-are required to indemnify
our directors and officers to thc 2024-Prexy-Statement-fullest extent permitted by sueh-date-Delaware law and may indemnify our
other employees and agents. Our Bylaws also provide that, on satisfaction of certain conditions , we will file-advance expenses
incurred by a director or officer in advance of the final disposition of an-any amendment-action or proceeding, and permit us to
secure insurance on behalf of any officer, director, employee or other agent for any liability arising out of his or her actions in that
capacity regardless of whether we would otherwise be permitted to indemnify him or her under the provisions of Delaware law. We
have also entered, and expect to continue to enter, into agreements to indemnify our directors and executive officers. With certain
exceptions, these agreements provide for indemnification for related expenses, including attorneys’ fees, judgments, fines and
settlement amounts incurred by any of these individuals in connection with any action, proceeding or investigation. We believe that
our Certificate of Incorporation, Bylaws and indemnification agreements are necessary to attract and retain qualified persons as
directors and officers. We also maintain customary directors’ and officers’ liability insurance. Rule 10bS- 1 Sales Plans Our
directors and executive officers may adopt written plans, known as Rule 10b5- 1 plans, in which they will contract with a broker to
buy or sell shares of our common stock on a periodic basis. Under a Rule 10bS- 1 plan, a broker executes trades pursuant to
parameters established by the director or executive officer when entering into the plan, without further direction from them. The
director or executive officer may amend a Rule 10bS- 1 plan in some circumstances and may terminate a plan at any time. Our
directors and executive officers also may buy or sell additional shares outside of a Rule 10b5- 1 plan when they are not in possession
of material nonpublic information, subject to compliance with the terms of our insider trading policy. Other Transactions We have
granted stock and option awards to certain of our directors and named executive officers. For more information regarding the
stock and option awards granted to our directors and named executive officers, see “ Executive Compensation — Non- Employee
Director Compensation — Non- Employee Director Compensation Table ” and “ Executive Compensation — Outstanding Equity
Awards as of December 31, 2024 * in Part III, Item 11 of this Annual Report on Form 10- K . We have entered into change- in-
control agreements with certain of our executive officers pursuant to our Severance Plan that inelades-, among the-other information
things, provide for certain severance and change- in- control benefits. See the section titled “ Executive Compensation —
Employment and Other Arrangements with Named Executive Officers — Employee Severance Plan ” in Part I1I, Item 11 of this
Annual Report on Form 10- K. Policies and Procedures for Related Party Transactions Our Board has adopted a related person
transaction policy setting forth the policies and procedures for the identification, review and approval or ratification of related
person transactions. This policy covers, with certain exceptions set forth in Item 404 of Regulation S- K under the Securities Act of
1933, as amended (the “ Securities Act ), any transaction, arrangement or relationship, or any series of similar transactions,
arrangements or relationships, in which we and a related person, as defined by the Securities Act, were or will be participants and
the amount involved exceeds $ 120, 000, including purchases of goods or services by or from the related person or entities in which
the related person has a material interest, indebtedness and guarantees of indebtedness. In reviewing and approving any such
transactions, our Audit Committee will consider all relevant facts and circumstances as appropriate, such as the purpose of the
transaction, the availability of other sources of comparable products or services, whether the transaction is on terms comparable to
those that could be obtained in an arm’ s length transaction, management’ s recommendation with respect to the proposed related
person transaction and the extent of the related person’ s interest in the transaction. ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES
AND SERVICES Fees Paid to the Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm The following table presents fees for
professional audit services and other services rendered by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP to us for our fiscal years ended December
31, 2024 and December 31, 2023 (in thousands). 2024 2023 Audit Fees (1) $ 1, 050 $ 1, 110 Audit- Related Fees — — Tax Fees (2) —
13 All Other Fees (3) 2 2 Total 1, 052 $ 1, 125 (1) Audit fees consist of fees billed for professional services by
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP for financial statement audit and review services that are customary under generally accepted
auditing standards or that are customary for the purpose of rendering an opinion on or review of the financial statements, and
comfort letters, consents and assistance with review of documents relating to our registration statements on Form S- 3 and Form S-
8. (2) Tax fees consist of fees for tax compliance services. (3) Consist of fees for products and services other than the services
described above. All other fees for fiscal years 2024 and 2023 were related to annual subscription for accounting literature. Auditor
Independence In our fiscal year ended December 31, 2024, there were no other professional services provided by
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, other than those listed above, that would have required our Audit Committee to consider their
compatibility with maintaining the independence of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP. Pre- Approval Policies and Procedures Our
Audit Committee is required to pre- approve the audit and non- audit services performed by this-our independent registered public
accounting firm in order to assure that the provision of such services does not impair the auditor’ s independence. Any proposed
services exceeding pre- approved cost levels require specific pre- approval by our Audit Committee. Our Audit Committee at least
annually reviews and provides general pre- approval for the services that may be provided by the independent registered public
accounting firm. The Htenr- term +4-of the general pre- approval is 12 months from the date of approval unless our Audit
Committee specifically provides for a different period . If our Audit Committee has not provided general pre- approval, then the
type of service requires specific pre- approval by our Audit Committee. Pursuant to its charter, our Audit Committee has delegated
pre- approval authority to the Chairperson of our Audit Committee so long as any such pre- approval decisions are presented to the
full Audit Committee at its next scheduled meeting. All services performed and related fees billed by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
during fiscal year 2024 were pre- approved by our Audit Committee pursuant to regulations of the SEC. PART IV ITEM 15.
EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES (a) (1) Financial Statements Our Financial Statements are listed in the “ Index to
the Financial Statements ” of Jasper Therapeutics, Inc. in Part II, Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10- K. (a) (2) Financial Statement
Schedules All financial statement schedules have been omitted because they are not required, not applicable, or the required information is



included in the consolidated financial statements or notes thereto included in Part II, Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10- K. (a) (3)
Exhibits The following exhibits are filed herewith or incorporated herein by reference: Incorporated by Reference Exhibit Number
Description Form File Number Filing Date Exhibit 2. 1 Business Combination Agreement, dated as of May 5, 2021, by and among
Amplitude Healthcare Acquisition Corporation, Ample Merger Sub, Inc., and Jasper Therapeutics, Inc. 8- K 001- 39138 5/6 /2021 2. 1 3.
1 Second Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Registrant. 8- K 001-39138 9/29 /2021 3. 1 3. 2 Certificate of
Amendment to the Second Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation, dated June 8, 2023. 8- K 001- 39138 6 /8 /2023 3.13.3
Certificate of Second Amendment to the Second Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Jasper Therapeutics, Inc., filed with
the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware on January 3, 2024. 8- K 001- 39138 1/3 /2024 3. 1 3. 4 Third Amended and Restated
Bylaws of the Registrant. 8- K 001- 39138 2 /17 /2023 3. 1 4. 1 Form of Warrant Agreement, dated November 19, 2019, by and between
the Registrant and Continental Stock Transfer & Trust Company, as warrant agent. 8- K 001-39138 11 /25/2019 4. 1 4. 2 Specimen
Warrant Certificate. S- 1/ A 333-234324 11/6/2019 4. 3 4. 3 =Description of Securities of Jasper Therapeutics, Inc. 10 —+Ferm-of
-Sﬁbseﬂpﬂefh%greemeﬁt—éated—Mayé—EOQ—l—S— K 001 391 38 3/5 / 6—/—2024 4.310.1 Jasper Therapeutics, Inc. 2021 Equity Incentive
- C estated-Reets tg ee —8- K 001- 391389/29/7()211()310
2 -1-9—3—#—Jasper4hefapeuﬂes—Amended and Restated Reglstratlon nghts Agreement -Iae—dated September 24, 2021
Plan-. 8- K 001- 39138 9/29 /2021 10. 2 10. 3 +0-4-# Jasper Therapeutics, Inc. 20242024 Equity Incentive Plan . S- 8 333-280039 6 /7 /
2024 4.3 10. 4 # Form of Stock Option Award GrantNetiee-and-Stoek-Option-Agreement under the Jasper Therapeutics, Inc . 2024
Equity Incentive Plan. S- 8 333 - 280039 6 K-66+-—391389-/ 29-7 / 262+-2024 +6-4 . 4 10. 5 # Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award
Agreement under the Jasper Therapeutics, Inc. 2024 Equity Incentive Plan. S- 8 333- 280039 6 /7 /2024 4. 5 10. 6 # Form of
Restricted Stock Award Agreement under the Jasper Therapeutlcs, Inc 2024 Equ1ty Incentlve Plan S- 8 333 280039 6/7 / 2024 4.
6 10. 7 # Jasper Therapeutics, Inc. 26242024 Egt A e A

Employee Stoek Pulehase P an. S- 8 333 280039 6 -1699-1-—}9-1-3-8—9—
20-7 /20242024 4.7 10. 86—1—9—7—# Jasper Therapeutics, lne 2022 Amended and Restated Inducement Equity Incentive Plan. 8- K 001-
39138 6/8/2023 10. 1 10. 89 # Jasper Therapeutics, Inc. 2022 Inducement Equity Incentive Plan Form of Stock Option Agreement and
Terms and Conditions of Stock Option Grant. S- 8 333-263702 3 /18 /2022 10. 6 60— 10 . 9-10 # Jasper Therapeutics, Inc. 2022
Inducement Equity Incentive Plan Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement and Terms and Conditions of Restricted Stock Unit Grant. S- 8
333-263702 3 /18 /2022 10. 7 10. +68-11 # Jasper Therapeutics, Inc. 2019 Equity Incentive Plan. S- 4/ A 333- 256875 7/19/2021 10. 12
10. +-12 # Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, dated as of February25-June 10 ., 2622-2024 , by and between Jasper
Therapeutics, Inc. and Ronald Martell. 8- K 001- 39138 2-6 / 28-12 / 2622-2024 10. +-3 10. 42-13 # First-Amendment— Amended to-and
Restated Employment Agreement, dated Aprit-43-as of June 10 , 2623-2024 , by and between Jasper Therapeutics, Inc. and Renatd
MarteH-Herb Cross . 8- K 001-39138 6 /12 /2024 10. 4 ~#10. 14 /2623+0210-13-# Amended and Restated Employment Agreement,
dated as of September24-June 10 , 26242024 , by and between Jasper Therapeutics, Inc. and Jeet Mahal. 8- K 001- 39138 6 /12 /2024
10. 5 10. 15 # Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, dated as of June 10, 2024, by and between Jasper Therapeutics, Inc.
and Edwin Tucker. 8- K 001- 39138 6 /12 /2024 10. 610. 16 # Consulting Agreement, dated December 16, 2019, by and between
Jasper Therapeutics, Inc. and Judith Shizuru, M. D., Ph. D. S-4 / A 333- 256875 8 /9 /29-/ 2021 10. 829 10. +4-17 * # Jasper
Therapeutics, Inc. Non- Employee -Severa-nee—P-}&n—fer—Vtee—Pres-tdents—Dlrector Compensation Policy. 10. 18 # Form of Indemnification
Agreement by and between Jasper Therapeutics, Inc. and each of its directors and Exeeutive-executive officers Committee Members-.
S-4 /A 333-2568757/19/2021 10. H-28 10. +5#-Censulting-19 Exclusive License Agreement, dated DPeeember+6-November 21 ,
2019, by dnd bem reen stpel Thelapeutlcs Inc and Amgen Inc:Fudrt-h—S-h-x—z&ru—M—B—Ph—B— S-4 / A 333- 256875 8 /9/2021 10. 2—9—13

%%MWNO\ cmber 21, 2019 by and bem een Jasper Therapeuucs Inc. and Am%n Inc. S-4/A 3?3—
2568758/9/2021 10. 4346-14 10 . 23-Assigament21 Investigator Sponsored Research Agreement, dated-Amgen Protocol No.
20119244, effective as of Nevember2+-June 18 , 2649-2013 , by-and-between Jasper Therapeutics, Inc. and-, as successor in interest to
Amgen Inc ., and The Board of Trustees of the Leland Stanford Junior University for Stanford University . S- 4 / A 333- 2568758 /9
/2021 10. +4-15 10. 24-22 Amendment # 1 to the Investigator Sponsored Research Agreement, Amgen Protocol No. 20119244, dated
February 27 effeetive-as-ofJuned8-, 2043-2017 ., between Jasper Therapeutics, Inc., as successor in interest to Amgen Inc., and The Board
of Trustees of the Leland Stanford Junior University for Stanford University. S- 4 / A 333- 256875 8/9/2021 10. +5-16 10. 25-23
Amendment # 42 to the Investigator Sponsored Research Agreement, Amgen Protocol No. 20119244, dated Febfuafy%q—November 15,
2017, between Jasper Therapeutics, Inc., as successor in interest to Amgen Inc., and The Board of Trustees of the Leland Stanford Junior
University for Stanford University. S- 4/ A 333-2568758/9 /2021 10. -1-6-17 10. 26-24 Quality Amendment#2-to-theInvestigater
Sponsered-Researeh-A greement, Amgen-ProtoeolNo—204H9244;-dated Nevember15-October 7 , 26472015 , by and between Jasper
Therapeutics, Inc., as successor in interest to Amgen Inc., and The Board of Trustees of the Leland Stanford Junior University for Stanford
University. S- 4/ A 333-256875 8 /9 /2021 10. 4718 10. 2725 Quality-Exclusive License Agreement, dated-Oetober7-effective as of
March 25 , 2645 2021 , by and between Jasper Therapeutics, Inc. ;-as-steeessortrinterestto-Amgentnesand The Board of Trustees of
the Leland Stanford Junior Yntversityfor-Stanford-University. S- 4 / A 333-2568758/9/2021 10. 48-19 10. 28-26 Amendment No. 1 to
the Exclusive License Agreement, dated July 27, 2023, between Stanford University and Jasper Therapeutics, Inc. 10- Q 001- 39138
8/11/2023 10. 2 10. 27 Sponsored Research Agreement, cffcctive September 1 as-efMareh25-, 2624-2020 ., by and between Jasper
Therdpeutles In(, and The B()dld ofTrustees of the Leldnd Stdl]f()ld lumol Univ crs1ty S-4/A 333 "56875 8/9/2021 10. -1-9—1-9%9

Dev el()pment dl]d Mdnufdcturmg Services Agreement, dated N()vembel 29, 2()19 by and between Jasper Therapeutics, Inc. dnd Lonza



Sales AG. S-4 /A 333-256875 8/20/2021 10. 25 10. 32-29 Amendment No. 1 to Development and Manufacturing Services Agreement,
executed April 24, 2020 by and between Jasper Therapeutics, Inc. and Lonza Sales AG. S-4/ A 333-2568758/20/2021 10. 26 10.33-30
Amendment No. 2 to Development and Manufacturing Services Agreement, executed December 1, 2020, by and between Jasper
Therapeutics, Inc. and Lonza Sales AG. S-4 /A 333- 256875 8/20/2021 10. 27 10. 34-31 Controlled Equity OfferingSM Sales
Agreement, dated as of November 10, 2022, by and between Jasper Therapeutics, Inc. and Cantor Fitzgerald & Co. 10- Q 001- 39138 11/
10/ 2022 10. 1 -1-9—19 1 35—#—* 9ffeﬁhe&er—dafed41me—7%92—3—by—&ﬁd—bet%eﬂ—]aspcr Thcrapcutlcs Inc. Insider Tradlng Policy and

e i er—date by-and-be 3 ss—21. 1 List of
Sub51d1ar1cs of thc R%lstrant 8-K 001 39138 9 /29 / 2021 21 1 23 1 * Consent of Indcpcndcnt R%lstcrcd Publlc Accountmg Firm. 31.
1 * Certification of the Principal Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a- 14 (a) or 15d- 14 (a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. 31.
2 * Certification of the Principal Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a- 14 (a) or 15d- 14 (a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. 32. 1
* * Certification of the Principal Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U. S. C. Section 1350, as adopted
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes- Oxley Act of 2002. 97*-Jasper Therapeutics, Inc. Clawback Policy 10- K 001- 39138 3 /5 /2024
97 101. INS * Inline XBRL Instance Document — the instance document does not appear in the Interactive Data File because its XBRL tags
are embedded within the Inline XBRL document. 101. SCH * Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document. 101. CAL * Inline
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document. 101. DEF * Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase
Document. 101. LAB * Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document. 101. PRE * Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension
Presentation Linkbase Document. 104 * Cover Page Interactive Data File (formatted as inline XBRL and contained in Exhibit 101). The
annexes, schedules, and certain exhibits to the Business Combination Agreement have been omitted pursuant to Item 601 (b) (2) of
Regulation S- K. The Registrant hereby agrees to furnish supplementally a copy of any omitted annex, schedule or exhibit to the SEC upon
request. # Indicates a management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement. Certain identified information has been omitted pursuant
to Item 601 (b) (10) of Regulation S- K because such information is both (i) not material and (ii) of the type that the Registrant treats as
private or confidential. The Registrant hereby undertakes to furnish supplemental copies of the unredacted exhibit upon request by the SEC.
* Filed herewith. * * Furnished herewith. ITEM 16. FORM 10- K SUMMARY SIGNATURES Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13
or 15 (d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned,
thereunto duly authorized. Date: Marel-5-February 28 , 2624-2025 JASPER THERAPEUTICS, INC. By: /s / Ronald Martell Ronald
Martell Chief Executive OfficerPursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by
the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated. Signature Title Date / s / Ronald Martell
President, Chief Executive Officer and Director Mareh-5-February 28 ., 2624-2025 Ronald Martell (Principal Executive Officer) /s / Herb
Cross Chief Financial Officer Mareh-5-February 28 , 2624-2025 Herb Cross (Principal Accounting and Financial Officer) /s / Thomas G.
Wiggans Chairperson of the Board Marelr5-February 28 , 2024-2025 Thomas G. Wiggans /s / Scott Brun, M. D. Director Marel5
February 28 , 2624-2025 Scott Brun, M. D %mw—ﬁerwh—D&%&FB&eefe%M&rehé—Z@%ﬁnfm—Fmﬁeh—B—Phﬂ— /'s / Vishal Kapoor
Director Mareh-5-February 28 . 2624-2025 Vishal Kapoor /s / Svetlana Lucas, Ph. D. Director February 28, 2025 Svetlana Lucas, Ph.
D./s/ Christian W. Nolet Director Mareh-5-February 28 , 2024-2025 Christian W. Nolet /s / Judith Shizuru, M. D., Ph. D. Director
Mareh-5-February 28 , 2024-2025 Judith Shizuru, M. D., Ph. D. /s / Kurt von Emster Director Mareh-5-February 28 , 2624-2025 Kurt
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NON- EMPLOYEE DIRECTOR COMPENSATION POLICY Each non- employee member o eeﬁa—rﬂ—pfeﬂsreﬂs—e-f—tlm seeurities
board of dlrectors (the “ Board ”) of Llspel Thcmpeutlu Inc. (the ” ;

vott par-valte per-ha ellglble to recelve cash and equlty compensatlon for h1s or her
serv1ce on the Board as set forth in thls Non- Employee Dlrector Compensation Policy (this “ Policy Veting-Common-Stoek-") . The

cash and equity compensation described in this Policy {5)2;-690,-000-shall be paid or be made ron—voting-eommen-stoek-,
6-000+-pershare(as applicable, automatically and without further action of the Board (or any committee thereof), to each member




of the Board who is not an employee of the Company or any parent or subsldlary of the Company (each a “ Non- Employee

Director Veting-Common-Stoek"" an who i 1s ellglble to receive such

cash or equlty compensatlon unless such e

Fen ek-and \lon Employee Dlrector dechnes ¥oﬁﬂg

v g-Coton ek-at-suehh selee by-p ding-written notice to thc Company 5. This Pol1cy shall remain in effect until it
is rev1sed or rescinded by further action of the Board or the Compensation Committee of the Board (the “ Compensation

Commlttee ”) ThlS Pohcy and the compensatlon to be pl oV ldcd hereunder t-h&t—&s—a—result—eflsuelireeﬂvefs*eﬂ—weh—helder—teget-hef

at any time wpeotrin its sole discretion. The terms and conditions of this

Pollcy shall supersede any prior w&&eﬂ-neﬁee—te-cash and / or equlty compensatlon arrangements between lhc C ompan\ —He-lelefs

Company- s service on (or on behalf of) the Borud of-or any commlttee thereof No Non- Employee Dlrector shall have any rlghts
hereunder, except with respect to the cash compensation and stock options granted pursuant to this Policy. Non- Employee
Directors may be eligible to receive discretionary awards granted outside this Policy. 1. Cash Compensation. The following are
effective as of January 1, 2023: (a) Annual Cash Retainers. Each Non- Employee Director shall be eligible to receive an annual
cash retainer of $ 40, 000 for service on the Board. (b) Additional Annual Cash Retainers. In addition, a Non- Employee Director
shall receive the following annual cash retainers, if applicable: (i) Chairperson of the Board. A Non- Employee Director serving as
Chairperson of the Board shall receive an additional annual cash retainer of $ 30, 000 for such service. (ii) Audit Committee. A
Non- Employee Director serving as Chairperson of the Audit Committee of the Board (the “ Audit Committee ) shall receive an
additional annual cash retainer of § 15, 000 for such service. A Non- Employee Director serving as a member of the Audit
Committee (other than the Chairperson) shall receive an additional annual cash retainer of $ 7, 500 for such service. (iii)
Compensation Committee. A Non- Employee Director serving as Chairperson of the Compensation Committee shall receive an
additional annual cash retainer of $ 10, 000 for such service. A Non- Employee Director serving as a member of the Compensation
Committee (other than the Chairperson) shall receive an additional annual cash retainer of $ 5, 000 for such service. (iv)
Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee. A Non- Employee Director serving as Chairperson of the Nominating and
Corporate Governance Committee of the Board (the “ Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee ') shall receive an
additional annual cash retainer of $ 8, 000 for such service. A Non- Employee Director serving as a member of the Nominating and
Corporate Governance Committee (other than the Chairperson) shall receive an additional annual cash retainer of $ 4, 000 for
such service. (v) Research and Development Committee. A Non- Employee Director serving as Chairperson of the Research and
Development Committee of the Board (the “ R & D Committee ) shall receive an additional annual cash retainer of $ 11, 300 for
such service. A Non- Employee Director serving as a member of the R & D Committee (other than the Chairperson) shall receive
an additional annual cash retainer of $ 6, 300 for such service. (c) Payment of Retainers. The annual cash retainers described in
Sections 1 (a) and 1 (b) shall be earned on a quarterly basis based on a calendar quarter and shall be paid by the Company in
arrears not later than the 30th day following the end of each calendar quarter. In the event a Non- Employee Director does not
serve as a Non- Employee Director, or in the applicable positions described in Section 1 (b), for an entire calendar quarter, the
retainer paid to such Non- Employee Director shall be prorated for the portion of such calendar quarter actually served as a Non-
Employee Director, or in such position, as applicable. For avoidance of doubt ifa Non- Employee Dlrector serves on the Board or a
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approval-of the-Company—sBeard-ef Direeters{-or a committee lhu €0 )—(eel-leeﬂ-vel-y— as apphcable, such that each Non- Employee

Director shall receive annual cash retainers under this Policy only for the “periods during which such Non- Employee Director
actually serves on the Board 2)y-or a committee thereof . you-will-as applicable. There are no per meeting attendance fees for
attending meetings of the Board or any committee thereof. (d) Revisions. Each of the Board and the Compensation Committee, in
its discretion, may change and otherwise revise the terms of the cash compensation granted under this Policy, including, without
limitation, the amount of cash compensation to be paid, on or after the date the Board or the Compensation Committee determines
to make any such change or revision. 2. Equity Compensation. Non- Employee Directors shall be granted a-steek-option-the equity
awards described below. The awards descrlbed below shall be granted under and shall be subJect to the terms and provnslons

purehase-400,-000-shares-of the C ompdm S 2021 Equlty Incentlve

S ry O

fhe—Gemp&ﬂ-}Feﬁaf&eﬂts—afﬂh&tes—fel&tmg—te-thc C ompan\ S stockholders) S

ofthis-offerletter  the

elate A-any-Way vith—-this-offerde otir-employment-with-the ARY-Or-any olhu appllcablerel&&eﬁshrp-betweeﬂ
you-and-the-Company equlty mcentlve plan then mamtamed by the Company (the * Pisputes-Equity Plan ) svill-, and shall be
governed-granted subject to the execution and dehvery of award agreements, 1nclud1ng attached exhlblts, in substantially the forms
previously approved by the Board laws h stav 0

Compensatlon Commlttee, settmg forth the vestmg schedule apphcable to such awards and such t-he—other terms as may Gem-pa-ﬁy




testantto-the h s1re Atve Pl n (as may be amended y-or l‘estated from time to time,
collectively, the * Addltlonal Terms ”) All appllcable terms of the Equnty Plan apply to this Policy as if fully set forth herein, and all
stock options granted pursuant to this Policy are subject in all respects to the terms of the Equity Plan and the Additional Terms.
(a) Appointment Awards for New Non- Employee Directors. Commencing April 19, 2024, upon the date an individual first becomes
appointed or elected as a Non- Employee Director, such individual shall be automatically, and without further action of the Board
or the Compensation Committee, granted a one- time non- statutory stock option to purchase 15, 000 shares of voting Common
Stock of the Company (“ Common Stock ) (sand-subject to adjustment for recapitalizations, stock splits, stock dividends and
similar transactions). The awards described in this Section 2 (a) shall be referred to as “ Appointment Awards. ” (b) Annual
Awards. Commencing April 19, 2024, on the date of each annual meeting of stockholders of the Company (each, an “ Annual
Meeting ), each individual who is a Non- Employee Director immediately prior to such Annual Meeting and who will continue to
serve as a Non- Employee Director immediately following such Annual Meeting shall be automatically, and without further action
of the Board or the Compensation Committee, granted a non- statutory stock option to purchase 7, S00 shares of Common Stock
(subject to adjustment for recapitalizations, stock splits, stock dividends and similar transactions). The awards described in this
Section 2 (b) shall be referred to as “ Annual Awards. ” For the avoidance of doubt, a Non- Employee Director elected for the first
time to the Board at an Annual Meeting shall only receive an Appointment Award in connection with such election, and shall not
receive any Annual Award on the date of such Annual Meeting. (¢) Termination of Employment of Employee Directors. Members
of the Board who are employees of the Company or any parent or subsidiary of the Company who subsequently terminate their
employment with the Company and any parent or subsidiary of the Company and remain on the Board will not receive an
Appointment Award grant pursuant to Section 2 (a) above, but to the extent that the-they approval-are otherwise eligible, will be
eligible to receive, after termination from employment with the Company and any parent or subsidiary of the Company, Annual
Awards as described in Section 2 (b) above. (d) Terms of Awards Granted to Non- Employee Directors. (i) Purchase Price. The per
share exercise price of each option granted to a Non- Employee Director shall equal the Fair Market Value (as defined in the
Equity Plan) of a share of Common Stock on the date the option is granted. (ii) Vesting. 25 % of the shares subject to each
Appointment Award shall vest and become exercisable on the one- year anniversary of the date of grant, with the remaining shares
vesting on a monthly basis thereafter over the following 36 months, in each case subject to the Non- Employee Director continuing
in service on the Board through and including such vesting date. Each Annual Award shall vest and become exercisable on the one-
year anniversary of the date of grant, in each case subject to the Non- Employee Director continuing in service on the Board
through and including such vesting date. No portion of an Appointment Award or Annual Award that is unvested or unexercisable
at the time of a Non- Employee Director’ s termination of service on the Board shall become vested or exercisable thereafter. All
Appointment Awards and Annual Awards held by a Non- Employee Director shall vest in full as of immediately prior to, and
contingent upon, the occurrence of a Change in Control (as defined in the Equity Plan), subject to such Non- Employee Director’ s
continuous service with the Company (or a parent or subsidiary of the Company) through immediately prior to such Change in
Control. (iii) Term. The term of each stock option granted to a Non- Employee Director shall be ten years from the date the option
is granted. Upon a Non- Employee Director’ s termination of service on the Board for any reason, his or her then- vested stock
options to purchase shares of Common Stock granted pursuant to this Policy shall remain exercisable for three months following
the termination of his or her service on the Board (or such longer period as the Board may determine in its discretion on or after
the date of grant of such stock options). (iv) Option Award Agreements. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Policy,
each Appointment Award and Annual Award shall be subject to the terms and conditions of the Equity Plan and the Additional
Terms. (e) Revisions. Each of the Board and the Compensation Committee, in its discretion, may change and otherwise revise the
terms of awards granted under this Policy, including, without limitation, the types of awards, the number of shares, the exercise
prices, and vesting schedules, for awards granted on or after the date the Board or the Compensation Committee determines to
make any such change or revision. 3. Expense Reimbursement. Upon presentation of documentation of such expenses reasonably
satisfactory to the Company, each Non- Employee Director shall be reimbursed for his or her reasonable out- of- pocket business
expenses incurred in connection with attending meetings of the Board and its committees or in connection with other business
related to service on the Board or its committees. Each Non- Employee Director also shall be reimbursed for his or her reasonable
out- of- pocket business expenses authorized by the Board or one of its committees that are incurred in connection with attendance
at meetings with the Company’ s Beard-efmanagement. All reimbursements under this Section 3 shall be made in accordance with
the Company’ s applicable expense reimbursement policies and procedures as in effect from time to time. Last amended on April
19, 2024 Exhibit 19. 1 Section 1. All Employees, Officers, Directors and their Family Members and Affiliates Are Subject to this
Policy. This Insider Trading Policy ( “ Policy ) applies to all employees, directors, officers and consultants (each a “ Covered Party
) of Jasper Therapeutics, Inc., a Delaware corporation (“ Jasper ” or the “ Company ”), their family members and entities over
which such individuals have or share voting or investment control. This Policy also applies to any other person who receives
material nonpublic information (as defined below) from any Jasper insider or is otherwise designated by the Compliance Officer
(as defined below). For purposes of this Policy, “ family members ” include immediate family or people who live with you, or are
financially dependent on you, and include family members who live elsewhere but whose transactions in securities are directed by
you or are subject to your influence or control. For purposes of this Policy, an “ officer ” means an “ officer ” as defined under
Rule 16a- 1 (f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “ Exchange Act ”). Every director, officer, employee
and consultant of the Company has the individual responsibility (and must take appropriate measures to cause such person’ s
family members) to comply with this Policy regardless of whether a eoemmittee-thereef){eoHeetively-transaction is executed outside a
blackout period or is pre- cleared by the Compliance Officer. The restrictions and procedures are intended to help avoid




inadvertent instances of improper insider trading , but appropriate judgment should always be exercised by each director, officer,
employee and consultant of the Company in connection with any transaction in the Company’ s securities. Employees, officers,
directors and consultants of the Company are responsible for ensuring compliance with this Policy by their family members. This
Policy continues to apply following termination of employment or other relationship with Jasper until after the second trading day
that any material non- public information in your possession has become public or is no longer material. Each employee, officer,
consultant and director is personally responsible for the actions of their family members and other persons with whom the-they
have a relationship who are subject to this Policy, including any pre- clearances required. As used in this Policy, the term “ Board
trading day ~ shall mean ),~ou-willbe-granted-a day on which The Nasdaq steelStock eption-to-purehase-550,-000-shares-of Market
LLC or the primary quotation system or national securities exchange on which the Company’ s common stock is the-then traded or
listed, is open for trading. As used in this Policy, the term * business day ” shall mean a day on which the Securities and Exchange
Commission’ s EDGAR system will receive and accept filings. Section 2. Trading in Jasper Securities While in Possession of
Material Nonpublic Information is Prohibited. The purchase or sale of securities by any person who possesses material nonpublic
information is a violation of U. S. federal and state securities laws. It is important to avoid the appearance, as well as the fact, of
trading based on material nonpublic information. No person subject to this Policy who is aware of material nonpublic information
relating to Jasper may, directly or indirectly (through family members, other persons, entities or otherwise) buy, sell or otherwise
trade in the securities of Jasper, or advise anyone else to do so, other than pursuant to a trading plan that complies with Rule 10b5-
1 promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission (“ SEC ) or as specifically exempted in Section 11 (B) of this Policy, or
otherwise engage in any action to take personal advantage of that information during any period commencing on the date that he
or she possesses material nonpublic information and ending at the close of business on the second trading day following the date of
public disclosure of such information, or at such time as such nonpublic information is no longer material. For purposes of this
Policy, the term “ trade ” includes any transaction in Jasper securities, including gifts and pledges. Each person subject to this
Policy may, from time to time, have to forego a proposed transaction even if they planned to make the transaction before learning
material nonpublic information and even if such person may suffer economic loss or forego anticipated profit by waiting. Section 3.
Trading in Other Public Companies’ Securities While in Possession of Material Nonpublic Information is Prohibited. No person
subject to this Policy who possesses material nonpublic information relating to other publicly traded companies, including our
vendors, customers and partners, as a result of employment, consulting or other relationship with Jasper or the performance of
services on our behalf, may, directly or indirectly (through family members, other persons, entities or otherwise) buy or sell
securities of such companies, or advise anyone else to do so, or otherwise engage in any action to take personal advantage of that
information. Civil and criminal penalties and termination of employment or consulting relationship or removal from our Board of
Directors may result from trading on inside information regarding the Company’ s business partners. All Covered Parties should
treat material nonpublic information about the Company’ s business partners with the same care required with respect to
information related directly to the Company. Section 4. Certain Types of Transactions Are Prohibited. A. Short Sales. Short sales
of Jasper securities, including a “ sale against the box ”, are prohibited, as short sales evidence the seller’ s expectation that Jasper
securities will decline in value, signal to the market that the seller has no confidence in the Company or its short- term prospects,
and may reduce the seller’ s incentive to improve Jasper performance. In addition, Section 16 (c) of the Exchange Act expressly
prohibits certain officers and directors from engaging in short sales. B. Publicly Traded Options . Transactions in puts, calls or
other derivative securities involving Jasper stock are prohibited, as any such transaction is, in effect, a bet on the short- term
movement of the Company’ s stock, creates the appearance of trading based on inside information, and may focus attention on
short- term performance at the expense of Jasper long- term objectives. C. Hedging Transactions. Hedging or monetization
transactions (including but not limited to zero- cost collars, prepaid variable forwards, equity swaps, puts, calls, collars, forwards
and other derivative instruments) are prohibited, as such transactions allow you to continue to own Jasper securities without the
full risks and rewards of ownership. When that occurs, your interests and the interests of Jasper and its stockholders may be
misaligned and may signal a message to the trading market when disclosed in Section 16 reports that may not be in the best
interests of Jasper and its stockholders at the time it is conveyed. D. Margin Accounts and Pledges. Directors, officers and other
employees and consultants are prohibited from holding Company securities in a margin account or pledging Company securities as
collateral for a loan, as such securities may be traded without your consent (for failing to meet a margin call or if you default on the
loan) at a time when you possess material nonpublic information or otherwise are not permitted to trade. E. Standing Orders.
Standing orders should be used only for a very brief period of time. A standing order placed with a broker or other nominee to sell
or purchase stock at a specified price leaves an employee, officer, director or consultant of the Company with no control over the
timing of the transaction. A standing order transaction executed by the broker or other nominee when such employee, officer,
director or consultant of the Company is aware of material nonpublic information may result in unlawful insider trading. F. Gifts.
Because charitable and other nonprofit organizations may sell securities given to them very soon after receiving them, and because
there is also the potential for manipulation (or perceived manipulation) by the donor to gain a larger tax deduction by donating
securities before the release of material negative news, charitable gifts may not be made at a time when the donor is aware of
material nonpublic information. Section 5. Sharing Material Nonpublic Information is Prohibited. No person subject to this Policy
who possesses material nonpublic information relating to Jasper or any other publicly traded companies may directly or indirectly
(through family members, other persons, entities or otherwise) pass that information on to others outside the Company, including
friends, family, or other acquaintances (referred to as “ tipping ) until such information has been disseminated to the public . The
You must treat material nonpublic information about our business partners with the same care required with respect to such
information related directly to Jasper. Tipping includes passing information under circumstances that could suggest that you were
trying to help another profit or avoid a loss. Exercise care when speaking with others who do not “ need to know, ” even if they are
subject to this Policy, as well as when communicating with family, friends and others not associated with Jasper. To avoid the
appearance of impropriety, refrain from discussing our business or prospects or making recommendations about buying or selling
our securities or the securities of other companies with which we have a relationship. Inquiries about Jasper should be directed to
our Corporate Communications, Investor Relations or Legal teams. Section 6. Recommendations Regarding Trading in Company
Securities are Prohibited. No person subject to this Policy may make recommendations or express opinions on trading in Jasper
securities while in possession of material nonpublic information, except to advise others not to trade in Jasper securities if doing so
might violate the law or this Policy. Section 7. Only Designated Company Spokespersons Are Authorized to Disclose Material



Nonpublic Information. U. S. federal securities laws prohibit the Company from selectively disclosing material nonpublic
information. Jasper has established procedures for releasing material information in a manner that is designed to achieve broad
dissemination of the information immediately upon its release. Covered Parties may not, therefore, disclose material nonpublic
information to anyone outside the Company, including family members and friends, other than in accordance with those
established procedures. Any inquiries about the Company should be directed to our Corporate Communications and Investor
Relations teams. Additionally, the Legal team is responsible for handling legal matters that may involve certain disclosures. Section
8. Covered Parties Must Follow Company Guidelines Pertaining to Electronic Communications. Covered Parties must follow the
Jasper Corporate Disclosure (Regulation FD) Policy before participating in any Internet electronic communication forums
concerning the Company. Section 9. Trade Pre- Clearance Required. As part of this Policy, all purchases and sales of equity
securities of the Company by all Covered Parties, other than transactions that are not subject to the Policy or transactions
pursuant to a Rule 10bS- 1 trading plan pre- cleared by the Compliance Officer, must be pre- cleared by the Compliance Officer.
This requirement is intended to prevent inadvertent Policy violations and avoid trades involving the appearance of improper
insider trading. Requests for pre- clearance must be submitted via email to the Compliance Officer at least two (2) business days in
advance of each proposed transaction. If the Covered Party does not receive a response from a Compliance Officer within twenty
four (24) hours, then the Covered Party must follow up to ensure that the message was received. Each request for pre- clearance
should include the nature of the proposed transaction and the expected date of the transaction. In addition, each request for pre-
clearance should also include the following information: ® Number of shares involved. e If the transaction involves a stock Options
- option exercise, the specific option to be exercised. ® Contact information for the broker who will execute the transaction. Once
the proposed transaction is pre- cleared, the Covered Party may proceed with it on the approved terms, provided that they comply
with all other securities law requirements, such as Rule 144 and prohibitions regarding trading on the basis of inside information,
and with any special trading blackout imposed by the Company prior to the completion of the trade. Neither the Company nor the
Compliance Officer (a) will have any liability for any delay in reviewing, or refusal of, a pre- clearance request, or (b) assumes any
liability for the legality or consequences of any transaction that is the subject of a pre- clearance request to the party requesting
such pre- clearance. Section 10. Rule 10b5- 1 Trading Plans. SEC Rule 10b5- 1 provides an affirmative defense from insider trading
liability under the federal securities laws for trading plans that meet certain requirements. It does not prevent someone from
bringing a lawsuit. This Policy permits individuals to adopt SEC Rule 10b5- 1 trading plans with brokers that outline a pre- set
plan for transacting in the Company’ s securities, including the exercise of equity awards. As required by SEC Rule 10bS- 1, a
director, officer or other employee or consultant of the Company may implement, amend or terminate a trading plan under SEC
Rule 10b5- 1 only when he or she is not in possession of material nonpublic information and provided that such individual and
trading plan comply with the provisions under Appendix I hereto. Any director, officer or other employee or consultant of the
Company who wishes to implement a trading plan under SEC Rule 10bS- 1 must first pre- clear the plan with the Compliance
Officer at least four (4) days prior to the entry into the plan, and must also pre- clear any amendment to such plan and any
termination of a plan in advance of its expiration date, with the Compliance Officer. Except as set forth above, no further pre-
approval of transactions conducted pursuant to trading plan under SEC Rule 10b5- 1 will be required. The terms of any trading
plan under SEC Rule 10b5- 1 adopted by an officer or director of the Company must be publicly disclosed by the Company in
accordance with Item 408 of Regulation S- K promulgated by the SEC. Establishing a trading plan under SEC Rule 10b5- 1 does
not exempt transactions from the short- swing profit provisions of Section 16 of the Exchange Act. Section 11. Other Transactions
in Company Securities. A. General Rule. This Policy applies to all transactions in Jasper securities, including any securities the
Company may issue from time to time, such as preferred stock, warrants and convertible debentures, as well as to derivative
securities relating to the Company’ s stock, whether or not issued by Jasper, such as exchange- traded options. B. Exclusions. 1.
Equity Award Exercise. The trading restrictions set forth in this Policy do not apply to the exercise of stock options or other equity
awards for cash under Jasper’ s equity incentive plans, including any net exercise of an equity award pursuant to which you have
elected to have the Company withhold shares of stock to satisfy tax withholding requirements or the cxercise price determined-by-of
the equity award, to be exempt from this Policy. This Policy does apply, however, to all sales of securities acquired through the
exercise of stock options or the-other Beard-equity awards , including “ same- day sale ” or cashless exercise of Company stock
options. 2. Restricted Stock Awards; Restricted Stock Unit Awards. This Policy does not apply to the vesting of restricted stock or
restricted stock units, or the exercise of a tax withholding right pursuant to which an individual elects to have the Company
withhold shares of stock to satisfy tax- withholding requirements upon the vesting of any restricted stock or restricted stock units.
The Policy does apply, however, to any market sale of stock or restricted stock. 3. 401 (k) Plan. This Policy does not apply to
purchases of Company stock in the Company’ s 401 (k) plan resulting from periodic contributions of money to the plan pursuant to
payroll deduction elections. This Policy does apply, however, to certain elections that may be made under the 401 (k) plan,
including: (a) an election to increase or decrease the percentage of periodic contributions that will be allocated to the Company
stock fund, if any; (b) an election to make an intra- plan transfer of an existing account balance into or out of the Company stock
fund; (c) an election to borrow money against a 401 (k) plan account if the loan will result in a liquidation of some or all of a
participant’ s Company stock fund balance; and (d) an election to pre- pay a plan loan if the pre- payment will result in allocation
of loan proceeds to the Company stock fund. 4. Employee Stock Purchase Plans. The trading restrictions set forth in this Policy do
not apply to purchases of Company securities pursuant to the employee’ s advance instructions under employee stock purchase
plans. However, no alteration to instructions regarding the level of withholding or the purchase of Company securities in such
plans is permitted while in the possession of material nonpublic information. Any sale of securities acquired under such plans
remains subject to the terms-prohibitions and eenditiensrestrictions of thePlan-this Policy. Section 12. Directors and the-appheable
stoek-option-agreement;grantnetiee-Section 16 Officers Are Subject to Additional Restrictions. A. Section 16 Insiders. The
Company’ s directors and notiee-certain officers (“ Section 16 Insiders ”) are subject to the reporting provisions and trading
restrictions of exereise-appreved-Section 16 of the Exchange Act and the underlying rules and regulations promulgated by thc Beard
for-sueh-Optionr SEC. B. Section 16 Liability. The Company’ s dlrectors and certam offlcers must also comply w1thwr1-l—vest—as
follows-asspeeifiedin-the reporting obligations and limitations agreements— ¥
Common-Stock-subjeet-to-the-Options—will-vest-on short- swing profit transactlons set forth in Sectlon 16 of the Exchange Act The
practical effect of the-these ﬁfs&&ﬁﬁﬁefs&ﬁyhe%yetﬂhﬁfsﬁd&te—eﬁemp}eymefwﬁh-pmwsmns is that these officers and dlrectors who

purchase and sell the Company ’ s securities in




shatvest-on-non - exempt transactions (under Section 16 of the Exchange Act) within a six- menthly--- month basts-thereafter-period
must disgorge all profits to the Company whether or not they had knowledge of any material nonpubllc 1nf0rmatlon. Under these
provmons and fn—e&eh—eas&w long as certain ¥ v y g g

rther emp-}eyees-e#crlterla ar
Gemp&ny—Xleﬁ—er—a-}se—be-ehgrb}e—fer— or stock optlons under the Company’ s v
stock plans, nor the exerc1se of optlons nor the receipt of stock under a Company leldend reinvestment plan or he-l-rdaysﬂérl-}

P 6 eetn-the Company” s 401 (k) retirement plan is deemed a purchase that can be
matched agalnst a sole-sale for Section 16 (b) short- swing profit disgorgement purposes; however, the sale of any such shares so
obtained is a sale for these purposes. The rules on recovery of short- swing profits are absolute and do not depend on whether a
person has material nonpublic information. C. Additional Restrictions. Because Section 16 Insiders regularly possess material
nonpublic information about the Company, and in light of the reporting requirements to which Section 16 Insiders are subject
under Section 16 of the Exchange Act, Section 16 Insiders are subject to the additional restrictions, including, but not limited to,
pre- clearance of trades, set forth in Appendix II hereto. Section 13. Suspected Policy Violations Must Be Reported. Any person
who violates this Policy, the Company’ s Disclosure and Regulation FD Policy or any federal or state laws governing insider
trading, or knows of or suspects any such violation by any other person, must report the violation immediately to the Compliance
Officer. Upon learning of any such violation, the Compliance Officer will determine whether the Company should release any
material nonpublic information or whether the Company should report the violation to the SEC or other appropriate
governmental authority. The Company will comply with all requests from the SEC, The Financial Industry Regulatory Authority,
Inc., The Nasdaq Stock Market LLC and any other quotation system or national securities exchange on which the Company’ s
common stock is then traded or listed, and other agencies for information related to insider trading investigations. Section 14.
Insider Trading Compliance Officers. Unless the Board of Directors provides otherwise, the Company’ s Chief Financial Officer
shall act as the Company’ s initial Insider Trading Compliance Officer (“ Compliance Officer ”); provided, however, that if the
Chief Financial Officer is a party to a proposed trade, transaction or inquiry relating to this Policy, the Company’ s Chief
Executive Officer shall act as the Compliance Officer with respect to such proposed trade, transaction or inquiry. The Compliance
Officer may delegate their authority to act as the Compliance Officer as they deem necessary or appropriate in their discretion. 43-
EmploymentRelationship-The duties of the Compliance Officer and his / her delegees may include the following : ¢ Administering,
monitoring and enforcing compliance with the Policy. ® Responding to all inquiries relating to This-this Policy and its procedures. ®
Designating and announcing special trading blackout periods during which no Covered Parties may trade in Company securities.
e Providing copies of this Policy and other appropriate materials to all current and new directors, effer-officers letter-, employees
and consultants, and such other persons as the Compliance Officer determines have access to material nonpublic information
concerning the Company. ¢ Administering, monitoring and enforcing compliance with federal and state insider trading laws and
regulations. e Assisting in the preparation and filing of all required SEC reports relating to trading in Company securities,
including without limitation Forms 3, 4, 5 and 144 and Schedules 13D and 13G. e Maintaining as Company records originals or
copies of all documents required by the provisions of this Policy or the procedures set forth herein, and copies of all required SEC
reports relating to insider trading, including without limitation Forms 3, 4, 5 and 144 and Schedules 13D and 13G. e Revising the
Policy as necessary to reflect changes in federal or state insider trading laws and regulations. The Compliance Officer may
designate one or more individuals who may perform the Compliance Officer’ s duties under this Policy in the event that a
Compliance Officer is unable or unavailable to perform such duties. Section 15. Definition of “ Material Nonpublic Information. ”
A. “ Material. ” Information about the Company is “ material ” if it would be expected to affect the investment decisions to buy,
hold or sell or voting decisions of a reasonable stockholder or investor, or if the disclosure of the information would be expected to
significantly alter the total mix of the information in the marketplace about Jasper. In simple terms, material information is any
type of information that could reasonably be expected to affect the market price of Jasper securities or an investor’ s decision to
buy or sell Jasper securities. Both positive and negative information may be material. While it is not possible to identify all
information that would be deemed material, there are various categories of information that are particularly sensitive and, as a
guarantee-general rule, should always be considered material. Examples of employment-such information may include: e Financial
performance, including operating results and changes in performance for—- or liquidity. ® Projections of future earnings or losses,
or other earnings guidance, and any changes to previously announced earnings guidance or any decision to suspend earnings
guidance. ¢« Communications with government agencies, such as the SEC. ¢ Company projections and strategic plans. ¢ New
major contracts, suppliers or finance sources or the loss thereof. ® Development or release of a significant new service. « Major
discoveries or significant changes or developments in products or product lines, research or technologies. ® Important business
developments such as trial and study results or developments regarding strategic collaborators. e Significant pricing or cost
changes. ® Issuance of patents or the acquisition or disposition of other material intellectual property rights. ® Regulatory actions,
approvals or rejections or material correspondence from regulatory bodies. ® Impending bankruptcy or financial liquidity
problems. e Defaults on borrowings. ® Gain or loss of a significant customer or supplier. ® Significant expansion or curtailment of
operations. e Significant pricing changes. ® Significant write- downs in assets or increases or decreases in revenues. ® News of, or
developments in, any potential mergers or acquisitions, the sale of Company assets or subsidiaries, tender offer or major
partnering, joint venture or collaboration agreements. ® Changes in management or the Board of Directors. ® A change in
auditors or notification that an auditor’ s report may no longer be relied upon. ® A significant cybersecurity incident. ® Stock
splits, stock repurchase programs, public or private securities / debt offerings, or changes in Company dividend policies or
amounts. ® Actual or threatened major litigation, or the resolution of such litigation. ® The imposition of an event- specific
restriction on trading in Company securities or the securities of another company or the extension or termination of such
restriction. B. “ Nonpublic. ” Material information is “ nonpublic ” if it has not been widely disseminated to the general public
through a report fixed-filed term—Youremployment-with the Company-SEC or through major newswire services, national news
services or financial news services, a broadcast on widely- available radio or television programs or publication in a widely-
available newspaper, magazine or news website. For purposes of this Policy, information will be considered public after the close of




trading on the second full trading day following the Company’ s widespread public release of the information. For purposes of this
Policy, if such public disclosure occurs on a trading day before the markets close, then that day shall be considered the first trading
day. If such public disclosure occurs after the markets close on a trading day, then the date of public disclosure shall not be
considered the first trading day following the date of public disclosure. C. Consult Compliance Officer When in Doubt. Any
Covered Parties who are unsure whether the information that they possess is material or nonpublic must consult the Compliance
Officer for guidance before trading in any Company securities. Section 16. Trading Window. Any trade by a Covered Party will be
permitted only during an open  trading window. ” Even when the window is open, all Covered Parties are prohibited from trading
in Jasper securities while in possession of material nonpublic information. The trading window generally opens following the close
of trading on the second full trading day following the public issuance of the Company’ s earnings release for the most recent fiscal
quarter and closes at —the close of trading on the 16th day of the last month of a fiscal quarter. Section 17. Jasper May Suspend All
Trading Activities by Covered Parties. Without limiting Section 16 of this Policy, in order to ensure compliance with this Policy, to
avoid any questions and to protect directors, officers, employees, consultants and the Company from any potential liability, from
time to time Jasper may impose, at its discretion, a special “ blackout ” period during which some or all directors, officers,
employees and consultants may not buy or sell Jasper securities. The Compliance Officer will impose such a blackout period if, in
his or her judgment, there exists nonpublic information that would be considered material for insider trader purposes, that would
make trades by such Jasper directors, officers, employees or consultants inappropriate in light of the risk that such trades could be
viewed as violating applicable securities laws. If you are made aware of such a blackout period, do not disclose its existence to
anyone. The failure of the Company to designate a person as being subject to the blackout period will not relieve that person of the
obligation not to trade while he or she is aware of material nonpublic information. Section 18. Violations of Insider Trading Laws
or this Policy can Result in Severe Consequences. A. Liability for Insider Trading. The consequences of prohibited insider trading
or tipping can be severe. Persons violating insider trading or tipping rules may be subject to an SEC civil investigation, cease and
desist order or other administrative action, and incur federal and state law penalties and sanctions, including but not limited to: (1)
jail sentences; (2) criminal fines; (3) civil penalties; (4) SEC civil enforcement injunctions; (5) administrative sanctions; and (6) a
permanent bar from serving as an officer or director of a public company. There is no de minimis exception to the rule against
insider trading. Use of inside information to gain personal benefit is as illegal with respect to one share of stock as it is with respect
to a large number of shares. B. Any employee, officer, director or consultant of the Company who tips (“ tippers ) a third party
(commonly referred to as a “ tippee ”) may also be liable for improper transactions by tippees to whom they have tipped material
nonpublic information regarding the Company or to whom they have made recommendations or expressed opinions on the basis 5
meaning-that-you-and-of such information as to trading in the Company ’ s securities. Tippers and tippees would be subject to the
same penalties and sanctions as described above, and the SEC has imposed large penalties even when the tipper or tippee did not
profit from the trading. The SEC and the national securities exchanges use sophisticated electronic surveillance techniques to
assess and uncover insider trading. C. Control Persons. The Company and / or the supervisors of the person violating the rules, if
they fail to take appropriate steps to prevent insider trading, may in certain circumstances be subject to major civil or criminal
penalties. D. Company Discipline. Violation of this Policy or federal or state insider trading laws by any director, officer, employee
or consultant may subject the director to removal proceedings and the officer, employee or consultant to disciplinary action by the
Company, including terminate-termination yeur-of cmployment swith-or consulting relationship for cause, and, in appropriate cases,
civil legal action or referral for regulatory or criminal prosecution. Section 19. This Policy Is Subject to Revision. Jasper may
change the Cempany-terms of this Policy from time to time and reserves the right to amend, supplement or discontinue this Policy
and the matters addressed herein, without prior notice, at any time . The Company anticipates that modifications to this Policy will
be necessary from time to time as the Company’ s needs and circumstances evolve and to respond to developments in law and
practice, and will take steps to inform all affected persons of any material changes. The Nominating and Corporate Governance
Committee of the Board of Directors will be responsible for monitoring and recommending any reasen-modification to this Policy , if
necessary or advisable, to the Board of Directors. Section 20. All Persons Must Acknowledge Their Agreement to Comply with this
Policy. The Policy will be available on the Company’ s internal website. Upon first receiving a copy of the Policy or any revised
versions, each such person shall be requested to sign an acknowledgment that they have received a copy and agree to comply with
the Policy’ s terms. This acknowledgment and agreement will constitute consent for Jasper to impose sanctions for violation of this
Policy and to issue any necessary stop- transfer orders to the Company’ s transfer agent to enforce compliance with this Policy.
Section 21. Additional Information. Nothing in this Policy creates or implies an employment contract or term of employment.
Employment at the Company is employment at- will unless otherwise expressly provided in an employment contract signed by the
employee and the Company’ s Chief Executive Officer (or another authorized officer of the Company). Employment at- will may

be terminated with or without prier-cause and with or without notice at —Fhis-efferletter-also-stupersedes-any previous-eommunieations

time by the employee or representations;-eral-er-writtensfrom-eron-behalfof the Company er—aﬂ-y—eﬁts—a#ﬁ-l-:ﬁ’ees—fel-&t—mg— Nothing in this
Policy shall limit the right to terminate employment at- will. No one other than the Company’ s efferefChief Executive Officer is

authorized to change this at- will employment relationship, or to yex-enter into an agreement to employ employees for a specified
period of time . +4-If the Company’ s Chief Executive Officer makes this kind of different agreement with an employee, it will not
be effective unless it is in writing, clearly states that the at- will employment relationship is changed, and is signed by the employee
and the Company’ s Chief Executive Officer (or another authorized officer of the Company) . GeverningLaw-Last Amended May
9,2024 APPENDIX I Rule 10b5- 1 Plan Guidelines Any director, officer, or other employee or consultant of the Company (a «
participant ) adopting a trading plan (the “ Plan ) under Rule 10bS- 1 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “
Exchange Act ), and each such Plan, must meet the following the requirements. 1. The terms-of-this-offertetter-and-Plan must be a
written plan or binding agreement entered into with a national brokerage firm or the-other reselution-financial professional
reasonably acceptable to the Company. 2. The Plan must clearly state that both the Plan participant and the brokerage firm intend
that all transactions will comply with Rule 10b5S- 1 under the Exchange Act (“ Rule 10bS- 1 ”). 3. The Plan must include a
representation by the participant to the Company at the time of adoption or modification of the Plan that (i) the participant is not
aware of any disputes-material nonpublic information about the Company or Company securities, and (ii) the participant is
adopting the Plan in good faith and not as part of a plan to-the-meaning;effeet; performanee;-or validity-scheme to evade the
prohibitions of this-efferdetter-Rule 10b- 5 under the Exchange Act. 4. The participant is solely responsible for determining Plan
compliance with Rule 10b5- 1 and other applicable laws and regulations. Preclearance of the Plan by the Company should not be



characterized or understood arising-ent-ofretated-to signify consent . approval or a legal opinion as to the Plan’ s effectiveness or the
participant’ s compliance with Rule 10b5- 1. 5. The Plan must be adopted while the Company is not in a blackout period. 6. For
Plan participants that are officers and directors, no transaction may take place under the Plan until the later of (a) 90 days after
adoption or modification (as specified in Rule 10b5- 1) of the Plan, or (b) two business days following the disclosure of the
Company’ s financial results in a Form 10- Q or Form 10- K for the fiscal quarter (the Company’ s fourth fiscal quarter in the case
of a Form 10- K) in which the Plan was adopted or modified (as specified in Rule 10b5- 1), in all cases not to exceed 120 days after
adoption or modification of the Plan. 7. For Plan participants other than officers and directors, no transaction may take place
under the Plan until 30 days following the adoption or modification (as specified in Rule 10b5- 1) of the Plan. 8. Subject to certain
limited exceptions specified in Rule 10bS- 1, Plan participants may not have more than one Plan outstanding at the same time. 9.
The Plan participant may not be at the time of entering into the Plan, and may not during the term of the Plan become, a party to a
corresponding or hedging transaction involving Company securities. I- 110. The Plan participant must cooperate with the
Company’ s decisions regarding public disclosure of the Plan. If the Plan participant is a director or officer, the Plan participant (i)
acknowledges that the Company and such director or officer must make certain disclosures in SEC filings concerning the Plan, and

(ii) must promptly provide any information requested by svay-econneeted-withthis-offerdetter,youremploymentwith-the Company

regarding the Plan (including any amendment or termination thereof) for the purpose of providing the required disclosures or any
other disclosures that relationship-betweenyewand-the Company deems to be required or appropriate under the “Bisputes>
circumstances. 11. Although modifications to the Plan are not prohibited, the Plan should be adopted with the intention that it will
not be amended, modified or terminated prior to its expiration. 12. The Plan must provide for multiple transactions (as opposed to
a single transaction ) ; provided that Plan participants may, subject to certain limited exceptions specified in Rule 10bS- 1, adopt
one Plan that provides for a single transaction in any consecutive 12- month period. 13. The Plan must provide for same- day
confirmation (by e- mail) by the financial institution to one or more individuals specified by the Company of each transaction made
under the Plan, and of any proposed modification, amendment or termination of the Plan. 14. If required with respect to a
transaction under the Plan, an SEC Form 144 will be governed-filled out and filed by the faws-participant or the participant’ s
brokerage firm in accordance with the existing rules regarding Form 144 filings. For directors and officers, Form 4s should be filed
timely with respect to transactions under the Plan. A similar footnote should be included in the Form 4 as outlined above. I- 2
APPENDIX II Special Restrictions on Transactions in Company Securities by Section 16 Insiders To minimize the risk of apparent
or actual violations of the rules governing insider trading, we have adopted the-these special restrictions State-of-California;
exeludingtaws-relating to eenfliets-transactions in our securities by Section 16 Insiders. Section 16 Insiders are responsible for
ensuring compliance with this Appendix I, including restrictions on all trading during certain periods, by family members and
members of their households and by entities over which they exercise voting or investment control ehetee-oflaw-. Yeou-Section 16
Insiders should provide each of these persons or entities with a copy of this Policy. Section 1. Pre- Clearance of Rule 10b5- 1 Plans
Required. Pre- clearance is required for the establishment of a Rule 10b5- 1 trading plan at least four (4) full trading days prior to
entry into, modification of or termination of the plan. However, pre- clearance will not be required for individual transactions
effected pursuant to a pre- cleared Rule 10bS- 1 trading plan. All Section 16 Insiders must immediately report the results of
transactions effected under a trading plan to the Compliance Officer since they will be reportable on Form 4 within two (2)
business days following the execution of the trade, subject to and-- an extension of not more than two (2) additional business days
where the Section 16 Insider is not immediately aware of the execution of the trade. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any
transactions by the Compliance Officer, or a delegee of the Compliance Officer under this Policy, shall be subject to pre- clearance
by the Chief Executive Officer. Pre- clearance of a plan by the Company submit-should not be characterized or understood to signify
consent, approval ora legal opmlon as to tlu exel-&swe—perseﬂa-ljﬁﬂsd-re&eﬂ—e{lPlan s effectiveness or the participant’ s compliance
3 3 4 o orr-with Rule 10b5- 1. Section 2. Hardship
Exemptlons The Compllance Officer may, on a case by case bas1s, authorlze a transaction in Jasper securities outside of the
trading window (but in no event during a special blackout period) due to financial or other hardship. Any request for a hardship
exemption must be in writing and must describe the amount and nature of the proposed transaction and the circumstances of the
hardship. The Section 16 Insider requesting the hardship exemption must also certify to the Compliance Officer within two (2)
business days prior to the date of the proposed trade that they are not in possession of material nonpublic information concerning
Jasper. The existence of the foregoing procedure does not in any Bispute-way obligate the Compliance Officer to approve any
hardship exemption requested by a Section 16 Insider. Section 3. Brokers. All Section 16 Insiders must ensure that their broker
does not execute any transaction for the Section 16 Insider (other than under a previously authorized Rule 10bS- 1 trading plan)
until the broker has verified with the Compliance Officer that the transaction has been pre- cleared. II- 1 Section 4. Reporting of
Transactions Required. To facilitate timely reporting under Section 16 of the Exchange Act, Sectlon 16 Insnders are requlred to on
the same day as the trade date, or any-elaimrelated-, with respect to anyDis v ab h
transactions effected pursuant to a Rule 10b5- 1 plan, on the day the Sectlon 16 In51der is adv1sed of the terms of the transaction,
(a) report the details of each transaction to the Compliance Officer, and (b) arrange with persons whose trades must be reported by
the Section 16 Insider under Section 16 (such as immediate famlly members 11V1ng in the Sectlon 16 Insider’ s household) to
immediately report directly to the Company —Plea y e y g-belew-and returning-to the Section
16 Insider the following transaction details: o Transactlon date (trade date), o Number of shares involved, ® Price per share at
which the transaction was executed (before addition or deduction of brokerage commission and the-other transaction fees) signed
, 2023 This-offer-® For stock option exercises, the specific option exercised, ® Contact
information for the broker who executed the transaction, and e Specific representation that the Section 16 Insider is not in
possession of employment-material non- public information. The transaction details must be reported to the Compliance Officer,
w1th coples to Jasper personnel who will e*pﬁe—by—Septeﬁﬂaer%O%@%%—assnst the Sectlon 16 In51der in preparmg thelr Form 4 1I-2
3 ate—Lxhibit

l C ()NSEI\T OF I\JDEPENDENT RE(JISTERED PUBLI( ACCOU NTI\J(I FIRM \\ e helcb\ consent to thc incorporation by
ILIULHLL in the Registration Statements on Form S- 3 (Nos. 333- 271500 and 333-260306) and S- 8 (Nos. 333- 277674, 333- 280039, 333-
263702, 333- 270361, 333- 263773 and 333- 273941 1333-27036+333-26373and-333-263762-) of Jasper Therapeutics, Inc. of our
report dated Mareh-5-February 28 , 2024-2025 ;-relating to the financial statements, which appears in this Form 10- K. /s
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP San Jose, California Mareh-5-February 28 , 2624-2025 Exhibit 31. 1 CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL



EXECUTIVE OFFICER Pursuant to Rule 13a- 14 (a) adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes- Oxley Act of 2002 I, Ronald
Martell, certify that: 1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10- K of Jasper Therapeutics, Inc.; 2. Based on my knowledge, this
report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in
light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report; 3.
Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report; 4.
The registrant’ s other certifying officer (s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a- 15 (e) and 15d- 15 (e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules
13a- 15 (f) and 15d- 15 (f)) for the registrant and have: (a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure
controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being
prepared; (b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles; (c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the
registrant’ s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure
controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and (d) Disclosed in this report any
change in the registrant’ s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’ s most recent fiscal quarter (the
registrant’ s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant’ s internal control over financial reporting; andS. The registrant’ s other certifying officer (s) and I have disclosed, based on our
most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’ s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’ s
board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions): (a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or
operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’ s ability to record,
process, summarize and report financial information; and (b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other
employees who have a significant role in the registrant’ s internal control over financial reporting. / s / Ronald Martell Ronald Martell
President, Chief Executive Officer, and Director (Principal Executive Officer) Dated: Marelr5-February 28 , 2024-2025 Exhibit 31. 2
CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER [, Herb Cross, certify that: 1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form
10- K of Jasper Therapeutics, Inc.; 2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact
or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements
were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report; 3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements,
and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of
operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report; 4. The registrant’ s other certifying
officer (s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a- 15 (e) and 15d- 15 (e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a- 15 (f) and
15d- 15 (f)) for the registrant and have: (a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls
and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is
being prepared; (b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles; (c)
Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’ s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such
evaluation; and (d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’ s internal control over financial reporting that occurred
during the registrant’ s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’ s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’ s internal control over financial reporting; andS. The
registrant’ s other certifying officer (s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’ s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’ s board of directors (or persons performing the
equivalent functions): (a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’ s ability to record, process, summarize and report
financial information; and (b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’ s internal control over financial reporting. / s / Herb Cross Herb Cross Chief Financial Officer and
Corporate Secretary (Principal Financial Officer) Exhibit 32. 1 CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND
PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER PURSUANT TO 18 U. S. C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF
THE SARBANES- OXLEY ACT OF 2002 In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10- K of Jasper Therapeutics, Inc. (the “
Company ") for the period ended December 31, 2023-2024 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the
Report ), the undersigned hereby certify, pursuant to 18 U. S. C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes- Oxley
Act 0f 2002, to their knowledge that: (1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13 (a) or 15 (d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and (2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial
condition and results of operations of the Company. By: / s / Ronald Martell By: / s / Herb Cross Ronald Martell Herb Cross President and
Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive Officer) Chief Financial Officer and Corporate Secretary (Principal Financial Officer) Marek
5-February 28 , 2624-2025 Mareh-5-February 28 , 2024A-2025A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has
been provided to the Company and will be retained by the Company and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff
upon request. This certification accompanies the Report, is not deemed filed for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended (the “ Exchange Act ), or otherwise subject to the liability of that section, nor shall it be deemed incorporated by
reference into any filing under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Exchange Act (whether made before or after the date of the
Report), irrespective of any general incorporation language contained in such filing. Exhtbit-97-The-Board-of Direetors(the-“Boeard>)-of













